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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
The Budget and Finance Committee meeting of
April 24, 2007 is now in session. The time is 9:06. At this time the Chair
would like to recognize the Members that are here this morning: Member
Mateo, Member Anderson, Member Baisa, Member Medeiros,-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
--Member Molina, Member Hokama, as well as
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning. Also with us is the Administration, we
do have Traci Fujita Villarosa, First Deputy Corporation Counsel, as well
as our Budget Director Frederick Pablo. Supporting us this morning,
Council Staff Lance Taguchi, Gayle Revels, as well as the Secretary
Yvette Bouthillier. Members, we do have several people signed up for
testimony this morning. Before we start public testimony if you all can
turn your pagers as well as cell phone to either the silent mode or turn it
off. The Chair would appreciate that.
Members, again, we had several people sign up for public testimony. For
those of you that are providing public testimony this morning you have
three minutes to testify with one minute to conclude. And, when you
come up to the podium if you can state your name and the organization
that you represent. The first person signed up for public testimony is our
Managing Director, Sheri Morrison. Good morning .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. MORRISON: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members. It's nice to
see you again this morning. I'm Sheri Morrison, Managing Director for
the County of Maui. I submitted a transmittal letter this morning that
should have been distributed to you, I hope you have copies of that. And
I'm going to go through that with you just because I know you have a
huge amount of reading to do and if I can briefly summarize it this
morning, I'll be happy to do that. Does everyone have a copy of that?
Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep. Yes, we do.
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MS. MORRISON: I'm going to read through that quickly and then be available
for questions. Thank you for your commitment to a methodical review of
the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2008 Budget Proposal. Your overall support for
the proposal and for the Department of Management in particular is
appreciated. I'm respectfully requesting your reconsideration in support
for two positions requested in the Managing Director's office: the
Countywide CIP Coordinator and the Administrative Assistant II. These
positions are critically needed in order for the Department of Management
to function effectively.
The Charter describes the role of the Managing Director as the principle
management aid to the Mayor. This responsibility requires oversight and
coordination among 17 Departments and Agencies, various Boards and
Commissions, the Mayor's Staff and Budget Office, as well as
communication and cooperation with the public, the County Council, and
State and Federal officials.
Along with these responsibilities the
Department of Management has evolved to a complex Department with
38 employees focused on equal employment issues, County security
issues, ADA coordination, energy regulation and efficiencies, geographic
information systems, management information and technology systems,
and project management for various capital improvements.
Much of the responsibility for overseeing Department operations is often
delegated to the First Assistant to the Managing Director as management
does not have a Deputy Director position as other Departments do. We
are requesting an Administrative Assistant position to provide
administrative support related to the Department budget preparation,
purchasing, inventory control, monitoring of accounts, planning for and
coordinating moving and/or leasing office space which we continue to do
with Departments, and special projects as assigned. This position is
essential for our Department to keep up with the heavy workload just as it
is in many other County Departments.
The Countywide CIP Coordinator position fulfills a need for overall
planning, management, and ongoing review of capital improvement
budgets and projects on a Countywide basis. This position would
coordinate with Departments to review, analyze, and formulate
recommendations to the Mayor and Managing Director regarding the
annual and six-year CIP program based on our current priorities and on the
General and Community Plans. The position would coordinate project
reVIew meetings for senior management and monitor progress of
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Department projects and expenditures including lapsing funds and timing
of bond projects.
This coordination is needed with our Treasurer, our County Treasurer
monitors somewhere between 250 and $300 million in cash and
investments, and that has to be timed with our bond issues and with cash
advances. They have requested this particular position to assist them. The
position would also coordinate and review Department quarterly project
status reports and prepare summaries for the Mayor and the Council and of
course would carry out special projects as assigned.
The funding request for these two positions, for the Administrative
Assistant, eight months of funding would amount to a little bit more than
$28,000. For the Countywide CIP Coordinator, eight months of funding
would be $54,112. With the additional three million that came in the
certified real property tax revenue I feel sure that you might be able to find
a spot for these two small amounts.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. MORRISON: I look forward to your review and favorable consideration to
my request. If you have questions or need further information, please feel
free to ask.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Thank you, Ms. Morrison, for coming
this morning. This, and I think the question I had was this Countywide
CIP Coordinator would then do for all Departments? Because I think
some Departments have people that kind of keep an eye on things. But
we've seen many projects fall through the cracks because there wasn't
someone watching, monies have lapsed. And so, this coordinator would
directly communicate with you, the Mayor, to keep all these projects
online, in tune and inform to the Council as well as the Administration,
right?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the other thing is, do you know
on the Administrative Assistant, that, that person would be a direct,
directly working with that Coordinator?
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MS. MORRISON: Well, that person, the Administrative Assistant would directly
report to me. So would the CIP Coordinator.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, these, both people would report directly
to whoever the Managing Director, yourself at this time -MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --whomever that Managing Director?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. These are civil service positions and they would be
permanent positions if it gets approved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Permanent positions.
MS. MORRISON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I favor this, and I, I like the
idea. So, we'll see what we can do. But thank you, Ms. Morrison. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Ms. Morrison.

Thank you, Chair.

Good mormng,

MS. MORRISON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming down. I was in
support of the CIP Coordinator because as it was presented to us the basic
function of the, of the position is to make sure that Community Plan
implementing actions get implemented. And so, do you see that, in other
words, are you wanting this person to take the implementing actions in the
various Community Plans and those that need CIP schedule it into the CIP
program to make sure they happen?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. The six-year CIP plan that's part of the County Budget
is in need of attention in that regard in terms of the long-term plans so that
it's connected to the Community and General Plans, especially with the
new one that's being developed as we speak. But also in terms of
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financial planning, because all, all, as you all know we have some very
large expenditures coming down the, the pike and we need to prepare for
those and be able to time them in a way that, not only is the construction
planned but also the financial part of it is planned. But the linkage with
the Community Plans is also a critical part of their responsibility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much. I appreciate
that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you for coming down. Yesterday I had the
opportunity, 'cause we were both at a function to discuss this with the
Mayor. And it was strange and very serendipitous because I was
discussing with her a couple of projects that need attention. And so, she
took the opportunity to explain to me why this position was really
important and if we had somebody who was assigned to take care of these
details that we probably would not have the questions that we have on a
couple of projects. So, I would like to also support that very much and she
made it clear that it was very, very important to her.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Johnson, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning, Sheri.
MS. MORRISON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you so much for making this request.
As I was going through the budget because I had spoken yesterday with
Gladys. When I was looking for it, was this one of the late requests?
MS. MORRISON: This, these two, two positions were intended to be in the
Mayor's Budget Proposal. As it happened for some reason there was a
glitch in the software and they were not included in the Mayor's Budget
proposal. However the Budget Director prepared a document transmittal
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that you received early on showing this along with some other corrections.
And that also balanced and continued to arrive at a balanced Budget with
these two positions along with some other minor adjustments that were
there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I really appreciate that. 'Cause when I
was trying to find it I'm looking and there were no deletions from the bare
budget. These were ...
MS. MORRISON: These would have to be added in.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MS. MORRISON: And, and the revenue, as I said, potentially could come from
the additional certified real property tax revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much.
MS. MORRISON: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Ms. Morrison.

Mahalo,

Chair.

Good

mormng,

MS. MORRISON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony. And you did
mention that these two positions will be civil service positions?
MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, the positions would have to go through
the Department of Personnel Services as far as position descriptions and
so forth and their recruitment for the positions?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. I consulted with the Director of Personnel Services in
determining how to describe these positions and how to classify them in
preparation for the Budget document itself. And she and I determined
which would be the appropriate levels and salary levels that we should
approach this from. We would begin to work, in fact the position
descriptions are very, very nearly complete right now. So, we would do
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everything we could to get these posItIOns inline and work with her
Department as soon as we knew whether or not they were approved in the
Budget. But we are consulting with them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Are there currently CIP Coordinator
positions in the listing that DPS has?
MS. MORRISON: There are Department-level CIP Coordinator positions. In
fact I have one in my own Department who are Project Managers. And
they work directly with bid documents, coordinating a project from the
get-go within a Department. The person in my own Department works
with Departments who do not have Engineers and Project Managers on
their own staff on an ongoing basis such as Police, Fire, Human Concerns,
others like that whose primary responsibility is not in those areas and so
this person on my Staff is a Project Manager. Other Departments also
have these Project Manager-type positions. But there is no Countywide
CIP Coordinator position as of yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
And, would the posItIOn, mInImUm
qualifications you're going, is that between the Administration and DPS to
determine that?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. Currently the position description, that, that draft that
we have involves quite a bit of background in planning, as well as in
overall public communication skills and interdepartmental, understanding
of County functions and the whole project process that one goes through
for any project. But it's, at least half of the minimum qualifications relate
to planning skills.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And both these posItIOns, you
mentioned, would be in your Department and under your supervision?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. So, Managing Director, my
understanding now by, by Charter and, and I believe in the Code, the
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Planning Director is assigned to pnontIze the Capital Improvement
Projects proposed by the County and recommend their priority to the
Mayor. So, are you telling us you want that deleted?
MS. MORRISON: No. You're absolutely correct, that is in, in the Charter and it
is part of the responsibility of the Planning Director. In previous years the
responsibility for that was delegated to the Long Range Planning Division
by the Director and this would not obviate that continued work. Because
the ability to work with all those Community Plans and all the establishing
of priorities that the Community Plans do and the Departments do would,
would continue to go on. The Countywide CIP Coordinator is not a
decision-making position, that person doesn't have the authority that the
Planning Director has, that the Mayor has, for example.
But, it's, it's a primary aid to those positions and would help in the linkage
with all the Departments that the Planning Director mayor may not
understand the project from a construction standpoint or from a capital
improvement standpoint but would understand it in terms of the linkage
with the Community Plans. So, this position would work with Planning
Department, Long Range Planning, the Budget Office, the Finance
Director's Office, Managing Director's Office, and be that coordinating
force that is essential to making all those moving parts work together.
But, yes, the Planning Director has a key part in this.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Has the planning, in your experience, and you've
been with us for some years, do you believe that the Planning Director and
the Planning Department is unable to fulfill their requirements?
MS. MORRISON: No. I don't think they're unable to, I think that it's ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, let me say, not making standard, not making the
grade.
MS. MORRISON: I think there is assistance that's needed because of the many
demands on the Planning Director and all the other issues that are before
any Planning Director whether it's the current Planning Director or any
that we've had previously. I have not in the years that I've been involved
with budgeting and planning for this seen as direct an involvement as
probably we should have from the Planning Directors because of their
other time commitments.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any more questions,
Members? I do have one. In regards to this particular position, because
we have other CIP Coordinators in the various departments, will this CIP
Coordinator be the one that oversee all of the other CIP Coordinators so
that whatever projects that are planned, that need to be done, this CIP
Coordinator will have the authority to get access.
MS. MORRISON: As, as the position is described, the position itself would not
have that authority. But, and each department, in fact the communication
would be through the Director to whatever staff are assigned by that
Director to work on capital projects. The position would not supervise
any of those Engineers or, or Project Managers. However through the
authority of myself and the Mayor, communication goes to departments
from the CIP Coordinators. They would be speaking on our behalf and
asking for information or encouraging projects to be expedited. And so in
that sense, yes, they would have that authority.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you for that information. The thing that I'm
concerned with is that various departments in this County do have their,
their CIP Coordinators and the priorities may not be the same as the
Managing Director's priorities. So-MS. MORRISON: And that's-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --that's what needs to be-MS. MORRISON: --and that's what we're trying to get to.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --cleared out. Yeah. So, Members, any more questions
for the testifier at this time? Member Johnson, followed by Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks so much again. I just was
looking, because we got the eight-month salary projection, do you have
any idea what the benefits attached to this would be?
MS. MORRISON: Well, the benefit projection would, would be determined by
formula as it is with all the positions and, and we would add, have to add
that into the Countywide benefits projections as we do for all positions.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
calculation.

Okay.

1 just was cunous if you had the

MS. MORRISON: 1 don't know what the percentage is-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: --this year. It's-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: High.
MS. MORRISON: --it's high. Yes. It is high.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Morrison, I'm just
wondering, 1 know that you folks have only had a couple months on the
job. So, 1 don't expect this now. But I'm just wondering if maybe as an
assignment from your office you could have all Department Directors be
required to read all of our Community Plans, at least the implementing
actions. Because 1 think a lot of what happens is that, you know, from
Administration to Administration our Community Plans are supposed to
last 10 years and most of them last 15 before they get renewed.
And, you know, I, 1 know for myself when 1 look at the Kihei-Makena
Community Plan that's been adopted at least nine years now, maybe eight
years. There's an awful lot of implementing actions in that Community
Plan that have never been brought up since the day they were adopted. So,
I'm just wondering if, maybe one way to help alleviate the problem is,
is ... 1 don't think Director's even realize that they're supposed to be
connecting the implementing actions in our Community Plans to the
budget. That's one of the big missing links.
MS. MORRISON: 1 think that's an excellent suggestion and something we, we
can renew periodically, that recommendation with Directors. Actually,
after, 1 believe it was the first weekend in February, we had an orientation
session for new Directors and Deputies, Executive Secretaries, the
Mayor's Staff in which along with the County Charter, a number of issues
related to legal issues that the Corporation Counsel and First Deputy
reminded our Directors and Deputies of a number of issues. But along
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with that was a discussion by the new Planning Director of the
Community Plans and their relationship to the Department's work. But,
yes, I think it's worthwhile to continually remind and bring those issues
up. So, thank you for that suggestion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you. And, also because the
way the implementing actions are broken down they actually identify what
department is responsible. So, it, on the other side of that coin it would
also be helpful when the budget comes down that those things that are
implementing actions be identified.
MS. MORRISON: That's a good point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause I'm sure there are some in here that
are implementing actions-MS. MORRISON: I'm sure there are.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
identified as such.

--Ill

the Community Plan that no one's

MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Morrison.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
Managing Director? Thank you very much-MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for being here this morning.
MS. MORRISON: Appreciate the opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Jocelyn Bouchard. Jocelyn.
MS. BOUCHARD:
Members.

Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
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MS. BOUCHARD: My name is Jocelyn Bouchard and I'm CEO of the Maui
Humane Society. I just wanted to make some clarifications about the
status of the Animal Management Revolving Fund. The approximately
$262,000 listed in your Budget represents the existing balance and
anticipated revenues over the next year. The Maui Humane Society does
intend to access approximately 180,000 of that money which is pretty
much the existing balance. And that's primarily for the current fiscal year
needs but also for next fiscal year as well. Next year we do plan on sitting
down with Housing and Human Concerns to specify the use of the Animal
Management Revolving Fund, and we do share your vision that it be
utilized to lessen the impact of the Animal Management Program needs on
the General Budget. We ask that you support your Chair's proposal for
the Animal Management Program funding. I want to thank you again for
all your hard work and long hours on behalf of the community. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you again for being here this morning.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Fred Ruge. Fred.
MR. RUGE: Good morning. My name is Fred Ruge. I'd like to thank the
Council and the Chairman for allowing me to speak. I'd like to ask the
Council to consider earmarking special funds to inspect all the stop signs
and public safety signs on the island. I'll give you one example of why
I'm suggesting this. There was a sign across from Sears here by MEO and
it's quite a large sign and I noticed two little children playing underneath
it. But the wind was blowing the sign really hard and I stopped to see why
and one of the posts was completely rusted off and the other post was
partially rusted off.
And there's a go-cart just down, go-cart playground right across from
Foodland there. And these children go by there and they could have been
killed or maimed or even adults if it had blown off into the traffic. Well, I
brought this to the attention of Councilman Victorino and his son is not
the only one that hits homeruns, he stepped up to the plate, hit the
homerun, and got the sign repaired. And at this time I'd like to present to
him a special plaque of appreciation for his fast action. So, thank you very
much.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Ruge.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Fred.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sir, before you present that plaque. This is a Budget
and Finance-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Committee meeting. I'll call for a short recess so that
you can make the presentation to-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, can we ask questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Victorino. Oh, fine, yeah. Member Medeiros,-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Ruge, thank you for that. But I want to
give you some information as far as signs are concerned. That comes
under the responsibility of the Public Works Highways Division and
Traffic and Markings and Signs Division which they supposed to do and
do periodically. And the other second part is that not all signs belong to
the County.
Signs that are part of State highways are under the
jurisdiction of State Highways. So, there's two jurisdictions that have to
inspect and replace signs so, so that you know that.
MR. RUGE: Yeah. Well, I'd just like to make one comment, and Councilman
Victorino brought this to my attention at a talk story. Public safety of our
children and adults are the number one priority. And whether the State
owns the sign or the County owns the sign I think in, in the interest of
public safety that the County should take the lead. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
testifier?

Thank you.

Members, any more questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair. Thank you. Thank you, Fred. I
do appreciate it, but it's just my responsibility to do what is necessary like
I told you at the talk story hour. And I will clarify that, that sign in
particular, Mr. Chair, and Council Members did belong to the State and it
took me a couple of weeks to get to the right people to get that sign
changed. But, again, I agree with Fred that was a very dangerous
situation. I think it encumbers any of us driving around. We see a
dangerous situation to bring it to the attention of the various Departments.
That's not our, our job to do it but if I see something I'd rather say
something before something, somebody gets hurts. So, Fred, thank you
for bringing it to my attention, I did go down with my wife, did check it
out. You were right and it took me a while to get to the right people, but I
finally found out where it needed to go and they did get it fixed. So, thank
you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Fred-MR. RUGE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for your continued involvement.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. At this time the Chair will
call for a short recess. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:34 a.m.
9:35 a.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. The next testifier this morning is Rita
Barreras. Good morning.
MS. BARRERAS: Good morning. I'm Rita Barreras, I'm the Project Director
for the Maui Long Term Care Partnership. Thanks for this opportunity to
speak to you today. I wanted to talk to you today about long term care
issues here in Maui County, specifically on Maui where the partnership
has focused its energies. Our partnership is a coalition of organizations
and volunteers that have been working on developing and implementing a
strategic plan for long term care. But we have reached a crisis and I
wanted to share with you that at both Hale Makua and Kula Hospital I
describe it as there is no room at the inn.
In fact for the first time Hale Makua has had to stop admissions. They are
flying in 13 fly-in nurses from the mainland for the very first time. They
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have 10 empty beds that are, cannot be staffed due to worker shortages.
They have, they're currently down about 20 to 25 certified nurse aid
positions. And in fact when you hear about worker shortage around the
State, we all hear about shortages of nurses and doctors. But in reality it's
the nurse aid position that we are short in. So, we have been pursuing as a
way to sustain the partnerships efforts because we have done an awfully
lot of work and I believe provided a lot of leadership in addressing
workforce shortage and long term care issues in the State.
We have collaborated with Maui Community College to pursue grants that
we can seek from the Federal Government, private foundations, the State,
whomever, to help us in continuing our efforts to address workforce
shortages. One grant specifically that we are pursing is a $500,000
Department of Labor grant that would allow us, if I could just summarize
what we would do if we received that. It would be to create, pilot, and,
transfer a paraprofessional long term care career ladder that would lead to
120 enrollees in that program to complete courses and receive
certifications. And we would also enroll 120 students to receive feeding
assistant training through Hale Makua and Kula Hospital. That's a new
State program.
We would create, pilot, and transfer a compassionate caring course that
VITEC has developed and they're implementing at Hale Makua. We
would create a train the trainer project where we would take that course,
train more people here on Maui in compassionate caring and dealing with
the elderly and transfer that model Statewide. We would create technical,
technological support through the college using distance learning and
video streaming in support of that paraprofessional long term care career
ladder.
We would also develop a recruitment and outreach effort because what we
have found is that we need, we need a strong effort on the island to,
around education training and recruitment so that we get people into the
nurse aid program at Maui Community College. We feel that's one of the
strengths that the partnership brings. The Department of Labor grant for
instance calls for strong partnerships. We believe Maui is strongly
positioned to seek that particular grant and we are pursuing it.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. BARRERAS: Okay. There is a letter before you that summarizes what I've
just described and I'll be glad to answer any questions.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson, followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Rita. And because, you know, we
have ... (end of tape 1A) ... community college. I know that I spoke with
you a little bit about this. I had put in a request within my budget to
actually put in 250,000 for this. But, I think that to clarify this is not to be
confused with the nursing and healthcare program monies that we already
allocate to the university. Is that correct?
MS. BARRERAS: This is correct and in fact what the request would really be
would be to ask the Council to consider $250,000 as matching monies that
could be made available so that we could seek grants to create this new
career track ladder which is up to the nurse aid level. It's, it's an add-on
program to Maui Community College. So it would be above whatever
Maui Community College has requested before the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, with regard to the matching, do
you, you know, other than this other 500,000 grant, do you have other
monies that would be coming in besides that money?
MS. BARRERAS: We would be seeking other cash match. For instance, we are
currently funded by the Hawaii Community Foundation for an initiative
that partnership is undertaking. We would approach the foundation again.
We would pursue the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation again for monies,
the Commonwealth fund, whomever in the United States. There are many
foundations out there that we just need to seek. HMSA would be another
one that we would pursue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, do you have or does the University
have, assuming that these workforce development programs would go
forward, the problem we always have is are there enough teachers at the
University? How would this, you know, fit into that model? Are there
going to be sufficient teachers or would these actually help to bring in
additional monies to provide teaching positions?
MS. BARRERAS: The additional monies through the Department of Labor grant
would actually assume that Nancy Johnson, who heads up the nursing
program and Lois Greenwood, who heads up the VITEC side of that
program would assume responsibility for those new programs. They
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pretty well have their programs in place. It's a modification to, to the
program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But the, the teaching staff would be
there to address this different aspect of. . .
MS. BARRERAS: That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Molina.

Thank you.

Member Baisa, followed by Member

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning,-MS. BARRERAS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --Ms. Barreras. Thank you for coming.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm familiar with what you're doing. I'm familiar
with the grant application and I think that, you know, your statement that
this is a crisis is absolutely accurate. Because what we're seeing in our
elderly, aging population and then what we have available, that we just do
not have the people to fill the positions. And yet the positions are needed.
And it's very interesting because as the weeks go here at the County
Council I've learned more and more about individual Staff members who
are, you know, experiencing this right now and need help with elderly.
And we all know that this is just going to get worse. What I'm, what
would want to ask you is if the Council were to make this fund available
of this $250,000 which is to be used to leverage or to match,-MS. BARRERAS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --would you be amenable maybe to a proviso that
it would be available only if you are successful in securing other funds?
MS. BARRERAS: That was my understanding in terms of how the approach was
taken by Councilwoman Johnson that it would be a proviso added to that
effect. I think by limiting it to just the Department of Labor grant would
be concerning because we do want to pursue other types of grants.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right. And, I'm thinking that, you know, if
you're successful maybe in getting a grant from Hawaii Community
Foundation and they have a same matching requirement that, you know,
you would want that flexibility. But I think that the Council would also be
interested in the leveraging of it. Because we are asking people who come
to ask for money that they look at leveraging money on their own also so
that the County doesn't become the sole source offunding.
MS. BARRERAS: I, I agree and then that's the philosophy of the partnership. It
should be multiple partners participating with this community issue. So,
no problems.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank, thank you very much for all the work you
do on behalf of our seniors.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Rita.
MS. BARRERAS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony. Is this is a
one-time request or do you foresee the ML TC coming back to the Council
in future years for additional funding requests?
MS. BARRERAS: I would just project that we anticipate that the problem is
huge, and I would envision that we are going to be pursuing funding from
many sources for, for future years. The problem is significant, especially
for Maui County where we have the fastest growing senior population in
the nation. It's huge. And, that's why we believe we are in a leadership
role and part of that Department of Labor grant would export our
programs to the State, throughout the State.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And that Federal grant, is that a yearly
grant that's given out?
MS. BARRERAS: It's a first-time grant that would be offered to five or six
communities and it's specific to long term care and workforce
development. It would be for three years, up to 500,000, and of course,
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they obviously are looking at leveraging as well. And, I have an
opportunity this Thursday, we are presenting before the Joint House and
Senate Health Committees at the Legislature. And I will, of course, share
with them the same unique problems we have in Maui County and
hopefully we'll get their support for some funding next year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Great. Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama, followed by Member Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
please?

What is the State of Hawaii doing to assist you,

MS. BARRERAS: Currently, the State of Hawaii has been providing in-kind
services that's why we believe that we would like to approach them for
more cash contributions as we go forward.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have a request before the current legislative
session since they're in the process of trying to finalize their budget right
on this Friday just as we are?
MS. BARRERAS: Not this fiscal year. We were thinking more for next fiscal
year to begin those conversations although we have been working with our
legislators.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell us what type of in-kind assistance they
are providing you, please?
MS. BARRERAS: One of the huge pieces of in-kind that has been supported to
the Partnership is Executive Director Lillian Koller from the State
Department of Human Services has been working with us quite a bit to
study the County Building Code issues that have become across the State
some barriers to meeting safety needs of elders in like assisted living
facilities. So, Director Koller has put in an enormous amount of time to
support us in that regard. And she's actually funded a study out of her
Department's monies to, to look at this issue.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: When you mentioned that our County is the fastest
growing, regarding this component or section of our aging community,
where are these people coming from? Is this our own residents that are
just aging or do we have a big influx of people moving here who need the
services and Maui County's just the generous Santa Claus all the time?
MS. BARRERAS: Yeah. I know. Actually, we, I have worked with Dick
Mayer, a retired professor from Maui Community College who has
assisted us in developing our numbers. But it's both, it's in-migration, it's
people who are aging in place. We're, you know, you have to keep
studying these numbers because it's shifting all the time. But, we do
know that we refer to it as the tsunami of aging.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have that data available to share with us?
MS. BARRERAS: Yes. I do. I'll be happy to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We would ask if you would please share that.
MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would appreciate it. Thank you so much.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Thank you. One of my questions was
answered by Councilmember, Council Chair Hokama. But I do have
another one. These people that ... oh by the way, thank you for coming this
mormng.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I really appreciate it. I understand these
people who are in this program, all these aids, you know, a lot of it is a
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labor of love because they're very much not paid what I call a very good
wage. Would you kindly tell me and the public what the wage range for
these people in this area would be?
MS. BARRERAS: I would say that the feeding assistant position, which is new,
it's under the State, this new State law, I think I was advised it was $10
per hour. It can range up to $20 an hour, any of those positions in
between.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So when you, okay, so you said
feeding assistant. So, these, these aids have specific tasks that they're
charged with to take care of our, our elderly?
MS. BARRERAS: Yes. In fact the feeding assistant position is new. They're
only charge is to assist assigned elders with their feeding. They can't do
certain people like who have tracheotomy problems or whatever. But
that's new and Hale Makua is gearing up to begin to train people for that
position. What it will do though is free up time that nurse aids can devote
to other duties.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, again, I, I thank you and I think it's a
great idea that you can get certain people to do what I call certain areas so
it frees up the professionals or the highly trained professionals to do other
important tasks. But at $10 an hour I'm not sure how many you would
truly attract. I mean, I think whenever we start talking about these kinds
of positions and care, grant you, again I go back my opening statement
that you do it as a labor of love. You got to enjoy it, you gotta love doing
it, you gotta love our kupuna to do these things. Money is not, not the
predicator.
But, again, a living wage is very important. So, I think these kinds of
positions if they're going to be important enough to train and to develop,
then we need to continue to put what I call a living wage in front of it so
that we can attract the full-time, dedicated service provider that, that's so
necessary. And, I know outside the private sector is beginning to take a
lot of, a lot of leads in that area. A lot of homes are being opened up for
these types of facilities and assisting our seniors, but, there's just never
going to be enough. My question, the last question, Mr. Chair, if, I beg
your indulgence.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You mentioned the tsunami of seniors and
I've heard this by Councilwoman Baisa and others. And Councilmember
Hokama brought a good point. How many? And how many of our aging
population, resident, long term, and those who are coming in? Give me a
percentage. I'd like to know in my mind what kind of percentage we're
referring to? Because let's say 10,000 come in next year, 10,000.
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Of the 10,000 how many percentage, what
is the percentage of resident, long term, lived and worked here? And of
those who decide that oh, Hawaii and Maui is a beautiful place to live,
let's move there.
MS. BARRERAS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then they ask for the same services.
MS. BARRERAS: I'll put this in ballpark figures.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please.
MS. BARRERAS: But say that today's, I think the census had us at something
like 130,000 for total population in 2000 and I think we're roughly around
140,000. So figure about 11 to 12 percent of those people are 65 and over.
By the year 2020 the total population is going to grow to 160,000 and it's
probably going to be closer to a fourth of the population will be 65 and
over.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. But you missed my question. I'm
sorry. What percentage would be those who are coming in and those who
are aging that are living here right now?
MS. BARRERAS: That is the challenge. That is what we need to spend more
time studying. In fact I think it's a challenge even for Dick Mayer to
come up with that estimate. But it, it's a signal to us that we need to really
bring some attention to that, and so by sustaining the efforts of the
partnership we can continue our research in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think that's an important question
that needs to be answered. Because, again, we know how many people
live here, we know how many people are retirement age, people my age
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that are going to retire in the next 10 or 15 years that we become seniors.
How many will come in from the outside is a real challenge 'cause you
can kind of predict what's around you, but you can't predict ... if you
cannot know what kind of percentages is coming in year and year out, it's
going to make it extremely difficult to gear up to be, to take on this
tsunami-MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you have referred to. So, thank you very
much-MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
--and I hope soon you can get that
information 'cause I would and I think many of us would like to know
that.
MS. BARRERAS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Chair.
testimony and the information you presented.

Thank you for your

MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS:
annually?

How many nurses does MCC graduate

MS. BARRERAS: That number I don't know.
Johnson or somebody from the college.

I'd have to refer to Nancy

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And is there more of a need for RN s,
LPNs, or CNAs?
MS. BARRERAS: We've heard testimony from Hale Makua that indicates that
nurse aids are really the priority right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right now.
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MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Okay. And ...
MS. BARRERAS: And if I may just add there's an article in your, attached to
your letter that describes that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I didn't see the article, I was going to ask
you about that. It, I don't think one was attached to mine anyway.
MS. BARRERAS: Oh, I hope so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
MS. BARRERAS: I'll get that to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. But, thank you for the
information.
MS. BARRERAS: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Ms. Barreras, you raise a interesting question
along with Council Chair Hokama. And that is who pays or who should
be paying for all of this? Can you tell us a little bit about the issues that I
know places like Hale Makua and Kula have and also the independent
agencies that are providing in-home care and senior services with
reimbursement rates.
MS. BARRERAS: Okay. Let me, let's see if! can clarify your question. But the,
the main funder of long term care services is Medicaid. And one of the
areas that we will strongly advocate for with the legislature is it's very
tough for Hale Makua and Kula Hospital to be managing their long term
care population with the low reimbursement rates that they receive from
the Federal Government and the State.
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So, there's a new program coming along that I think you should find
interesting and would invite Tony Krieg to maybe come and speak to you
about it. It's the program called Program for All Inclusive Care for the
Elderly. It's exciting. It's a new model for the long term care curriculum.
And Maui has been designated as one of 15 sites in the country as a pay
site, rural pay site. But what it does is it offers an alternative for nursing
home eligible clients to receive care from an interdisciplinary team of
doctors, nurses, nutritionists, and they can remain at home. So, Tony is, is
exploring all sorts of options about how to make this work. But the one
thing that we're all going to have to support him on is the State has got to
come up with a reasonable reimbursement rate or he can't pursue it. So
that, that's a major issue in Medicaid and for our providers locally.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Could you also comment on Kupuna Care and the
eligibility for that?
MS. BARRERAS: Yes. Kupuna Care is a State-funded program and it's tied
with the Older Americans Act programs which are Federally and State
funded. But essentially that program allows elders to stay at home for as
long as possible and avoid costly institutional care. So, that one again we
have a waiting list, you have to be age 60 and over. You have to meet a
certain number of activities of daily living to qualify for that program. But
the reality is, the kupuna tell us they want to stay home for as long as
possible and age in place. So, programs like that ought to be funded.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But it doesn't matter for those who quality for
either program whether they are local residents or not.
MS. BARRERAS: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And in the case of Kupuna Care income is not an
eligibility criteria.
MS. BARRERAS: That's correct. Yes. It's for, under the Older Americans Act
you cannot impose an income requirement. In Medicaid, you do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So I, I think it's important because I think there is
a lot of misunderstanding that you have to be low income to qualify for
Kupuna Care. That is not true. For Medicaid, you do.
MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MS. BARRERAS: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Barreras, thank you
for being here.
MS. BARRERAS: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, it's really alarming to hear you
say that Maui County is the fastest growing aging population in the nation.
And what is that based on?
MS. BARRERAS: Well, it's, well, it's based on one, we live longer here. The
average life span, we lead it in the country for, I think it's average of age
80 for living the longest in the nation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean is there some kind of study that you
found that shows increased aged population in other States so that you can
compare us with them?
MS. BARRERAS: Yes. In fact I believe the State Executive Office on Aging has
been doing those studies and we can get that information.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Please do-MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --because it's very alarming.
MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What that says to me is that we have an
increasing out-migration of our youth-MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and an increasing in-migration of retirees.
Pretty soon we're going to be Florida.
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MS. BARRERAS: Yes. It's, it's something that we, it's alarming and we have
been working to prevent it as much as we can. And thank goodness for
the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation grant that we received to do all this
studies and analysis and prepare us. But it's here, and we, we need to
continue our efforts. I guess that's what I'm advocating for.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. We need to continue our efforts
as this body too, to change that.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you
very much, Rita.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier, Anne Trygstad.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Good morning, Council Members. My name is Anne
Trygstad. I'm a registered nurse. I work at Kula Hospital as a
Community Project Coordinator. But I'm also the Co-Chair of the Maui
Long Term Care Partnership Policy and Advocacy Committee. And, it's
an honor to be able to address you today. Allow me to say that Rita has
given you some insight into the work that we have been doing. But it is
not all inclusive. Allow me to say that one of the projects we're working
on is creating more affordable elder care housing that would also have a
segment reserved for critical workforce so that they would have affordable
housing.
Allow me to say that this is a think tank that has already been recognized
nationally. The Wall Street Journal was requesting information on our
work because of the dramatic changes that we've already created in the
State of Hawaii. And to have the loss of this type of momentum in this
State and in this County would be most unfortunate. Lillian Koller,
Director of Department of Human Services not only has provided $50,000
for a Nationwide study of building regulations so that we can create
optimal housing for our elderly and alternatives to institutions, but she's
also granted, I believe, $40,000 in consulting time with architects to help
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our Building Departments find the optimal building templates for each
county to meet our unique geographic needs in the care of our elderly.
The Robert Wood Johnson grant for $750,000 kick-started this program
four years ago and it will end January 31 S\ in 2008. The partnership has
over 100 participants including every major provider in the County: Hale
Makua, MEO, Hale Mahaolu, Kula Hospital, Maui Memorial, because all
of these providers are faced with two things, a critical workforce shortage,
and secondly, a critical shortage of infrastructure. Within the last four
years the Maui Long Term Care Partnership has doubled the foster family
homes available on this island. It has added an approximately 20 more
beds out in the community as an alternative to institutionalization.
Each one of those beds is worth 70 to 140k per year. So if you calc [sic]
that out that's saving approximately $1. 5 to $3 million a year. That's just
one of the projects that this partnership has accomplished which is why the
Wall Street Journal wants to write an article on little Maui as finding
solutions to a nationwide epidemic that the entire country is facing. So,
allow me to say if we are headed towards becoming Florida, it doesn't
mean we don't need to build up the infrastructure and the workforce to
deal with it and it's right now Statewide, every single acute hospital has
wait-listed elderly 'cause there are no places to put them.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. TRYGSTAD: You know, we will be meeting in two days with both the
House and Senate Health Committees to discuss the barriers to creating
long term care infrastructure. They're not building nursing homes
anymore because they're all in the red ink because of the poor Federal
reimbursement which is why we have to grow community home-based
services. Maui has a unique opportunity, we have a huge partnership
including a close collaboration with Maui Community College to help
build workforce and to help design unique alternative infrastructure for
our elderly to support aging with aloha.
So, this Council, I hope, will support us. Allow me to say one of our other
projects has already saved close to $50 million over the last four years for
the entire State of Hawaii. So, this little manini group of people on Maui
has already implemented incredible innovative change and I can only
plead with you to continue to support the collaboration of this think tank
to help not only resolve Maui's critical long term care shortage, but also to
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create solutions for the entire State of Hawaii and allow us to export it to
the mainland.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MS. TRYGSTAD: That's the best thing that we can do is to export our culture of
aloha to the mainland for our aging population nationwide. And allow me
to say I believe through this partnership Hawaii will make a national
contribution to the long term care crisis.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. First of all,
thank you very much. I'm always happy to see someone take the lead and
not wait till the problem arise and then try to solve it. So, thank you and
your group for your great work and we hope to continue to support your
efforts. I wanted to know a little bit on that $50 million savings you just
mentioned a moment ago.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please. Could you expound on that a little
bit because I think people need to hear that?
MS. TRYGSTAD: Allow me to say that as Co-Chair of the Policy and Advocacy
Committee and my Co-Chair is Jo Anne Johnson, we wrote a proposal
which was accepted by the State by Director Lillian Koller for Medicaid
called the Going Home program. At that point the State had capped off
the Foster Family Home program. Each year the Legislature would assign
a set amount of dollars and once those were spent they could no longer
admit to that program. So we had a mismatch. We had foster family
homes with no funding but empty beds and then we had acute hospitals
throughout the State with wait-listed elderly with no place to go.
Our proposal was to create a toggle switch that if they were wait-listed in
an institution that Medicaid would flex and allow those that were
wait-listed to be funded to go to the less expensive, more affordable, more
appropriate long term care setting. Thus far I believe over 700 people
have been able to use that little toggle switch to leave acute hospitals at
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10 times the cost, go to foster family homes, and each one of those has
saved approximately $70,000 per head, per year in Medicaid funding. But
it's also relieved the hospitals that are losing an equivalent amount where
they're getting no funding for the occupancy of a bed that should be
generating income of about $1,000 a day. They're getting zero to $300 a
day income for these very much needed acute hospital beds.
It's helping relieve the congestion in the hospitals at approximately $700,
$600 a day, which if you do the math whatever that ends up being. I can't
do it right now. But, that has calc'd [sic] out to about $48 million. And
that was a proposal that our little group made that got adopted Statewide
and has impacted every single acute hospital in the State and improved the
quality of life for our elderly. But instead of leaving them warehoused in
acute hospitals that don't have the staff to provide the social needs that
they need or the care they've now been able to move into appropriate long
term care settings that are prepared to provide the socialization and the
care that they need-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I ...
MS. TRYGSTAD: --at approximately a third of the cost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I, I think you, you hit the
nail on the head. Many people as they age feel like if they're put in a
institution, it's the last step before going. And, and that tends to ...
MS. TRYGSTAD: Actually accelerate their going.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much. I'll use those words.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Failure to thrive.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you very much. And that's
exactly what I was leading to. And, I'm glad what you've done and your
group, and continue the good work and we'll do what we can to support
you. I have one more question, you said earlier on the 20 beds you save
$1. 5 to $3 million over the last year. Could you expound on that one,
please?
MS. TRYGSTAD: Sure. Seventy, okay, those are for Medicaid eligible c1ients-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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MS. TRYGSTAD: --that are wait-listed. By increasing the bed capacity to
20 more beds available--and by the way, we were full but now with these
new beds, you know, we've got more beds--we save 70K per head for the
Medicaid, which would be paying that much to have them housed in a
hospital. But we're also saving approximately 70K for the hospital that's
losing tons of dollars per year housing them and not getting reimbursed.
So, allow me to say the number one issue for the Healthcare Association
of Hawaii, which is all the hospitals, is wait-listed patients.
That's their number one situation this year that they're demanding
solutions for Statewide because of the loss of income. And that's part of
the reason why I was told that Saint Francis ended up in the significant red
ink that ultimately led to their demise was the wait list because it's about
$3 to $6 million a year for Maui Memorial out of pocket, and that's why
it's so critical. We are, we're not using our tax dollars wisely. If it costs
us 9K a month to house somebody that's Medicaid eligible in the hospital
when we could be housing them for 2,500, which housing do you think is
better?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. You make a great point there.
MS. TRYGSTAD:
And there's 40 wait-listed people minimum at Maui
Memorial Hospital right now, that's 25 percent of the only acute beds on
the island tied up with people that shouldn't be there. And that's
impacting the entire community because it's decreasing access to those
beds. It's a clog in the ER. So healthcare delivery in total is affected by
our lack of infrastructure and our lack of funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. TRYGSTAD: And so allow me to say this group has been incredibly
effective in triggering change not only locally but at a Statewide level. I
can only encourage you as a positive investment for the County ofMaui to
continue to fund the expertise that has been collected in this group,
including the Chair, who happens to be the former Executive Director of
the Office on Aging of the State of Colorado, and we're getting her for
free.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Mr. Victorino' s--

Thank you very much.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
paSSlOn--

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

And with your

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --it's very difficult to say no. Thank you
very much.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you so much for all the efforts you
and your group are doing on behalf of all of us who are soon going to be
in that situation. So we certainly do appreciate it. You mentioned a Wall
Street Journal article. Can you give us a reference for that?
MS. TRYGSTAD: At this point it hasn't come out yet, but they called the
community, the CPOA, Community Partnership on Aging, the nationwide
organization and specifically because of the incredible amount of dollars
that through our proposals, and this is, those are just two of the proposals.
We've already saved about, by the care core situation with the
76 volunteers that we created that's already saving about 150K per year
locally by generating new volunteer hours. So, these are just a few of the
projects that have been stimulated by this group and The Wall Street
Journal asked for us to send all of our data so they can use us as the model
group of the type of results that the Robert Wood Johnson grants have
resulted in nationwide. And at this point I'm being told that we're one of
the top nationwide.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
congratulations.

Okay.

Thank you very much and

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just one quick question for you, or maybe, Rita
might have to answer. But I know that various institutions use various
definitions ... (end of tape IB) ... and you know, when we talk about the
aging population we look around the room and there are various aging,
various stages of aging. I know that AARP sends you an invitation when
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you're 50, Office on Aging says 55. There's others that do 60, 65. What,
when you talk about the aging tsunami, what are you talking about?
MS. TRYGSTAD: Well. ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: All of the above?
MS. TRYGSTAD: This is the Maui Long Term Care Partnership, it definitely
becomes significant when the person is no longer able to function
independently in society, when they start to need assistance, long term
care, i.e. through our very, very important community groups such as
MEO and Maui Adult Day Care. It's a continuum. We're depending on
the individuals needs. Do they need help with one activity of daily living?
Do they need help with three or five activities of daily living? Usually
you're institutionalized if you need four, assistance with four to five
activities of daily living which includes dressing, eating, transportation,
bathing, incontinence care. So as your needs increase and it varies but
usually at around 65, 4 to 5 percent of the population from that age up
needs some assistance. And, that, and by the time you're 80, well, a much
larger percentage needs assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Isn't it my understanding that over-80 group is
really rapidly growing.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Right. And I believe that Dick Mayer will be able to
demonstrate that it is our own, you know, native, you know, population.
We have a certain percentage of incoming retirees, but our own elderly in
the State are aging significantly. We have the ... because I believe the
culture of Hawaii and the climate is so beautiful people live longer here.
The sunshine, whatever. And also we have a strong sense of ohana so the
family for many years is taking care of its own. But at this point that
system is breaking down, when young people are working two to three
jobs to be able to live here. They're not able to meet the needs of caring
for their elderly so our ohana system is starting to get impacted.
Meanwhile, because we had that system, not only do we have the longest
living, fastest growing aging population, we are the most under-bedded,
long term care State in the nation. We have the least amount of beds, we
have a very narrow margin for acute hospital beds. If we have a disaster,
we're going to be squeaking by, by the skin of our teeth with our acute
hospitals. And, you know, having extra people in them that shouldn't be
in them even increases the risk greater for the whole population. The
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whole population is placed at risk because of our lack of long term care
infrastructure and workforce.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And thank you very much. You make a very
eloquent case and I think it's important that everyone who lives here
understands this crisis. Because many people are in denial and are not
really pre ... , we're not preparing and it scares me, because like I said
everyday one of us is affected by needing to care for an elderly person or
possibly having an incident ourselves. Thank you so much.
MS. TRYGSTAD: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Members, any more
questions? Thank you again for being here this morning.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Thanks. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, Anne Trygstad was the last testifier that
signed up for public testimony prior to the meeting. Is there anyone out
there that would like to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing
none. The Chair would like to close public testimony if there's no
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Public testimony is closed .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2008 BUDGET (e.c. No. 07-29,07-87 and 07-109)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, this morning we'll do our second pass on the
Budget and we're going to be starting our discussion with revenues. As
we move along in the Budget process I will ask for a consensus for
working numbers in the Budget. And if we do have consensus, then we
won't come back to those numbers again. This will provide us with some
time to discuss on other matters in regards to the Budget. Before we start,
I'd like to call on Mr. Taguchi if he has anything to say.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, the only question that Staff has is that will we
be going down every line item or only the items that were talked about? I
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mean in terms of an area, are we going to be going just by area or down
every item?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Chair is recommending that we go down every
item real quickly. The ones that we had issues yesterday to reconfirm that
we still have issues on those. And once we decide that we have consensus
on most of these numbers, then we'll hit the, the ones that we need to
revisit and work on those.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
yesterday, sir?

Are we working from the same handout from

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. We are.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask for one short recess then.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Short recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:15 a.m.
10:22 a.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). " The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, as I had said earlier we're going to
do the second pass through, and if we do have consensus, we won't come
back to that particular item. For instance, on Page 1, when you look at
revenues 2-24, Transit Accommodation Tax, if you don't have any
questions to that and we have consensus, we're not coming back to that
item. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, as we went through the Budget
we were dealing with detail pages. And now we're dealing with summary
pages and it makes it difficult to, because there's so much, to actually
ascertain where you made cuts. And, so as you go through if the, if the

- 36 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

difference, you know, if you could give us kind of a summary of what the
cuts are?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that we-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --it triggers for us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For instance, yesterday we went through the first pass,
Revenue 2-4, there was an issue in regards to the hotel rate as far as
increasing the hotel rate. So we say that we're going to come back to that
Issue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: But if we do have consensus, then we're not revisiting
the issue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. I understand that, Chair. My question
is we went through this rather rapidly yesterday and we're going, and we
are dealing with summary totals, not details. So, if you are cutting
something from the Mayor's Budget in a summary total it would be
helpful if we knew exactly what was being cut and maybe the page
number of it. So that ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Detail. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know what I'm saying?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Then what we'll do, yeah, when you come to those kind
of issues, we'll put it on the side and revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Okay. Fine. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so, Mr. Chair, just for my clarification.
Anytime we go have consensus like say, for example, Transit
Accommodation Tax.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We have consensus. Then that one's off the
table, we move on, and we don't revisit that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just so I'm clear on that, 'cause just,
there's been times when I thought we just leave it alone and it was okay
and then I could come back to it later. So, anything we say, okay, then we
don't revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And that would provide us more time to debate on the
other ones that we have concerns on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then just one more clarification, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, if there is something that we had a
question on yesterday, we're going to set that aside.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You don't want us to make our pitch or
debate it today? You just want to-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Once we ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --reconfirm.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. Once we reconfirm whatever we agreed
yesterday, then we'll come back.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Otherwise we'll be spending a lot of time as we go
through these pages.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So what,-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --so what, so I'm perfectly clear, what we agree
on we want to define that and then we don't talk about it anymore?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that's the first, what we're looking for right
now.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Questions? Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, maybe if I put it in another manner it
might assist you and the Committee. When the, my understanding is when
the Chair asks for consensus, if the nine Members have general agreement,
we move on. If one Member has an issue, a proposal, a concern, an
adjustment, we will return to that. Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That was the Chair's intent. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, we'll start with Real Property Taxes.
Consensus on the Circuit Breaker amount?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Adjustments?

Okay.

Consensus on the Reverse Circuit Breaker

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Consensus on the Certified Real Property Tax number?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Adjustment?

Consensus

on

the

Certified

Circuit

Breaker

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ifwe have, if any of us have concerns over
the increase of the homeowner rate from $1.85 to $2.00, that would affect
all of those figures you just read off, correct?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member ... Staff member Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, that is, the circuit breaker adjustment is an
estimate from the Administration. That number would not change. The,
the area we're going through right now is basically to back out the
estimates made earlier by the Administration in terms of real property tax
revenues. And to come and insert in total the certified real property tax
estimate based upon the certified rolls or the certified assessment list that
was presented to us last week. When, if a Member wants to propose to
increase or decrease a rate, then we would set that line item separately so
that we know, we understand the increase or decrease in revenue. So, if
Members have proposals to increase or decrease rates, then I believe they
should make that at the appropriate time and we'll set up a line item for it
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or, or adjust the current line items that exist in the Chair's Proposed
Budget.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In that case, Mr. Chair, I would like us to
revisit all the rates because we don't-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --have all the rates listed here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson, we're going to go right down.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
now?

Are we're going to revisit the rates right

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: As far as the Chair's and I do believe we do have the
rates in Appendix B. Members, you got that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yes, Sir.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, I'm going to be utilizing Appendix B on the
tax rates which is on Page 2 and we'll go right down, and if you have any
questions on any of them that either needed to be added into the Chair's
proposal, we'll set that aside. Any questions? If not, we will go into
improved residential.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know the worksheet that Staff gave us
to adjust real property tax rates like this? Did you folks do one for your
proposal so that we could see-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. We did.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the actual?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we get a copy of that and maybe go
on until that's ready? Because I think that would make it much clearer to
us, it shows, it's a comparative analyst of what the different rates would
end up effectuating.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. At this time we'll move on and we'll get
that information for you in regards to the Chair's recommendation based
on the worksheet that was prepared earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. We'll go to current charges for, Charges
for Current Services. Again, this is Revenue 2-24. Do we have
consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One of the things that I would like the Members to
consider in our being ... I'm going to try and get some written copies made
for the Committee shortly, Chairman, is the twilight rates for Waiehu
Municipal Golf Course.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
revisit this.

Okay.

Thank you.

And then we'll come back and

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Transit Accommodation Tax. Members,
questions? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We can't change this.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That was my question. Is there, is
there, I know this comes from the State. Okay. I'm going to ask a dumb
question, but do we ever or do we have any ability to ask for more?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. It's already set by percentages.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: By percentage.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, this is an estimate forecast of potential
future revenues based on historic data. And in the past Council has
revised this number according to what it believes is the forecast for the
upcoming fiscal year, Chairman. In the past we've been conservative,
we've reduced TAT revenues by millions of dollars. Should something
happen, Chairman, again we've always tried to take the conservative
approach whereby if we realize more than what we budget, then of course
it's a surplus. The Mayor can send a supplemental or it goes into next
year's carryover savings category. But we do have the ability if we
believe what you're hearing from the market that the market is
anticipating a correction or the Dow over a period of time may drop as
much as 10 percent of its value in the upcoming near future. Then again,
it impacts on what dividends it will pay and what it impacts discretionary
spending for travel to Hawaii we have no idea, Chairman. But if you're
looking at the financial reports, it may be wise to make an adjustment
because if they don't come, we don't get this money.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. So you want to revisit this number?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Public service ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If I could just have a clarification from the
Budget Director. What did they base this figure on? How did they
calculate the figure? Make their estimate?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Director.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members. The revenue overview in your
Program Budget explains part of the process for this. The Finance
Department looks at several years experience, determines the ratio, and
based on that ... those ratios, they will come up with a projection. As
Chair, Chair Hokama mentioned it is based on past experience and a
projection.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any more questions? Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Consensus on a Public Service Company
Tax?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. License, Permits, Others?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fuel and Franchise Taxes?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Special Assessments?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Other Intergovernment.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: License, Permits, Others.
include all Planning Department permits--

Would that

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and building permits?
MR. T AGUCHI: I believe the Planning Department permits would be included
here in this category unless those permit fees go into a special fund. But
general licenses and permits would be in this category.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, I would like to make a proposal
that we increase the permit fee for million dollar-plus houses. So I think
this ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're going to revisit this, Member Anderson.
We'll just put it on the side.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Moving on. Second page, Interfund Transfers.
Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Wait. This we gotta come back to.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We've got a bond ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I'm going to go to the next one.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Huh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Bond?

You're talking about the next item?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
there.

Oh.

Yeah.

Bond, Lapsed

I thought you were already

CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I know these are summary amounts.
So-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if we change something further on in the
budget we'll have to come back and change these anyway.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Exactly. Yeah. Bond, Lapsed Bond?
questions on the increase for Baldwin Avenue Bike Path?

We had

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this. Carryover Savings?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can Mr. Pablo reassure the Committee that this, these
numbers are still appropriate for us to consider this morning as what's
going to be there at the close of the Fiscal Year?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Pablo.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Chair Hokama. Members.
This information was presented last Thursday when Director Kalbert
Young from the Finance Department presented a certification of real
property tax. At that time he also presented the park assessments and also
the carryover savings. These are the figures we rely on as of last
Thursday. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chairman, that's good news for me and good
news for this Committee, because then we, I can, we can anticipate no
further Fiscal Year 2007 Budget amendments, revisions.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because we relying on these numbers to craft the next
Budget. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Yesterday we had a question on the Water
Supply Fund. I think Member Anderson, you had a question on that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we'll revisit the Carryover Savings and concentrate
on the Water Supply Funds. Moving down to Operating Budget. Office
of Council Services, we did have some questions, Members, in regards
to ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In this area I believe we have sufficient funds. We
can, if the Members wish regarding the item of individual Member's
office amounts and, and the majority of the Members want increases, we
can make an internal adjustment of the other categories we have to
accommodate that request. It's not necessary to add more money to the
Budget.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members? Member Baisa, followed by
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I appreciate the commitment by the Chair, but I
want to be sure that it doesn't get lost in the process.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And again I echo that same thing, same
sentiment that I appreciate the, the commitment, but I want to make sure
that somewhere it is, you know, as a line item so that we know that our,
our people could be taken care of as, as we stated yesterday, Mr. Chair.
So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll revisit this. Office of the County
Clerk. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Civil Defense we had an issue in regards to
some of the expansion positions and we'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, that was also the one where I put in
for the ham radio operator as well.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly. Yeah. That's why I'm going to revisit along
with the ham radio. Page 3, Department of Corporation Counsel.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Department ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Taguchi. Staff member Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: In regards to Office of Corporation Counsel there are, there's a
bill, a proposed bill regarding the pay increases which we'll be taking up
later. Just wanted to mention that, that will be probably discussed I think
your, you wanted to have the bills, proposed bills discussed tomorrow.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
MR. TAGUCHI: So, I just wanted to let Members know that although you're
having consensus here we will be, we will be talking about that bill later.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which bill?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The pay raise bill for-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department of Environmental Management. Members,
the Administration Program any, we didn't have any issues on that.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Abandoned Vehicle, Scrap Metal, and
White Goods Program. We didn't have, we did have an issue in regards to
that regarding a rewards program. So, we'll revisit. The Administration
and Engineering Program, Wastewater Fund. We didn't have any issues
on that. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Wastewater Reclamation Facilities
Program. Wastewater Fund. No issues? Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I had asked the Members to consider in regards to the
overall expansion position request that we, if we wish to add the positions,
and there's many that we should truly consider, I still believe that with the
vacancies it may not be necessary for us to put the money in relation to
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this expanded EPs. And so I just would ask how you wish to move
forward on that until we make a decision?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll put that on the side and we'll revisit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Turning on to, Members, at this time
completed Page 3 and we're going to be on Page 4. But before we go on
Page 4 the Chair would like call our mid-morning break and we'll return
at 11 :00. This meeting is in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:42 a.m.
11:04 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Before we go to Page 4, Members, the
Chair's intentions is to complete the review real quickly. Hopefully, we
can get done as far as the second pass, so that this afternoon we have time
to discuss the issues that you have in a more lengthy discussion. So, turn
to Page 4. The Administration program we did have an issue and the issue
is in regards to the deletion of EP for Operations Superintendent. We'll
come back to the Administration program, Solid Waste Fund.
Contribution to General Fund, ERS, and FICA? Any issues on there?
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

The Contribution to General Fund, Health Fund.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Debt Service. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Administrative Overhead Charges. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Landfill Disposal Program. Consensus?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Coming back to that.
Program, Solid Waste. Consensus?

Residential Collection

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Diversion Program, Solid Waste. Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Coming back to that. Administration Risk ... this
is Department of Finance, Administration Risk Management Program,
Treasury, Page 5. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Accounts Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Purchasing Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Financial Service. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Countywide Service Center Annual Lease Cost.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just so everyone is clear, Mr. Chairman. This is only
the lease rent for this one Department only. Correct?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Continuing on. Countywide Cost.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's all going to change. That, that's going
to change, right?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --those are the things that once, once we start
wrapping up the Budget, then the, I believe the Staff with the Budget
Office will be making the appropriate adjustments-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Adjustments.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the fringe areas. So,-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I would just ask that the Members take that in
consideration, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Question, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're transferring out three million for the
new Post-Employment Obligations Fund?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, so, do we normally have additional
monies in this fringe benefits area in order to ... (end of tape 2A) ...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Like Mr. Hokama said we may have some and we'll
leave this open because Staff need to provide more information. Staff.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla. In discussions with the Finance Director it's
our understanding that there is in the Mayor's proposed budget there's
$3 million in the fringe benefit for the unfunded liabilities.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Specifically added.
MR. TAGUCHI: Well it's, I think it's like for the ERS but both the ERS and the
EUTF lie within the fringe benefits category.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Great. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Bond Issuance and Debt
Service. We did have some issues in, regards to ...
MR. PABLO: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBERJOHNSON: Oh. That's ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Budget Director.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair. With regard to Council Chair Hokama's
question yesterday regarding the debt service whether it included all the
proposed floating of bonds for Fiscal Year '08. I spoke to Director
Kalbert Young this morning and he confirms that. He also references
Page 7 of a handout he gave on March 23 rd regarding Countywide and it'll
show it there the 36.08 million. It does cover all issuance of bonds
proposed for Fiscal Year '08.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. Thank you, I'm relieved that the Finance
Director has projected out the ability for us to go shortly for a County
bond float. But I would also ask the Members to please keep in mind that
when they look at this, this not, this does not take into consideration our
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trust programs or, or special programs including the Department of Water
Supply's debt. I think we keep that in a separate category-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Separate. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
--so when we add the two, my understanding
regarding debt service is that we looking at, what, $42 million worth of
monies to take care of debt load?
MR. PABLO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Supplemental Transfer to the Golf
Fund. We did have some questions in regards to that. So, we'll revisit.
Supplemental Transfer to the Solid Waste Fund. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I didn't think so. Didn't we have questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'd like to revisit that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that a no?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's what I heard, I heard a no. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Could I, could I just get clarification.
Because this was the supplemental transfer that we had been speaking
about. If, if we, you know, if the majority agree with the shifting of the
cost into, I guess, the, you know, from the General Fund. Then I think
that's fundamentally the questions that we should ask right now. Do, do
we all support that? Because as Council Chair Hokama brought up
yesterday it's either you're going to pay it one way or you're going to pay
it another way. So ...
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. We'll revisit the Interfund Transfers which is on
Page 2, top of the page. So, we'll come back to that. Insurance Programs
and Self Insurance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, this is where I had made a proposal
to increase the amount. Again, I'm not going to make an issue of it but I
want to find out from Staff if we put money in the Post-Employment
Obligation Fund because I guess we haven't created all the parameters for
which we can get money in and out of that fund. My question would be
because it's easier to move, I guess, monies out of insurance programs and
self insurance for claims and settlements. Is it equally as easy to move
money out of the Post-Employment Obligation Fund?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, we have prepared at the Chairman's request a
bill to establish this fund. Within the bill is a description of what the fund
can do. So, in terms of your question this fund would be able to pay for
any liabilities that comes due, however, it may take a Council action to
appropriate the money out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and the only reason, Mr. Chair,
that I'm concerned about sticking all our eggs in one basket is because
with the insurance programs and self-insurance it has been a little less
difficult to transfer money out of that. And I know that's been one of our
parking spots. So, I, I would like the Members to consider this particular
area as one of the areas because we have a lot of obligation. So, anyway-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I would to revisit it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding of your proposal regarding the
creation of the post-employment fund, one of the items that I'm sure we're
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going to have discussion on at the appropriate time is the benefit of the
non-lapsing of the funds.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that it would be, stay, you know, this lapses after
12 months, the self-insurance program. The advantage for us from our
credit standpoint, when we go before the bond raters and we deal with
bond counsels and we deal with underwriters, is that the post
unemployment fund does not lapse. That would be the big advantage for
this County, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, then if that's the case because that
has been a problem for us continuously as long as I can be assured that
there is, if there was a Budget amendment where we needed to transfer
money out for some purpose that, you know, might not be directly related
to those post-employment obligations. I guess we can move money
around as long as the Mayor makes a Budget amendment. But, if, if the
money that's going to the post-employment fund, that still has to have a
Budget amendment that's generated from the Administration. Is that
correct?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: As I, Corporation Counsel, if you could.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, according to the draft Post-Employment
Obligations Fund Bill, appropriations from the fund shall be by ordinance.
So it would need a Council, Council action to do appropriations. In the
beginning of the, of the bill it does say that in adopting each Fiscal Year's
Budget and capital program Council may make appropriations to the fund.
And, with regards to lapsing of funds, this fund is set up, my
understanding is that this fund is set up like our other special funds. It's
not set up like our emergency fund, you know, which is the fund that is set
up pursuant to Charter. Those funds and emergency fund don't lapse.
The funds in our special fund are re-appropriated through a general budget
provision. If you look in our budget ordinance there is a provision that
states that the special, the balances that are remaining in our special funds
get re-appropriated to the following year. In, you know, the same fund
gets re-appropriated. So that's how these funds--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Accrue.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --don't lapse. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I appreciate that because that I
think is also one of my concerns. So, Mr. Chair, just on the last comments
that I made then, don't revisit it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because that feature alone is worth, I guess,
going through some machinations if we need to get money out of it for
other purposes. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you. I'd like to revisit it,
'cause I'm trying to see if I can get some money from that for pursing the
$50,000 grant for the Hana Seniors Affordable Housing and Day Care
Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Moving on. Page 6. Item NO.7 on top
of the page, Adjustment to 1 Percent of Net Real Property Tax Revenue
which is the Open Space Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep. Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Revenue?

Along with the 2 Percent of Net Real Property Tax
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Revisit? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Wait, are you on the next one, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Number ... on Page 6?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're on No.9, General Costs. Consensus? Overhead
Reimbursements. We are moving monies. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. 11, Transfer to Emergency Fund. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. 12, Transfer to the First-Time Home Buyers
Revolving Fund. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Revisit? Okay. No. 13, this
Post-Employment Obligation Fund. Consensus?

IS

Transfer to the

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fourteen, Supplemental Transfer to the Highway
Fund. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We go to Department of Fire and Public Safety.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, excuse me.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I had a question on this. While I support it,
I'm just wondering if anyone's checked to see if, you know, we only have
one company doing the asp halting. And, so, if we doubled the number of
projects in one year can they physically accomplish it? And, number one,
I'd hate to have, you know, $1 million sitting there and just lapsing. And
is there any indication that this will, I guess, motivate somebody else to
open up an asphalt?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We hope it will. Based on the total amount of monies
that we're going to be spending for repaving this is not only the 2.75 that
the Chair had increased for each community district but also we do have
projects that calls for repaving. Good example is Piiholo Road, $1 million
to repave Piiholo and Olinda Road. So, we got big items in there in
regards to repaving. Hopefully, it creates some interest in another
company coming to Maui to help us repave some of our roads.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I hope so, too, Chair. Thank you. I'm just
wondering if Staff could check with Public Works and see what their take
is on this.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Yes. And the other thing that they're working on, too,
is the probability of utilizing concrete as another material to provide us
with some repaving, so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Public Works is looking into that or Staff?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Public Works. That's another recommendation that is
being made for use on our highways, so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Thank you, Chair.
Just a point of
information. I think because, you know, currently we only have one
paving company. I think to make it as efficient and maximize the use of
that company, Public Works has to look into doing an area almost all at
once instead of going from one district to another district, go back to the
first district. We need to prioritize and then we need to do that area one
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time while we have the contractor.
And that, that should be a
consideration by Public Works and we'll certainly follow up on that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And, Members, let me remind you we, we
still have '07 Fiscal Year Budget that is also considering repaving of a lot
of roads here on Maui. So, we have that also, yeah, as well as some of the
monies in '06 that are encumbered but the repaving hasn't been done yet.
So, hopefully, it stirs some interest. Okay. Members, moving on to
Department of Fire and Public Safety. AdministrationlMaintenance
Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Training Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. FirelRescue Operations. I do have a
checkmark from yesterday in regards to FirelRescue Operations program.
Consensus or some ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Fire Prevention Program.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Department of Housing and Human
Services, Administration Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Housing Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants for Housing Programs? Consensus?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants and Disbursements and, and/or Grants and
Disbursements for Affordable Housing and/or Living, -- Living Housing?
-- Supportive Living Housing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you. While we're going
through the Department of Housing and Human Concerns, especially the
housing programs, because I'm still trying to get that money, should I be
saying I want to revisit this or shall I make my request known?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not at this time.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: If a proviso or an appropriation would come out of this area,
then you would want to revisit, I believe.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah. I'd like to revisit, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And that's for grants for rental programs or?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Affordable, rental housing programs.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It's all inclusive I guess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Grants and Disbursements for Affordable
Housing and/or Supportive Living Housing.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's another possible source.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know yesterday I made a note that
when we were talking about this very same issue you put it under HHC
10-11, Human Concerns Program for Hana Study. You, you ... 1 inserted it
there because you said that we would take it up in that area. So, I mean
not to, I understand my colleague-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I want to support him but I'm saying
that we put it there, and you said that would be the appropriate place, at
least, Mr. Taguchi said-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that would be an-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --appropriate place to put that 50,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair, there are various areas that it could be either proviso'd in
or additional funds could be made. Under the Grants Program if, if
Councilmember Medeiros intends this to be a grant to a particular
organization, then that would be a possibility to put it in that area. If, the
tasked, task is for the Department of Housing and Human Concerns to do
the study, then probably it would be better to include that in the Housing
and Human Concerns program as a B Account item.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Then I'll, I'll yield to my colleague,
Mr. Medeiros to say where he would rather have it, 'cause I support it
wherever he may want to put it.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Did you understand what Mr. Taguchi has said?
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah. And I want to thank my colleague,
Member Victorino for his support.
Yeah.
I understand.
My
understanding is there's various sources that we can try and get that
attached to. And that's what I'm doing so I want to be sure, I say I want to
revisit something so that we don't go by it and I can't come back after
that. So, that's why I'm saying I want to revisit this and this and this until
I finally get my funding.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Why, you don't trust the other Members,
eh? ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. Okay. I take my, oh, Mr. Medeiros.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Except for Mr. Victorino. Okay. Members, any more
questions on this here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding from your instructions to us at the
end of yesterday was that we are to come up with adds and deletions that
balance out regarding our considerations for the Committee on areas that
we are raising ... in areas that we do not receive consensus.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that still your-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That's still my-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --instructions to us?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --instructions. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Let's see, Grant, Grant for a Community
Land Trust.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What is this for?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, the Department stated when they were here that the
grant was going to be given to Na Hale 0 Maui, Community Land Trust.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. No.5, Grant for Hale Mahaolu Ownership
[sic] Counseling Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Okay.
HHC 10-11, Human Concerns Program.
Consensus on the No.1? Consensus on No.2?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Well, Mr. Chair, we revisit No.1,
'cause again I have it marked down for the study. If the Department of
Human Concerns is going to do it for Hana, for the Hana citizens, seniors.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit that. Members, any questions to
the halfEP for Clerk Typist III? Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Grant to Alu Like, Kahua Ola Hou, Molokai?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIRPONTANILLA: Okay. Grant to Big BrotherslBig Sisters of Maui, Inc.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Coalition for Drug Free Lanai. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grants for

a Community Partnership

Grants.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Community Work Day Program. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's the one I was hoping to increase a little bit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
more.

Not a major Increase, but she wanted 10,000

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll put that aside, and again, we do have other
areas that do have Community Work Day also included. Grants and
disbursements for Cultural and Arts Grants. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai for Preschool.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Program.

Grants and disbursements for Early Childhood

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements for Hana Human Services.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, that. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe we should revisit that 'cause that might be the
area for Mr. Medeiros's consideration.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements for Homeless Program.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Hui Malama Learning Center.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants to Maui Adult Day Care Center.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants to Maui Food Bank, Inc.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yesterday I had a question on the amount
and someone was going to check it for the Maui Adult Day Care Center of
65,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. That's their second request.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this includes a first request and a second
request?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. The reason why they came in for that addition is
that they forgot to include the seniors program at the Nisei Veterans
Memorial Center.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Okay.
Grant to Maui Community College for
Cooperative Education Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grant to MEO, Inc. for Enlace Hispano Program.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Head
Start Preschool [sic]. Consensus? Oh, Afterschool Program.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Economic, Inc. for Head Start Summer
Program.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grant to Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
for Molokai Summer Program.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grant to MEO, Inc. for Youth Bank.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Family Support Services.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grant to
Infant/Toddler Care Program.

Maui

Economic

Opportunity

for

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Ohana Makamae, Inc.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Salivation [sic], Salvation Army.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS .... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Eh, salivating because of the good smell back there.
Okay. Grants and disbursements for Self Sufficiency Program.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to the Friends of Old Maui High School.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Program.

Grants and disbursements for Substance Abuse

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Maui and Lanai.

Grants and disbursements for Project Graduation for

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to Women Helping Women.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements for Youth Centers.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements for Youth Programs.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Grants and disbursements for Youth
Centers. We had a request from the Kihei Youth Center for $120,000.
And, I don't believe that ... 1 put that in as my request and I don't believe it
got included and I'm wondering if this would be the place to do it. And if
this 1.75 ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question, is that for building renovations of some kind?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
renovations.

Yeah.

It's for, yeah, repairs and

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Taguchi, can that be in this area here?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it is a County-owned building.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe the question would be who would do the renovations?
Would it be the, would it be the grant recipient or would it be the County
Parks Department?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that the, the youth center board
would appreciate having the funding and that they would arrange to have
all the, if, you know, a lot of it could be done by board members. But, if
there is such as some of the plumbing and electrical would need somebody
with expertise so they could contract that out.
MR. TAGUCHI: Then you ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But in all honesty I don't know exactly.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We can include it in the Parks grants in regards to,
because we do have a lot of buildings, a lot of youth centers that are
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associated with the Parks
maintenance.

III

regards to the building and building

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, this is not the place for that then?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. I think this is covering the cost to run the youth
programs on the different locations.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, this would go under CIP?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Parks grants. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Parks grants.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe it could possibly go in either place; however, if the
money is targeted to a particular building or renovation, then you may
want to either proviso the language or make a separate grant for that
activity. For example, if you put a lump sum amount into the Line
Item 32 that would give flexibility as to where they're going to put it in,
what they're going to do with that money unless you direct it through a
proviso or a separate line.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do we have a page number where I could
look at what all these ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that particular item. And if
we do increase the amount to reflect the repair work, then the Chair would
recommend proviso'ing the money for the repair work at the Kihei Youth
Center.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Foundation of Hawaii.

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, that was one I had add a
proviso in because they never gave us their budget breakdown.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi, I thought we received the breakdown on
the budget?
MR. TAGUCHI: We are looking for it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grant to Hale Mahaolu for West Maui
Adult Day Care Center. We, we just removed the monies from that
particular area. Grant to Molokai High School for Graduation Activities.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grant to Lanai Youth Center. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to The Maui Farm, Inc. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant for Social Human Services Needs Assessment
Study. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Boy Scouts of America. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to Disabled Services for the Frail and Elderly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Mr. Chair, ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think there was an issue on this.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. This is the one I had, I asked for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Page 11. Grant to Kansha School. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grant to Mental Health Association of Maui.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, did we find out about that? I
think Ms. Anderson brought up about the 38?
COUNCILMEMBERJOHNSON: It's 30.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah. It's okay.
COUNCILMEMBERJOHNSON: It's 30.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was 30?
apologize. Okay. Thank you.

Okay.

Then consensus.

I

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for asking.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Program.

Grant for Lihikai School After School Tutoring

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, that's the one where I had put in
10,000, but at this point I'm not going to quibble about it, so I'll leave it at
six and-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.

- 72-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --they'll just have to manage.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And grants for Lahaina Tutoring Program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Same thing on that one.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Same thing? Okay. Members consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Thank you.

Grant to Lanai Women's Center.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Grant to the Maui Family YM.C.A.
Capital Campaign. That, we have an issue on that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Program. Consensus?

We'll revisit.

Animal Management

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Moving on to Department of Liquor
Control - Liquor Fund. Because this is a liquor fund, self-sufficient
Department, any problems, Members? Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Moving on to Page 12. . .. (end of tape
2B) ... Management Information Systems Program. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Johnson. Anyway,--
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --Department of Management, was that the
one where Ms. Morrison had requested?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Delete-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: On page 11.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- ... (inaudible) ... I think member, not member, but
Ms. Morrison ... it's not either of these, but-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is it under the Mayor's?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --that was an addition to the Management Office.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that's why I just underneath
the first part where it's the Management Program I just was wondering
where we would put that and if it's not under that . . .
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Management.

Okay.

We'11 come back to Department of

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think it's under Management Program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Okay. Management Information Systems, this is
MIS. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: GIS Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Okay.
Moving on to the Office of Mayor.
Administration Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Economic Development Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grants and disbursements for Agriculture Promotion.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants to Aloha Festivals for, to be allocated equally to
Maui, Molokai, Lanai, and Hana. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grants and disbursements for AgriculturelMarine
Resources Development. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grants and disbursements for Business Research
Library. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grants and disbursements
CulturallEconomic Development. Consensus?

for

East

Maui

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grants
Protection. Consensus?

and

disbursements

for

Environmental

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grants

and

disbursement

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Page 13. Grant to University of Hawaii
College of Tropical Ag and Human Resources for Extension and Research
Projects in Maui County. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grant to Lokahi Pacific for Blue Hawaii
Building Project. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Arts and Cultural Center. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Community College for nursing and
dental assistant program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to Maui County Farm Bureau. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grant to Maui Economic Development Board, Inc.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grant to Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
for Microenterprise Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to Maui Long Term Care Partnership for
Caregiver Pilot Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Consensus? Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Is this where we might want to add the request
from this morning or at least consider it?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: This is a pilot project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
different one and this will end--

Mr. Chair, this one

IS

a completely

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Completely different.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --this year.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So I would be putting a different line and so
when, when that point comes I'll make the case.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. When we come to Office of the Mayor, we'll
revisit the Maui Long Term Care Partnership. Okay. Grant to Maui
Botanical Garden. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grant and disbursement for Maui
Conservation District. Consensus?

Soil/Water

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Visitors Bureau. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Revisit. Fine. Grants and disbursements for. .. to or for
Maui Electric Solar Water Heater Initiative?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I gotta take off the glasses here. Grants and
disbursements for Solar Water Heater Initiatives. Consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I have a question on this, Mr. Chair. I
know that this is the program that we have supposedly a revolving fund
and did we get their updated report? Because, I mean, if this is a
revolving thing where it's a grant and then it's paid back, I just wanted to
know where that fund stood now, because we funded this for several years
in a row and I just needed to know where we are with it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, the ... we have received a letter from, I believe,
Maui Electric Company requesting that the monies for the photovoltaic
systems program be appropriated to the Solar Water Heater Initiatives.
The Solar Water Heating Program is a revolving program. I believe they
send reports to the Council. However, my understanding is that they
would like additional funds, so they can convert I guess or assist more
homes with install ... , in the installation of water heaters. In regarding
their photovoltaic system program I believe they're still in the process of
developing the program. So, it was their feeling that the money could be
better used by the community to increase the amount of people that
participate in the revolving loan, revolving program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I'm, I'm just looking over the
information, Mr. Chair. And, I guess what they're doing is they're
showing how they would expend it, but I'm really curious to see if it's a
payback because are we just giving these free? Because I thought that the
individual with the savings each month was paying back into a fund to
make more money available for other people who are putting in solar
water heaters?
MR. TAGUCHI: That, that is my understanding. The program involves a loan
with the payments being made over a period of time from the electricity
billing. So, the participant pays a little higher electricity billing ... bill and
that repays the loan and that monies are revolved to another applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I see here that it was, I remember
we had put in $1 million as a revolving fund. So, the $550,000 revolving
fund has allowed 391 Maui County year-round residents to purchase solar
water heaters. You know, and I'm totally in support of this but, Mr. Chair,
I just would like to know at what point do we stop putting money into this,
because the whole objective was to have a revolving fund so we wouldn't
have to keep putting money in every year. So at some point I just want to
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know when, when the cash cow, you know, gets to go and graze
somewhere else.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you for mentioning cash cow.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think that it's something we can request through the
Mayor's Office and she has appointed a Energy Commissioner. And that
might be the wrong title, but I believe she has a specific point person that
will be part of the review of this type of programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll follow up with the Mayor's Office.
Member Johnson. One more question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. That would be great and the other thing,
too, I just checked and we did not get a breakdown on the Kidney
Foundation. So, I'll just be adding my proviso.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We, we did not? Thought I did.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Count on what?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The Kidney Foundation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me check my records and I'll get back to you. I
think I did receive something.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 14, Grants and disbursements for Molokai
Economic Development for Cultural Programs. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grants and disbursements for Small Business
Promotion. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements for Soil/Water Conservation
Districts - Molokai and Lanai. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grants and disbursements for Watershed Protection.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Grant and disbursement for Molokai Slaughterhouse.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant for Kauaula Instream Flow Study. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant for Preservation Heritage Hall. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grant for Maui Community College Sustainable
Program. I think we had a question yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Okay.

Grant for Renewable Energy Program.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant for Maui Food Technology. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant for Special Events Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Arts and Cultural Center for Pundy
Y okouchi Pavilion. I think we did have a revisit on this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Economic Development Board for
American Ingenuity Alliance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Revisit.
Hale. Consensus?

Aha Kukui 0 Molokai for Cultural Canoe

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 15. Grant for Maui Fest. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Okay, one.

Maui Redevelopment Agency Program.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Okay.
Moving on.
Department of Parks and
Recreation. Administrative Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to Lahaina Restoration Foundation. Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought in yesterday's review we had kind of, had a
discussion about a potential proviso that they would--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm going to put that in.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --right, verify the, the reimbursement amounts? And
I think Ms. Johnson was agreeable to, to that kind, that condition
proposed ... (inaudible ) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Mr. Chair, I'm going to be putting in a
proviso and it basically will be that the bills that are presented have to be
in compliance with the Parks Department. Because obviously they're
going to have to review it, and I'll, I'll craft with Staff some type of
proviso and also check with Council Chair Hokama to make sure that the
proviso covers the concerns.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Community Correctional Center for
Workline Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Grants and disbursements for a Skate Park
Management.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Aquatics Program.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Chair, I believe this would be the
place we'd put a grant for the Kihei Youth Center.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Let's see.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: For workline? No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Parks grants, that's what I was told.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, oh. Okay, under the grants.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A hundred and twenty thousand to do
repairs and renovations on the building for air conditioning, flooring,
security, and plumbing, also electrical.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this then.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, this would be the place, right?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Either this or what we covered earlier we could put in a
proviso by increasing the amounts for all of the youth center with a
proviso to include the monies to repair the building.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible) ... over here. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: We've received, I believe in today's handouts we received
something from the Department of Public Safety from Acting Warden
Alan Nouchi. In it, he requests a position in the Parks Department of
Recreations and Maintenance Division to be funded by the $130,000
MCCC Workline Program. I just wanted to make Members aware of that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Who is asking for that consideration?
MR. TAGUCHI:
Center.

The Acting Warden of the Maui Community Correctional

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll, we'll come back to this.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Chairman, I would just have you consider that
if we're going to add things that we haven't had before, it comes through a
Member. But I don't really appreciate outside additional last minute
requests.
CHAIRPONTANILLA:
Thank you.

Yep.

Thank you.

It should come from a Member.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What was the request?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: It's in your handouts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chairman ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
One more consideration.
You know for
Ms. Anderson if it's considered part of a maybe improvement, then I
would say maybe her consideration would be under planning and
development. But if it's just a replacement of an existing or an ... more of
a maintenance I would say her, her request might be appropriate under
Park Maintenance instead of Administration, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, moving on. We were,
aquatic, Aquatics Program. Members, Item 1. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was a revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Item 1, there was a question on that.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Yeah,14-6. Item 1.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was a revisit, right?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's a revisit. Okay. Park Maintenance Program,
14-10. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is that where Member Anderson was going to
put her proviso?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not in this area.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
heard.

Planning and Development Program.

That's what I

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The next one down, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next one down. Moving on. Planning and
Development Program are we going to revisit this? Recreation and
Support Services Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: PALS Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
consensus?

Waiehu Golf Course, Item 1.

Do we have any

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Isn't that one we're going to revisit? No?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: You're going to revisit Item No.2 which is the Golf
Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Item 1 is okay?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Waiehu Golf Course, Golf Fund Contribution to the
General Fund. Oh. Not that one?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No? No, not that one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: None of these.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Waiehu Golf Fund Contribution to the General
Fund Health Fund. Consensus on that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Waiehu Golf Course Golf Fund Debt Service.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Overhead Charge.

Waiehu Golf Course Golf Fund Administrative

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that the one?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't think so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's going to be Appendix B on the fees, yeah,-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --as far as the Golf Fund, so.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Department of Personnel Services.
Personnel Administration and Management Support Services Program.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Department of Plant. .. Department of Planning.
Administration and Planning Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Coastal Erosion Rate Maps Update. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Zoning Code Comprehensive Update. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Cultural

Resource

Management

Plan Update.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Beach Nourishment Project. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant to Wailuku Main Street/Tri-Isle Resource Center.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Grant to University of Hawaii-Maui Sea Grant
Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: General Plan Update. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Digital Flood Mapping. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Aerial Photography. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Spatial Growth Model. Consensus?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Twelve, thirteen, fourteen, fifteen, sixteen, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Seventeen and eighteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventeen and eighteen.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Along with seventeen and eighteen. Do I have your
consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: What number?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: On 18, Mr. Chair. I believe I put this in last
year and I don't think it was necessarily for Open Space Guidelines. I
think it was for cultural overlay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We can revisit for ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the money has not been spent. And it
kind of got lost in the shuffle.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
know?

It's still in the '07 requirements?

Staff, would you

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's still in '07 budget.
MR. TAGUCHI: We don't know right now whether or not the Planning
Department has expended those.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Okay. We'll ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I have a letter here that says that the
Department unfortunately lost its historical perspective on this
appropriation with an unanticipated mid-year leadership change in '06.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What does that mean? The Titanic went
down?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, Members. So, for whatever
reason they say if the appropriation is reinstated it's the Department's
intention to assign it to the proper Division to have them work with both
the Council and the Kihei Community Association to structure and
implement this grant. We already adopted-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The open space ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the open space and-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --park plan for Kihei. And, it's my
recollection that what we need is the cultural overlay which is what this
money was supposed to be for. So, I guess it was re-described wrong.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this again.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and then, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on. Mr. Taguchi ... Member Anderson, was that
letter sent to the Staff or either of us? All of us here?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. It was.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It was?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It was, it was a response to a request that
you made, Mr. Chair, on April 1ih.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's dated, the response is dated April.. .no,
it can't be that ... April 16th . So, it's a response to a letter you wrote
preVIOUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: April
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll follow up on that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one question on Ms. Anderson's item. So is it
her understanding that the existing $15,000 will not be encumbered and
it's just going to lapse and they're, they are anticipating a reappropriation?
Or, or do they have some intentions to try and encumber in the last quarter
these funds?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: According, Member Anderson, no?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they're saying that the discovery,
research has since indicated that the appropriation was inserted by the
Council; however, this discovery has come too late for actual
implementation during Fiscal Year '07. If this appropriation is reinstated,
blah, blah. So, they don't intend to appropriate it or encumber it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll move forward.
Administration Program. Consensus?

Department of Police.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Investigative Services Program. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: .. , {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa, no?

- 90-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, consensus.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Consensus.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Uniformed Patrol Services Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Technical and Support Services Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you. Prosecuting Attorney's Department.
Administration Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: General Prosecution Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department of Public Works. Administration Program.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Before we go on any further, please, direct
me if I'm wrong. But, Department of Management, I was, I was looking
for Department of Managing Director after the Office of the Mayor and
it's not there. So it's Department of Management. And, I think I would
like to revisit that for those ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going come back to Department of Management.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did, did we--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I made a request.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Chair.

--did you do that?

Okay.

Thank you,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Regarding ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uniformed Patrol Services Program. Technical and
Support Services Program. Oh. Okay. We already done that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 19.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 19. Member Anderson, please don't interrupt me
again .... (laughter) . .. Engineering Program - General Fund on Page 19.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm glad you're laughing I'm about ready to
pull out the gloves.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Special Maintenance Program - General Fund.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Development Services Administration Program.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Administrative

[sic]

Program Highway

Fund.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Contribution to General Fund - ERS, FICA.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Contribution to General Health.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Mr. Chair.

Chair, I know, I know you're on a roll,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: General Fund, Health Fund. Member-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I had a question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because, this was something, and I'm not
sure ... it was not on my original request. But I'm not sure which
Department in Public Works it would go to. But, they are updating the
Building Code for Mr. Arakawa's section to reflect aging in place. And
they needed, I think it was, it was, you know, private meeting that I had
regarding long-term care. So it would be between $10,000 and $20,000 to
hire an outside individual to come and assist them with accelerating the
Building Code changes. And, Ms. Trygstad spoke about it but she didn't
specifically ask for the money. So, I just wondered in this section
whereabouts I would request that money if it were to go anywhere?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Professional Services.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Probably Professional Services in the B Account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Professional Services, B Account.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: While, while you're interrupted, I would
like to revisit Page 16, Item 3 under the Planning Department, Zoning
Code Comprehensive Update for 200,000. I have concerns, Mr. Chair.
We've had, since I've been here nine, ten years, I've seen two Zoning
Code Comprehensive Update studies that never got off the ground. The
studies were done, came to the Council, the Council wasn't interested. So
I want to see what the parameters are before we throw another $200 [sic]
at this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Coming back to Page 19, Contribution to
General Fund - Health Fund. This is Administration Program - Highway
Fund. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Contribution to the General Fund. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Contribution to Bikeway Fund. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Debt Service. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Administrative Overhead Charge. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Road, Bridge, and Drainage Maintenance - Highway
Fund. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We were going to return to this one, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. Mr. Chair. I had a question on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Traffic Management Program - Highway Fund.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Garage Services. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Department of Transportation.
Program. Consensus?

Administrative

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Dialysis
Transportation. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant to Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Ala Hou
Program. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Grants and disbursements for Bus Replacement
Matching Funds. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursements for Bus Replacement Grant.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grants and disbursement for Air Ambulance Program.
Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Objections. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman? Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just would like the ability to have some conversation
and discussion on this. Originally, I think our original appropriation was
in the $60,000 to $80,000 was to assist the State in getting the program
started. Okay. It was never meant to be an annual burden on the County.
It was to assist us in the startup and implementation of the program. And I
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would just like some discussion to see whether or not we are going to be
always funding State responsibility in this area.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Transportation Services.

Moving on.

Grant to MEO Inc. for

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Grants and disbursements for Public Transit
Program - Highway Fund. Consens ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit. That was the one where I had wanted
480,000 'cause we took away 508 from West Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on. Public Transit Program - Bus Stop
Signage, Schedules, Maps, Marketing, and so forth - Highway Funds.
Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moving on to page 21. Public Transit Program - Bus
Stop Signage, Schedules, Maps, Marketing. Corrections to the Mayor's
proposal. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Grant for Bus Stop Planning and Design. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department of Water Supply. Members, we had
consensus yesterday. Do you see anything that need to be brought out?
Thank you. Page 22.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We had consensus on this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Again. This is coming out of the Water Department.
There were no issues on Page 22 yesterday. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Mateo.
- 96-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chairman, just a, just a question. And,
hopefully the Chair can respond. There is different organizations that
appear as line items and then they appear again in Departmental items.
Prior, was there not a discussion about the term "double dipping" where
they can come and get funds from different areas in the budget? Did we
resolve that or did we just let it continue to run?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. We, if you want to discuss it further, then we can
go ahead and do it. Mr. Taguchi, I think there was a question in regards to
looking at the various organizations that had different funding in different
areas.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, in the area of the Department of Water Supply
I believe some of the grants here are also the entities receiving the grants
are similar or the same to, for example, environmental grants. The reason
why the grants exists in the Department of Water Supply is because the
restrictive nature of the use of their funds. They are a different fund. So,
while they can support certain activities in terms of watershed the
grant ... (end of tape 3A) ... is because of the fact that it comes from
water fees. The grants in like Economic Development are from General
Funds and have more flexibility. In regards to the question about double
dipping I believe that the double dipping may occur at times when we
have lump sum grants going to the Grants Review Commission, Review
Committee. My understanding is that they, in their grants they have a
condition that the grantee does not receive a line item grant if I remember
right. But, we can check with, I guess, the Department of Housing and
Human Concerns regarding that to make sure that they still check for
duplication in grantees.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Taguchi. And I think we identified one
that we are now referring to the Housing and Human Services area in
regards to one of the particular organizations. Presently, the organization
is on a two-year grant and now they have a line item so we need to address
that. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, could you tell us how long you
intend to go, when we're going to break for lunch? I have an appointment
waiting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. I'm sorry. We can stop at, if there's any other
questions in regards to the Water Department, then we'll stop at the Water
Department before we go into Capital Improvements.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time the Chair will call for our lunch break and
we'll reconvene at ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One forty-five.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Hey, Mr. Mateo ... Mr. Molina, you're always at 1:45.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One thirty, one thirty.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Okay. We'll go to 1:40.
meeting is in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

. .. (laughter). ..

This

12:13 p.m.
1:45 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you, Members, for that wonderful lunch break.
Members, before we continue, do we have any questions? Member
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I'm sorry to inconvenience the Committee, if we could go back to Page 20
under Highway 19-27, Garage Services - Highway Fund. The position
that was requested, the EP Clerk II for the Makawao Garage we had a
made a request out of our office thinking that this was the position that I
believe, Mr. Correia from Solid Waste had requested. That was an error
so my, I'm in full support of the position that was requested. I believe
Chairman Hokama, as well as Member Baisa and yourself, Mr. Chairman,
had requested that eight-month position for the Makawao baseyard. I
believe that, to add more clarity to that. So, I would request that this EP
request under Highway 19-27 be deleted.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Agree.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Let's see. Staff, okay? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can I make a request, I don't know if this
the appropriate time. But what I wanted to ask you is, Mr. Chair, after
we're through with all this initial run, the different items, what I'm asking
for, Mr. Chair, is basically a worksheet for which we can highlight only
the areas for which we're going to focus in on from that point forward.
We have 36 pages here and then flipping back and forth I don't know if
that's possible or if it's possible to just have a highlight sheet like we did
with some of the others Departments. And they would just give us a
highlight sheet of the areas that we were to concern, what page we're to
look on. I'd like to request that if that's possible, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Once we go over and complete all 36 pages
we'll take a recess and then maybe Staff can run that off? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. Just to make it easier
for myself, I don't know about the other Members, but I, I would prefer
that if that was possible, sir.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, agree? Any problems with that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we're on page 23. I'm going to start ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My apologies, sir. I, I know your Staff did make a
comment prior to the mid-day break, Mr. Chairman, as well as we have
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received communications from Mr. Alan Nouchi regarding our Workline
Program. And if Staff can just help me, I'm trying to locate the page and
item that the Workline is under.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff. .. 1 think it's on Page 15 and it's Item No.-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh. No.3, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --3, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I would say that hearing from how the State
Department of Public Safety is viewing this again we're trying to provide
support for this program. I would now put in an objection and request that
this be deleted in its entirety for consideration.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Members, questions-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Support the deletion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the deletion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I didn't quite follow what Member Hokama is
suggesting, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Staff, can you read the letter that we received?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I have the letter.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh. You have the letter.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, it's that, that he's deleting? Not the Workline
Program?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The whole program, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The whole program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have a concern about that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. We'll continue, we'll leave it in.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are we going to revisit or?
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VICE-CHAIRHOKAMA: Yeah. We are.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Yeah. Revisit. Okay. Okay, Members, we're going
into CIP. The first one is the General Fund: Hana Community Plan
District Area.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair? Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe we left off at Department of Water?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No. We ... there were no changes to the Department of
Water. Okay. On Page 23, Capital Improvement Projects. The Hana
Community Plan Area, Government Facilities. Members, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Consensus?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't have a problem supporting No.2 under, under
Facilities, Chairman. I would just ask if maybe Mr. Pablo can help us. I
know that under our SHOPO agreements they pay a very discounted
monthly rental. Does that go into a special account that provides and
assists in the maintenance of our County-owned facilities like the cottage
or would that go just into the General Fund, Mr. Pablo?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Director.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair. I do not have the answer to that but I could
contact the Police Department to, to get that information.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I would appreciate ...
MR. PABLO: This is regarding the SHOPO agreement for rental subsidy?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: By collective bargaining agreement I believe for
Molokai, Lanai, and Hana since we help provide the housing for our
police officers. It may have changed or it's maybe in the midst of
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changing it with the new contract negotiations. But my understanding is
we, we just assess our officers $200 a month rent, and I'm just wondering
whether the rent that is collected for this program goes into a, an account
that goes back to help maintain the County's cottages or does that revenue
go back into the General Fund?
MR. PABLO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I recall the amount as 900. Yeah. Maybe
it's not for Hana. I know there was . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The subsidies, you're talking about?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can we, right now?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Director, if you can follow up on that? Member
Victorino, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I just, my question would be can we,
'cause we have two very distinct figures, 200 and 900. I'd like to know if
a, Hana, Molokai, Lanai, all the outside districts what, if they get, how
much they get? I would like to know that please, sir.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just a point of information. The Hana police
cottage they're going to construct a whole new building.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and the amount that, I did talk to the
Hana Commander and it is 160,000. That's only for the Hana police
cottage.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Nothing else? Right? So-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
about.

--I'm not sure what the 900,000 figure is

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The discussion right now is how much subsidy the
County provide the officers that are living in the County facility which is
the homes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. I think they get a subsidy if they don't
live in a County facility. If they have to go and rent, I know they get a-CHAIR PONTANILLA: They have a subsidy.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --they have a, something about rental, some
kind of rental money that the Department pays them in order for them to
subsidize them renting a house outside. But I don't know if there's a
subsidy if they live in a County facility.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. The Budget Director will be contacting the
Police Department for clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, this is in regards to this
particular item, is that the information that is being requested?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. I, I just am wondering where the, the rent that
our officers pay for use of our, our units our housing units. Where, where
that money goes?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Uh-huh. Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause I would like to, if it goes in a special account,
whether it be a housing account for, for the Department or not, then I
would say we should be using that help, using that money to help us take
care of the improvements.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause they're the beneficiaries.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
Item No.1? Hana Fuel Tank Roof?

So, do we have consensus on

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And we'll come back to Item No.2.
General Fund: Paia-Haiku Community Plan Area. Government Facilities,
Haiku Fire Station-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse, excuse me, Mr. Chair, before you
go on.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Back in Hana.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Under Government Facilities, I don't know
if this is the place to put it because we have no funding. If maybe we
might want to do $5,000 towards the doctor's office in Hana with a
proviso that it be, that the, that a long-term lease be given to the Hui
Laulima Ohana group for the dialysis so that we can secure that for them.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Should let the Mayor come back with one proposal,
Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. Mr. Pablo, if you can follow up on that also in
regards to the long-term, the lease agreement that we have with the State
of Hawaii, I think.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. It's a, it's a, the County has this
property through a 1931 Executive Order-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Executive Order. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --1927 Executive Order. And it's currently
being leased month-to-month for a dollar. I don't know a dollar a month,
a dollar a year. A dollar a year. So, I'm just suggesting that we put a line
item in under Government Facilities for Hana for the, for this property.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: What you want to do is increase the ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Well, there's no funding for it now,
Mr. Chair. And I'm just thinking that if the dialysis folks, if we can secure
a long-term lease for them to use this County property that $5,000 would
be, you know, a fair amount for them to go in and do whatever
reconstruction or refurbishing they need to do to make it, you know,
suitable for dialysis. But that would also give us a line item in the budget
with a proviso that this body proviso that money to a long-term lease.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Staff would, I guess we need to find out is there consensus for
that insertion into the budget. And if so, then the, I guess, the monies for
that will come out of... I guess we need to understand where it's going to
come out from.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But when we come back to this, Mr. Chair.
I just wanted to earmark it for something-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and we can figure that out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman. I think it's ready for us to return and
revisit it. One question that I would ask if you would work or have
Corporation Counsel work with your Staff. I think one of the things that
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we might need some clarification on from a legal standpoint is that this is
a unique Executive Order because it was given to the Legislative Branch
of the County, not the Administration. It was given to the Board of
Supervisors, which is now the County Council. And normally it's given to
the County and the Administration has the responsibility to manage the
asset and we have the oversight responsibility. But it's interesting that
Governor Farrington in the old days gave it to the Legislative Branch.
And so I would just ask if it is still the case that the Council has the, the-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Authority.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --jurisdiction of this property? If Counsel would give
us some type of comment on how we then may proceed and what role, if
any, does the Administration have in regards to this specific property?
Especially who has been authorizing the use of the property if it's still
under the Council's jurisdiction?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll work with Corporation Counsel in regards to that
agreement-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --which we have control of.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Yeah. I want to thank
Member Anderson for bringing that up. I wasn't sure if we were going to
try and insert it here but she makes a good point of being government
facilities. And I thank Chair Hokama also for his recommendation. So,
it's going to be after Corp. Counsel has a chance to review it and then
we're going to revisit it after that, Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. And we'll revisit this here and probably include
the request that was made by Member Anderson for the reconstruction
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --there need to be some reconstruction work of the
cottage. So, we'll come back to Hana Government Facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see, CIP 24-1, Paia-Haiku Community Plan Area.
Government Facilities. Questions to, oh, consensus on Haiku Fire
Station? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I wanted to add a proviso on that, Chair, so
if we could earmark that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. We'll come back to this one. No.2
Kaunoa Senior Center
Woodshop Demolition and Parking
Improvements. Consensus? Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Consensus?

Okay.

Kaunoa Senior Center - Office Expansion.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Moving on. General Fund: MakawaoPukalani-Kula Area. Parks and Recreation. Kula Tennis Courts.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Concern.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
No.2, Pukalani Park Jogging Path.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Revisit.
Consensus? Members, consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Okay.
Improvements. Consensus?

CIP 25-8, Up country Swimming Pool
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Moving on.
General Fund: Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan Area. Government Facilities. Department of Finance
Office Renovation Improvements. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Objection. No. Objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We changed that 85,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Kahului Station Annex Building Expansion. Objections
anybody?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Consensus?

Okay.

26-16, No.3, County Offices and Parking.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. NO.4. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.

- 108 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 24. Wailuku Police Station Communication
Center. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moving on. Wailuku Police Station Emergency
Operations Center. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. No.7, Wailuku Police Station Information
Technologies. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. No.8, Wailuku Police Station Parking
Rack, Racks Installation. Any objections? No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Parks and Recreation.
Item 1,
Construction/Maintenance Baseyard at Iron Maehara Baseball Stadium.
Any objections?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm, I'm going to object to this one, but
I'm more concerned about how we should write up the description,
especially since we are not going through normal procurement. This may
be one of the projects that we may want to keep under the spotlight
throughout the project for various reasons. And I think some of the
benefits is the type of cost savings we have and whether or not we, we
would like to use this as part of our analysis of if should we move toward
a construction division and the capabilities of the County and what type of
resources would be from expanding a maintenance program to a
construction division? So, I'm more concerned about how we would write
up the narrative of this project than the specific project itself at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that. Kanaha Beach Park
Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Keopuolani Park Improvements. Any objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Velma Mc Wayne
Improvements. Any objections?

Santos

Community

Center

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
objections?

Waiehu Golf Course Maintenance Building.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: War Memorial Gym Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see, Central Maui Tennis Court Resurfacing and
Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
objections?

Kahului Community Center Renovations.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We're going to go into Sanitation.
Abandoned Vehicle, Scrap Metal, and White Goods Facility Design. I
think we have ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All of those come out.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All those are just ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just transferred.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All the way to 58.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It was something else.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's transferred out.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. From one to-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --seven. Members, you have any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. So we go into General Fund:
Kihei-Makena Community Plan Area. Government Facilities. Kihei
Police Station. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Parks and Recreation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair? Clarification.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For the Kihei Police Station it says transfer
part of the funding from the Bond Fund. So, we're just transferring this
amount but the full amount is still in the Budget?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Okay.
Parks and Recreation.
Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I want to put a proviso in this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that then.
Recreation Center [sic]. Any objections?

Kenolio

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
objections?

Okay.

Puunene Airport Site Improvements.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kalama Park Playground. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. General Fund: Lanai Community Plan
Area. Government Facilities. Lanai Fire Station Addition. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lanai Senior Center. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Perhaps just clarification.
This particular item initially was a request to do improvements to an
existing building.
What the Department presented to us was a
consideration of a new building. What is this going to, going to do?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi, you got any information on this?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if! may, please?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe in the Departmental's review that we've had
regarding this specific item that Mr. Mateo brings forward, I believe in our
discussions I had asked the Director Medeiros to go back to the Lanai
senior community. It is my understanding that one, we renegotiated a
brand new lease for this site and this building. Two, this is where the
seniors of Lanai have determined that they prefer to keep their program
located at. In the current Budget, the Council has supported the
community by placing renovation funds for the current year
improvements, which is the roofing and the electrical. The Department
now is coming forward asking for us to build a new building instead of
fixing what the seniors have requested.
And so, I believe in our discussions with the Department we have asked
them to go back and talk to the seniors about what they would prefer so
that the Department can act ... accurately come back to Council and then
give an appropriate recommendation.
Because I think there is
misunderstanding between the improvements and renovations versus a
new building. But I would ask that if it is going toward a new building,
that I would ask the Members to please allow this 90,000 to stand at this
time to provide the flexibility that we can then use those, the current funds
and this new funds to be able to start the planning and design of the new
structure if that is what our senior community prefers on Lanai, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And, if the Director, Budget Director can
follow up on that with the Housing and Human Services Director in
regards to the question that was brought forward towards Ms. Medeiros.
MR. PABLO: Yes, Chair. What the Chair, Council Chair Hokama has stated is
exactly what we understand. The, the Department will be going back to
find out what the interest is of the senior citizens on the island of Lanai.
At the time of putting together the Budget we, we wanted to have that
option both to look at renovations and look into the possibility of a new
building. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. So, on this particular item on CIP 29-7.
Are we going to put a provision in this one or are we going to relocate it to
another section of the Budget?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're going to come back to this one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. General Fund: Molokai Community Plan
Area. Government ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, one question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding adds and deletions you would care to take
that up after you complete this, this specific round of ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. And what we'll do is provide the sheets that we're
going to be taking action on.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. General Fund: Molokai Community Plan
Area. Government Facilities. Molokai Baseyard. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Parks and Recreation. Molokai Parks Baseyard.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
objections?

Cooke Memorial Pool Restroom Renovations.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 26. General Fund: Countywide.
Government Facilities. County Building Expansion. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.2, County Building Renovations. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just like to revisit this. I would like the
Members to consider maybe putting a proviso so that we can work with
the Administration. Not only is, have our Departments grown and have a
need for additional spacing but, Council with its Clerk Offices and
Council Services Office, as well as the individual Member's needs. You
know, the Legislative Branch has needs for some additional space also,
Mr. Chairman. And I would like for us to be able to put some language in
the Budget to help the Administration also include the Council's
requirements of expanded space.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Moving on. No.3, CIP 31-9, Countywide
Facility Building Improvements. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Item No.4, CIP 31-10, Countywide Fire
Facilities. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. CIP 31-11, Item 5, Countywide Highway
Baseyards Accessibility Program. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, a question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: This is what, for ADA compliance?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 31-12, Countywide Highway Baseyard Drainage
Grease Traps Program. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. CIP 31-13, Countywide Police Facilities .
. . .(end of tape 3B) ... Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. CIP 31-14, Wailuku Police Station Consultant for Emergency Radio Communication System.
Any
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections? No objections? Fine. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I don't know why, this thing was giving
me heartburn. But consultant is, and again, Members, consultant for, why
is this a capital improvement for a consultant? Why wouldn't this be
under professional services for the Department if the need is a consultant
to come up with a plan for the Department to move forward on the
emergency radio communication system? Wouldn't this be a more
appropriate in the B Account for professional services than a CIP? The
request?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In the profession account, I would think so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I would just ask if, if the Members, if we could
return and have the Members at least-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --consider that?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Movement of, from this to a more, what I would
think, more appropriate operational side of the budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. We'll do that. We'll come back to
CIP 31-14. Parks and Creation, CIP 31-15. Countywide Americans with
Disabilities Act Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
Improvements. Any objections?

CIP 31-16, Countywide Parks

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Center. Any objections?

CIP 31-41, Crisis Management Call

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Object.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Objections, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Highway Fund: Hana Community Plan Area
Road Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Highway Fund: Paia-Haiku Community Plan Area.
Road Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Object.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Object to Item No.1?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Baldwin Avenue Bike Path.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. CIP 24-6, Members. District Road Resurfacing.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: None. Okay. Moving on. Highway Fund: MakawaoPukalani-Kula Community Plan Area. CIP 25-1, Road Improvements.
Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Any objections?

CIP 25-10, No.2, Downhill Bike Tour Assessment.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Objections.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. We have a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
objections?

No.3, MakawaolMakani Road Improvements.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 25-12, No.4, Piiholo Road and Olinda Road
Resurfacing. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No objections?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Highway Fund: Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan
Area. Drainage, CIP 26-7, lao Stream Drainage. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
objections?

No.2, Naholo Circle Drainage Project.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Resurfacing. Any objections?

Road Improvements.

District Road

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
objections?

Thank you.

Waiko Road Improvements.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
CIP 27-1, this is Kihei-Makena
Community Plan Area. Drainage, Hauoli Street Drainage Improvements.
Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Resurfacing. Any objections?

Road Improvements.

District Road

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Highway Fund: West Maui Community
Plan Area. Road Improvements, District Road Resurfacing. Any
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is where I, Mr. Chair, I had asked for
$1 million since we're taking out just about everything else. Guess there
was only one other one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that for road surfacing, resurfacing?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Road resurfacing.
Yeah.
Ukame ... Ukumehame
Acquisition, Item No.2. Any objections? Okay. No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fine.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Lanai.

Except, Chair, before you move on to

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to come back to drainage under
West Maui for an addition or a discussion anyway.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Drainage. Drainage. Drainage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Under the Highway Fund.
subsection drainage. I don't have the name of the street.

Just add a

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's Shaw.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Drainage. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's the park. That park. .. Mai. ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. That's Shaw-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It is Shaw?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and Honoapiilani Highway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Going forward. We'll come back to drainage in
regards to the West Maui area. Okay. Highway Fund: Lanai Community
Plan Area. Members, District Road Resurfacing. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Molokai Community Plan Area. Road Improvements.
Any objections to the District Road Resurfacing?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Countywide Drainage Certification of
Dams and Levees. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Countywide Drainage Improvements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Road Improvements. Countywide Bridge
Repair and Maintenance. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Page 29. Countywide Road Resurfacing.
Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
objections, Members?

Countywide Safety Improvements. Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's go by item. Item No. 1. Any objections? That's
West Kuiaha Street. No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.2, Provided, that $100,000 shall be for traffic
calming measures installed around Kahului School and Hale Mahaolu.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.3, Provided, that $50,000 shall be used for calming
measures installed around lao Intermediate School.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And just for the record, you know, I was told
yesterday that the two provisos that I had been requesting were listed in
the, on Page 29 and it's not. So, just for the record the two provisos once
again that I would like listed is the speed tables for Maui Meadows for
60,000 and a speed table for Kealaloa Avenue in Makawao for 15,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that and then we'll ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLIN A: Yeah. We can revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
something that we talked about yesterday.

I thought there were

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have one also to add, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. In this same area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I don't know. It's traffic calming.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I don't know if it would be a speed
hump, a speed bump, or a speed table.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll, we'll come back to Countywide Safety
Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Along with Countywide Speed Humps because
we don't know where we're going to put it. Okay. Countywide Street
Light Retrofit. CIP 31-22.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections? None?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Highway Fund:
Countywide. Any objections to 31-17?

Countywide.

Bikeway Fund:

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, we're going to go to Bond
Fund: Hana Community Plan Area. Road Improvements, 23-16. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Bond Fund: Paia-Haiku Community Plan
Area. Road Improvements. I believe we had a-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --questions on-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Baldwin Avenue Bike Path.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Bond Fund: MakawaoPukalani-Kula Community Plan Area.
This is all in the Water
Department. Any questions to the Water Supply, Item I?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Sanitation Area, one, two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We go to Page 30. Sewer. WailukuKahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply. Any objections to Item 1, 2,
and 3?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Bond Fund: Kihei-Makena Community
Plan Area. Government Facilities. Kihei Police Station. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Kihei Police Station, I would like to add a
proVISO.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yep.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. South Maui Community Park Phase I. Any
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Objection.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one is that? South Maui?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: South Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Okay.
We'll come back to that one.
Road
Improvements. Any objections to Item 1, CIP 27-21? No objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. CIP 27-24. North-South Collector Road.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Bond Fund: West Maui Community Plan
Area. Drainage. CIP 28-4. Lahaina Watershed Flood Control. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Sanitation. Lahaina Recycling Drop-box
and Redemption Center.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply.
Road Waterline Improvements. Any objections?

Wahikuli and Fleming

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Bond Fund:
Molokai Community Plan Area.
Sanitation. Molokai Landfill Cell 3 Construction. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Molokai Landfill Left-Turn Lane. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Mr. Chair.

Yeah.

This one I still have a concern,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Bond Fund: Countywide.
County Morgue. Any objections?

Government Facilities.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply.
Transponder Replacement. Any objections?

Countywide Meter

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Lapsed Bond Proceeds: Makawao-PukalaniKula Community Plan Area. Water Supply. Kokomo Tank Replacement.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Lapsed Bond Proceeds: Lanai Community Plan Area.
Sanitation.
Landfill Storm Water System Reconstruction.
Any
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know you just want to clip along here.
But, if, if we, this is an addition.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. It is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And a large edition. So, I'm wondering if
we could have an explanation as to what it is.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The addition is to satisfy the Department of Health
issues with the Lanai Landfill. Right now we do have $1 million budgeted
and this is the new cost is almost $3 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, so, are we like on the verge of a-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fine?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --violation?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We are.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. We are in violation?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't like the way you raised your
eyebrows at me, Mr. Chair. ... (laughter) . .. Okay. I'll pass. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Chairman, just for clarification. So this
is related to EPA consent decree as well, yeah?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: DOH.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: DOH. DOH, as well.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: DOH.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Moving on. Park Assessment
Funds: Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan. Kula Tennis Courts,
$30,000. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Park Assessment Funds: Wailuku-Kahului Community
Plan Area. Boundless Playground at Keopuolani Park. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Park Assessment Funds: Kihei-Makena Community
Plan Area. Kalama Park Pedestrian Path. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I want to add to that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Any objections?

Thank you.

South Maui Community Park, Phase I.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. On Page 32, Park Assessment Funds:
West Maui Community Plan Area. Lahaina Civic Center Tennis Courts.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Solid Waste Funds. Any objections on
Item I? Abandoned Vehicle, Scrap Metal, and White Good Facility
Design.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
objections?

Item 2, Central Maui Landfill Gulch Crossing.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Number 3, Central Maui Landfill Gas Preliminary
Engineering Report. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Central Maui Landfill Phase V. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
No.5,
Design/Construction.

Central

Maui

Landfill

Wind

Barriers

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.6, Material Recovery Preliminary Engineering and
Permitting. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
No.7, Wailuku Baseyard Refuse Office.
objections, Members?

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. You know, I, I want to
revisit, I'm sorry for going back. But No.5, the wind barriers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.5, Wind Barriers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Okay. Moving on.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.7, I had asked and I was just, would like you to
check with your Committee Staff. Did we receive from Public Works a,
the siting map for the Wailuku Baseyard? So we can see the, how they
plan to situate the new building and its relationship to the other
components of our Wailuku Baseyard program please.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Staff.
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MR. TAGUCHI: I do not believe we received any site map for the Wailuku
Baseyard.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, point of information.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. I can roughly describe for the
Members where it's going to be. In the Wailuku Baseyard there's the old
tire shop there that most of the refuse trucks park along, and then if you go
to the boundary which is, would be the boundary towards the Kihei area of
that property. So, the corner where Waiale and that boundary is along that
fence line is where that facility is planned to be built. And that was with
my conversation with Mr. Correia.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Director, can you get a, I
guess, site plan of that area of the Wailuku Baseyard? Thank you for that
information, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to
Sanitation?
Thank you.
Wastewater Funds: Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan Area. Alamaha Force Main Replacements. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kaa Force Main Replacements. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
objections?

Kahului Concrete Lateral Replacements.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wailuku-Kahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility
Tsunami Protection. Any objections?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Point of information, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this, is this, refresh my mind please, Chairman. Is
this the project that is to put barriers in the water?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. As well as reinforcing the facility.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Then I would like to return because if we're
going to move the plant and expedite the timing should we be spending all
of this monies for certain improvements should we make a call, policy
decision to relocate sooner.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. We'll come back.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just a clarification. I've never heard them
say they were going to put anything in the ocean. Did somebody hear
that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I did.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. They mentioned that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, then that's different from the plan we
saw a year or two ago.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll have, we'll revisit this thing again.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Wailuku Wastewater Funds:
Kihei-Makena
Community Plan Area. CIP 27-33, Kihei Wastewater Pump Station. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 33. Countywide Environmental
Protection Agency Consent Decree. Any objections?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes .... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. .., (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Any objections?

31-26, Countywide Force Main Evaluations Phase I.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Rehabilitation.

CIP 31-28, Countywide Inspection [sic]

Well

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Injection well.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Injection wells, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. No problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. 31-30, Countywide Wastewater System
Modifications. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 31-31, Environmental Protection Agency Consent
Decree Compliance Projects.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you. State Revolving Loan Fund:
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan area. Water Supply. Piiholo
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Water Treatment Plant Improvements - Organic Carbon Reduction. Any
objections, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: State Revolving Fund ... Member Anderson, you had a
question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just a possible proviso for here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to add your proviso. State Revolving Fund: WailukuKahului Community Plan Area. Sewer. Protection Agency Consent
Decree Sewer Rehabilitation. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Wailuku Wastewater Pump Station Force
Main Replacement. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Thirty ... CIP 27-29, Environmental
Protection Agency Consent Decree Sewer Rehabilitation. Any objections,
Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 28-2. We're going to go State Revolving Loan
Fund: West Maui Community Plan Area. Sewer. CIP 28-16, No. 1. Any
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Not an objection. I just would like to return to this
general subject. Okay. My issue right now, Chairman, is that our County
through its Council and its Departments have shown very responsible
actions as well as decisions on how to take care our sewer program. And
we are asking our community, those that utilize the sewer program to pay
increased fees to take care of the needs of rehabilitation. Oahu on the
other hand has neglected to do the same fiscal, as well as operational
responsibilities, and they're dealing with major, major fines from the EPA
and Department of Health. And you read the papers and I was pretty close
to my billion dollar projection.
However, for their inattention and, and non-corrective measures, now
they're trying to get bailed out through a universal settlement, as well as
potential Federal funding to assist Honolulu to bail them out of their
choice to not do their job. And here we are doing our job and we're
getting no support for the same program. Why wouldn't we then try and
get those, a portion of those Federal funds to assist Maui to accomplish the
same goals? You know, again, my problem has always been, Maui, at
times, seems to be penalized for doing the fiscally correct things for our
community. And it disturbs me that negl. .. , maybe I shouldn't use that
word, but well I think I made my point with the Members.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think you did. And I would like to have the Budget
Director to . . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just like to say our ability to see if we can
collect, get some of those same Federal funds that Oahu is going to beg for
since they refused to do their adjustments over the, over the last ten years,
Chairman. And here we are annually asking our people to pay higher
sewer rates for its, our improvements and requirements.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Yeah. The Chair was going to say if the
Budget Director can convey our message to the Administration in regards
to possibility of getting some Federal funds to support our efforts in
regards to rehabbing not only sewer lines but waterlines.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair. We, we will look into that possibility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. CIP 28-17, Front Street
Sewer Line Rehabilitation. Members, any questions to that? Or
objections? No objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 28-18. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply. Napili Well "A" Tank.
Any objections on CIP 28-33? No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Water Supply Funds (Restricted): Hana Community
Plan Area. CIP 23-18, Hana Source Development - Hamoa Well 2. Any
objections, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to revisit, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Water Supply Funds (Restricted):
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan Area.
Kamole Water
Treatment Plant Improvements. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Water Supply Funds (Restricted):
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan Area. lao Source Development Waikapu Tank Site Well. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply Funds (Restricted): West
Maui Community Plan Area. Lahaina Water Treatment Plant. Any
objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If! could go back to 25-15 and earmark that
for a proviso?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. We'll come back to that. Thirty ... CIP
30-13, Kalae Tank Replacement. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Molokai District, Chairman. That's Molokai District.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Word missing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No more. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was going to ask, where is this? Oh, it's
Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Molokai, I knew that, but I never seen that
there. Thank you for bringing that up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
Well 2. Any objections, Members?

CIP 30-14, Kaunakakai-Kawela

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply Funds: Countywide.
CIP 31-37, Land Appraisal and Acquisition. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Water Supply Funds (Restricted):
Paia-Haiku
Community Plan Area.
CIP 24-9.
Ulumalu Road Waterline
Improvements - Five Corners to Standpipe No. 52. Any objections,
Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply Funds (Unrestricted):
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan Area. 25-16, Kamole Weir
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Treatment Plant Improvements - High Lift Pump Retrofit.
objections, Members?

Any

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to come back on a, for a proviso.
And also did we ever get any response? I think today was the day we
were supposed to get a response from the Water Department regarding
restricted and unrestricted funds.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member ... Staff member Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I don't believe we have received that yet.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Pablo, if you could get a hold of the
Water Department for that request that we made earlier. Thank you.
MR. PABLO: Yes. Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIRPONTANILLA:
Replacement?

Okay.

No objections on 25-17, Kokomo Tank

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 35. CIP 25-18, Lower Kula Road
Reservoir. Any objections, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Olinda Water Treatment Plant Improvements.
Any objections, Members?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll come back to that for the proviso.
Water Supply Funds (Unrestricted): Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan
Area. CIP 26-73, lao Intake Line Upgrade - Nature Center. I guess it's
located at the Nature Center plant. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: 26-75, lao Source Development - Waikapu Tank Well
Site. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: CIP 26-77, Papohaku Waterline Replacement.
objections, Members?

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply (Unrestricted): KiheiMakena Community Plan Area. CIP 27-38, Maui Meadows No. 17
Booster Pump Station. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Water Supply Funds (Unrestricted): West
Maui Community Plan Area. CIP 28-30, Kanaha Valley Land Agreement.
Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Molokai Community Plan Area.
Any objections?

Water Supply Funds (Unrestricted):
CIP 30-13, Kalae Tank Replacement.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Seeing none. Thank you. Water Supply Funds
(Unrestricted): Countywide. CIP 31-32. Any objections, Members?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP dash, 31-34. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
objections?

CIP 31-35, Countywide Pump Replacements.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 31-36, Increase in Size of Mainlines ... (end of
tape 4A) ... CIP 31-37, Land Appraisal and Acquisition. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
objections, Members?

CIP 31-38, Security Measures.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 31-39, Small, In-house Pipe ReplacementslFire
Protection Upgrades. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The Chair would like to take a five minute
recess. Thank you. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:45 p.m.
2:50 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, the Staff is going to require at
least 25 minutes to do the corrections and note down the areas that we
want to revisit. So, we'll give the Staff 25 minutes so we'll take a recess
to 3:15. This meeting is in recess ... . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:50 p.m.
3:28 p.m.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Okay, Members. The Budget and
Finance Committee meeting is now back in session. Okay. Members,
we're going to start our discussion starting with, we're not going into real
property tax at this time. Okay. We're going to go to ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: By the way, Mr. Chair. ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: First of all, I'd like to thank you and the
Staff for preparing this. This does really help focus our attention on the
areas we need to. So, I want to thank you, Chair, and the Staff for taking
this quick action in getting this ready for us so we can do the people's
business better. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Okay. Members, and you may
want to use your Exhibit 1 that was presented yesterday along with the
areas that we're going to be reviewing at this time. So we're going to
review Revenues 2-4. This is in regards to license, permits, and others.
Members, we should had noted down who had that question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I confess.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Okay. Member Anderson. You're up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Boy, I should have used this break to find
where it is in the, in the Budget. If anyone in Staff can help guide me, I'm
trying to find the section that has to do with building permits.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. In Appendix B?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that, is that what you want, Mr. Chair?
We're skipping rates and fees and going to ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The license, permits, and others.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And I think the discussion was, I don't know if it going,
going to end up in Appendix B or not.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Chair,--

Well, I'll tell you what my intention is,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --while I'm trying to find it in here. And
unfortunately, we don't have anybody from Planning to help us on this or
from Public Works. But the intention is ... you know we've, we've made a
delineation in the workforce housing ordinance for properties of a million
dollars or more. Actually it's 600, isn't it? Six hundred thousand. So, I
would like to see any, and it, and it's my understanding that building
permits are . . .
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: By value.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Pardon me?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: By construction value.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: By construction value and so I'd like to see
any house the construction of which is $500,000 or more to have an
accelerated permit fee. You know, we heard from one of the testifiers the
other day that in California . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Page 3?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 3. I think that's the one you were
starting to look for, yeah? You go down ... this says non-building license
and permits, building and construction permits, 3-240. Under Section
16.26, Page 3 of Appendix B.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's it, Mr. Victorino, thank you. And, as
you can see it goes, the evaluations go, they go from, well $500 to 200,
rather to 2,000; 2,000 to 25; 25 to 50,000; 50,000 to 100,000; 100,000 to
500,000. So I would say anything from 500,000 to, to a million and up.
Currently, the fee is $2,039 for the first 500 plus $3 for each additional
1,000 or fraction thereof. So, you know, I think that, let's be, let's be real
and let's be frank. Houses that cost for construction $500,000 or more,
that's the construction cost, not the market value once it's built. Those
houses I think are fair to say 99 point-pick-a-percent are for people who
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do not live in Maui County. And so I'd like to see us, you know, increase
the permit fee for houses that are, that cost to build 500,000 and up. You
know, to be ... you know, let's, let's be fair, in California it's 50,000, let's
say 30,000. That's my proposal, Mr. Chairman, 30,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel. Can I have your comments on
that?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I would suggest that, I know we're kind
of late in the game. But if the Committee could consult with the
Department on this one because just to remind you fees are supposed to
cover the cost of issuing and processing the permits and any, you know,
inspections and other review that the Department needs to do. So, if, if the
Department can justify a higher fee for these higher-priced homes, then,
then that's fine. And sometimes they do because it will require, you
know, additional work. Like for instance, if the sides of the home is larger
or something, then it will take them more time maybe to review it. So,
I'm just suggesting that if the Committee could just double check with the
Department. Because the fee will, you would have to justify that fee and
the Department would probably have, you know, the most accurate
information about the day-to-day work that's involved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We're going to be taking up rates and fees
tomorrow and what we can do is have DSA come over here tomorrow to
provide us with more information in regards to rates and fees.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. But ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we're looking at the 500 to a million, and a million
and up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. I mean I figure once it's 500 and
maybe you might want to do a scale like they have here only not $3 per
100,000 additional, I mean per 1,000 additional, but something much more
substantial than that. And if I could ask Ms., Corporation Counsel, you
said that it should be tied to the cost of processing. What, what's the
directive for that, Ms. Villarosa, is it in the County Code? Or is it just a
policy that was adopted and is being followed or, or what? Because I
mean, you know, when, when you look at the cost you could go on and on
and on as to what really is the cost beyond just having one person review
the plans, an inspector go out. I mean, the cost could be seen to be
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increased in many areas beyond that. So, I'm just wondering what, where
that directive is?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, that is a general I guess, legal principle, I
guess if you'd say for, with regards to administrative law. That's why the
County has undertaken several fee studies to analyze, you know, what
costs are involved in issuing particular permits or licenses. And you're
right, it can go on and on and that's why, that's what those, those studies,
you know, are for is they kind of analyze what all could be involved in the
issuances ... you know, it could include salaries, benefits, rental, you know,
I mean it could, like you said, it could go on and on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Cost on the car to go and inspect and-MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --all that kind of stuff. Well, I mean, we are
obviously in one of the highest cost-of-living areas in the State. We
know--I mean in the Nation--we know that, that our building costs are
astronomical, we know that the cost of doing business for the County is
astronomical. And, if, if. .. was it Ventura County? I forget what he, what
the testifier said. But, you know, if that's just a general principle,
legislative principle it would apply in California as much as it applies
here. So, if they found a way to justify $50,000 for permitting of a very
expensive home, then I would think we could find a way to justify it too.
It just, it just seems, you know, so out of whack for someone to be paying
$2,000 for, for a luxury home which a home that's going to cost $500,000
and up. I don't know if any of you have seen many of these plans but
they're mini-hotels, basically.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I appreciate you bringing DSA over.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Budget Director, if you can have DSA provide--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Question?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --us with that information-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Question, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and if they can be here. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question is, do we know, has there been in
this particular area, do we know if there has already been a study
conducted?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I don't know and we can provide, get that-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --information when DSA come tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And my question to Corporation
Counsel is if we know what the overall operating costs are, you know, and
let's say because we make it a policy call that oftentimes what we do is we
use the sliding scale to have the higher-priced properties or the
higher-priced items help subsidize the lower-cost. Is that something that
this body could also consider?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I believe that that was an issue in the fee
study that was done for Finance. I believe that the consultant pointed out
that there were some instances where certain fees were, I guess, being
undercharged and certain fees were being overcharged. And it, and it
averaged out but I think the, the recommendation was that, that we should
be charging the proper amount rather than, you know, coming out to an
average that was okay. The consultant recommended that we actually
charge the proper amount for the service that we're offering. So, it really
does come down to a question of fact, you know, how much does it cost,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --you know,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Alright.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --to issue each-- 144 -
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --item.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just wanted to make one more point
and that is there's, there's nothing in State statute or in County Code that
forces us to justify the permit fee being tied to a list of costs. Is that
correct, Ms., Ms. Villarosa?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: If you're looking for legal authority, I can, I can
provide that to you. I'm sure that there is legal authority. It may not be
specifically addressed, you know, in like a, in the Code or in the State
statute. But I could find that justification for you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Because I'm thinking that if there's
nothing that's forcing us to tie it to a specific list of costs that we could
make a policy decision. Because after all, we are-MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I think ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --dedicating County resources.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah. I think that it goes back to this principle that
the County doesn't, is not a profit-making business. And we're only
supposed to be charging fees to cover our costs. I believe that, that's
where it stems from but I can find case law because I, I believe there is
case law out there that clarifies this issue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That would be helpful because if that's the
case, we certainly aren't charging enough for anything to cover our costs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, okay, we'll, we'll leave that item there
until we hear from DSA.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And if we're going to be looking at that
could I also humbly ask that we look at the lower sections, if we're going
to raise the higher areas and I understand under affordable housing that we
only charge 50 percent of what the normal permitting fee would be.
However, I would like to see that, you know, almost go to the point where
I see that anything under $100,000 and met under affordable, that area
would be changed to either zero or a nominal fee like $50 or something
like that. Because I believe that also, even though it may sound very
nominal at this point, when you're doing a lot of homes and talking about
affordability, well, we can make it up here, let's help there and do
something in that respect. So, even though we're talking 50 percent which
would make some of these bills for building permits maybe 250 or 300,
that's still a lot of money if you're going to build a number of them for the
most needy of our community, our working people. So, I'd like, if we're
going to do this, could we just kind of work on that also, if that's possible,
Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. But keep in mind that somebody gotta pay
for our services.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And if we put it at zero, although it's somebody that's
building a home less than $500,000 or even in the range of $300,000, you
know, and this guy might be a person that is not in the category as far as
not meeting the affordable income criteria, meaning that he's making
money better than a 100 percent median income-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and he's going to build a $300,000 house, are you
saying that we're going not bill this guy for reviewing the permits and the
work that we do?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Mr., and, Mr. Chair, I apologize, I
think, if you misunderstood me and my colleagues. I was talking from
100,000 under. I'm not talking the middle area, I'm not talking the high
area, I'm talking for homes that are built $100,000 and under. Those are
the ones would be in the affordable range. I know Molokai has a, a, also
a, you know, projects valued less than 200,000. I'm, I'm kind of reading
this, but I just want to see if there's some way we can address that too.
Because I've heard that, that can sometimes really hurt affordable housing
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projects. I'm talking affordable housing now, I'm not referring to two
hundred, three hundred thousand dollar homes. That's not the area that I
was looking at. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. We'll, we'll come back to license,
permitting, and others. And let's move on to Revenue 2-4 regarding
increase for Baldwin Avenue Bike Path, $500,000. Questions on that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's on the increase for Baldwin Avenue Bike Path,
the second darkened area, the middle one.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When we first discussed this on the first go
around you directed me that, well actually, that we would bring it up in the
other section where it is being transferred from. But, if you want to
discuss it now I'm perfectly happy to do that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. I, I think this was moved to-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --bond?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. We can take it up in bond.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You want to do that then? Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would just request that as we go through
these that you give us a little time in-between each one to find the-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
notes are.

--reference page 'cause that's where our

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Not in this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on, we'll go to, on bond on this one
here. Okay. The next one is the carryover savings, Water Supply, 2-4.
That's on the second page.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Chairman.

I think I'm the one that brought this up,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The $4.8 million?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. I guess maybe the appropriate
place ... it's hard for us to deal with these summary figures because the
change is in the rates and fees that make up this summary. And, so if you
want me to bring it up now, I'd be happy to do that. But what I'm
requesting that we do is under general rates, I would like to make a
separate category for . . .
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: What page you on? What is your reference?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Just in my head.
That's why I'm
suggesting, you know, we're dealing with summary figures here not
detailed figures so that's why it's hard to, to give you a reference. Under
rates and fees this Water Supply Fund includes the restricted and nonrestricted funds that we anticipate collecting from the water rate increases
including the, the meter which I don't think there's no change to that,
but ...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, Members, let me point out to Appendix B.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Appendix E?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: B, Rates and fees.
MR. TAGUCHI: Page 39.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What page?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, under your rates and fees schedule on
Page 39, you'll find the Water Fund.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Page 39.
MR. TAGUCHI: On your rates and fees schedule which is part of your budget
ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Chair?

So I'll wait until everyone gets there,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Everybody, everybody's there? Okay. Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. So, the only change that
I'm suggesting is if Members will note the first section of changes are
under single-family consumers. And, anybody using 100,000 gallons or
more are being charged $4.20 per 1,000 gallons. Then if you go down to
the general water consumers, you'll note that they're only charging $3.40
for anything over 30,000 gallons. Now, general water consumer rates are
for everybody except ag users and single-family home class, the
single-family home class. So, until we have a further breakdown I'm
hesitant to charge anybody that uses over 100,000 gallons a higher rate
because we're not sure if it would impact somebody's business. In other
words, they cannot cut down on their water rates.
However, hotels, I think if there's anybody that needs to be directed to
conserve water, and we've been told by the Department that the increased
rate of 4.20 to the single-family homeowner class is to encourage
conservation. So, I think we need to pass that same philosophy on to the
hotels where we see water running during the rain, we see water running
down the streets. We don't see a whole lot of conservation at the hotels.
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So, I'm, I'm suggesting under general water consumers that we add for
hotel resorts anything over 100,000 gallons they pay the $4.20 rate just
like the single-family consumer.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: What I'm hearing is that any hotel that utilizes
100,000 gallons their rate would be $4.20?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
anything --

Once they get to

100,000 gallons,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Over.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --over that they have to pay the $4.20 rate
just like the, the residential consumer. And then, hopefully, by next year
we'll have a breakdown of who all these large general water consumers
are and see if we can extend that so other general water consumers besides
hotel and resorts.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Members, Chair is going to move forward on a
motion and we'll take a vote in regards to if you want to raise that rate for
the, to include hotel. Any, any hotel that's utilizing 100,000 gallons or
more will pay the $4.20 rate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Mr. Chair?

Is there a motion on the floor yet,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. There's not one-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --but that's what I'm hearing. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Clarification. That's 100,000 gallons per day.
Right?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's bi-monthly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bi-monthly.
- 150 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. Bi-monthly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Bi-monthly. Oh. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So. Basically, Members, that means all the
hotels are going to be paying this rate. It'd be interesting to see what, how
much water hotels use. But I guarantee you it's going to be more than
50,000 gallons a month.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Entertain a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Aren't we going to get information from the
Department on what is their actual uses? So, we know whether or not the
benchmarks Ms. Anderson is proposing is the, is reasonable and should be
considered by the Committee?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I could tell the Members that I live in Maui
Meadows. I went around to my neighbors and asked for copies of their
water bills, 'cause I wanted to see how these rate increases would affect
them. And every single one of them, except for three months out of the
year, every single one of them are using over 100,000 gallons bi-monthly.
And that's basically because they're half-acre lots and they're highly
landscaped. But, mind you, I live on this cul-de-sac, I see this everyday,
none of them waste water. None of them water during the rain, none of
them have water running down the road. So, I think it's a fairly safe
assumption that hotels are going to be using over 100,000 gallons every
two months.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
- 151 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I will have to concur with, with
Ms. Anderson. Because when we had discussed this back when I was on
the Board of Water Supply that issue was brought up. Unfortunately, the
Department never was able to afford us the information that was
necessitated for us to make a decision. And, I was voted down on the
Board. I mean the Board decided to put these rates forward. And, I
respect my colleagues and what they decided was their, was a good
decision at that time. But I think it's time we look at any high users,
especially our resort areas for which we know that the hotels use a lot of
water for all kinds of not, not only landscaping but their pools, their, their,
all their various areas that need to use including the hotel rooms
themselves. So, I, I would support this if Ms. Anderson would make a
motion, I would be more than willing to second the motion.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Hokama brings up a pretty
good argument and maybe we should have the Department of Water
Supply here because we need their input as well. We'll hear the
arguments and we'll, we'll decide either to increase the fees after listening
to the Water Department or leave it as is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I did take the liberty to have my staff go on
the, actually asked for assistance from Real Property to see how many
properties are classified HotellResort, which is Class 7 in Real Property
Tax. And there are 457 properties that are classified HotellResort which
end up being 10,000 units. And, you know, they, they break them down,
they have different, for timeshare units, they have different TMK numbers
for each unit. So, it doesn't seem like it'd be that difficult ... of course I do
not know how they bill in the Water Department. But here we have a list
of all the TMKs for Hotel class and it shouldn't be that difficult for the
Water Department to feed these ... (end of tape 4B) ... their water billing
system, to adjust the rates for these properties if they go over
100,000 gallons. And I just wanted to also note something I found to be
very interesting. If the manager of a hotel or a timeshare lives on
property, they get the homeowners exemption. Isn't that interesting? So,
anyway, it's all right here. Didn't take my staff long to get this
information so I shouldn't think the Water Department would have a hard
time incorporating it into their billing.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And, Director, if you can have the Water
Department also when we review rates and fees for the Department of
Water Supply.
MR. PABLO: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, Mr. Chair, are you asking me to hold
off on a motion?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Be happy to do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Moving on to Page 2. We go to
Office of Council Services. And, we're looking at OC ... , OCS 5-2,
Item 1. Increase Council Member's accounts. Members, any discussion
on that? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. I certainly support it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we're going to leave that item in there?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving down, Civil Defense Agency. CIV 3-3.
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I had requested that within
this and it would be in the equipment section that we add in $5,000 for the
purchase of ham radio equipment to be used for multiple agency
emergency response.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
funding from?

Okay.

And where are you going to take out that

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because it basically has to do with the, I
would say, emergency preparedness or risk management I would take the
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5,000 from the claims and settlements which would be more of our
liability, you know, be, and that would be from ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Page?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Let me just look. It would be claims and
settlements ... risk management is in what division?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think they're in Finance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Finance? Okay. I have to go back through
my other, okay, that would be Page 5 of 36 on the previous Exhibit "1"
and that currently I believe is that 1,412,304. So, I'd be removing $5,000
from that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In the Administration Risk area 8-3?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Management. It would be Finance, 8-3, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Staff, you got that? On the Exhibit "1", Page 5.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say the other approach is we are giving this
agency a sizeable B Account increase. I, I, I would say the Committee
could consider a proviso under their telephone account where they're
yanking maybe some monies from their professional services account to
take care of the needs of the ham radio equipment of $5,000 . Yeah. If
you look at 1-3 in your details, Members, you will see that we are granting
a, a reasonable good size increase in his B Account category. And I think
there's some flexibility to take care the, the needs of the request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which line are ... Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm looking at Page 1-3, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which, which code line?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Civil Defense.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. The detail book now you stay in.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is a Detail Budget, I'm sorry, Members. I was
saying you can yank it out of professional services, 6132 instead of50,000
give them 45 and you can earmark five for, under equipment and throw it
in the C Account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's fine then, Mr. Chair, if we could put in
a proviso under subobject code 6132 in professional services that a
minimum of$5,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, we can't put a proviso under a subobject code.

What we could do is put a proviso within the Civil Defense agency saying
provided that $5,000 be for a ham radio equipment. And then the
Department would have to make their appropriate adjustments within its
program and reallocate funds to take care of that equipment need.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have no problem, Mr. Chair, but, you know,
I made a suggest, you asked me where I would take it from-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and it's basically a liability and so if we're
trying to beef up Civil Defense I don't want them cannibalizing their own
budget, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we'll take $5,000 from ... well, we'll add the proviso
to utilize $5,000 from the professional services?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I think if I understood Mr. Taguchi it
would just be provided $5,000, you know, in their-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: From their operating.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --whether it's-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. From B Account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --just their overall operating budget, I guess.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Okay. Mr. Mateo, I think you had some
questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Chairman, thank you. The consideration
had to do with the expansion positions, this is a Department right now
with, with six bodies. The two additional bodies that they are requesting
one is, one is a Civil Defense Staff Specialist I and the other is an
Administrative Assistant II. My concern,--and it's, you know, open to, for
the Members' comments--is it's kind of hard for me to understand the
need for an Administrative Assistant for a Department of six, six people. I
don't have a problem with the Civil Defense Staff Specialist III because
that just compliments the list of existing personnel right now. I just
question the Administrative Assistant at this point. So, if the Members
would like to comment on it, I would like to hear their comments.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any comments to that? Mr. Mateo, just a fast
question on that. Are you say, are you saying that in addition to the
Chair's recommendation you have a recommendation to-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Where's the Chair's recommendation?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
position?

--to delete, to delete the Administrative Assistant

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. That is the Administration deleted both
the Grants Coordinator and the . . .
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Civil Defense Staff Specialist.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
remammg--

So there's still two existing positions

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --because there was a total of four. So the, the
position I'm questioning is whether or not an Administrative Assistant II
position is, is necessary for this, for this Department.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fine. Members, any comments? You want to make a
motion?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. No. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you want to delete, we'll delete it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No. If, if the Members, you know. I don't have
a problem with it, I just question Department of six people needing an
Administrative Assistant. That was kind of hard to, to fathom at this
point, Chairman. If the Members are not at this point interested in a
consideration, then I will, I don't have any additional comments on it.
We'll let, let it ride. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any consideration? Okay.
We'll leave it in. Okay. So, in the case of Civil Defense then, we're all
squared? Member ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Do I need to make a motion about my proviso
or?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Staff is going to do the corrections on that. Thank you.
Staff, clear on that? Thank you. Moving along. Department of
Environmental Management, abandoned vehicles reward program.
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. I would like again to set aside some funding
for a pilot program, a pilot rewards program to reward individuals who
would bring their own white goods or their abandoned vehicles to us and
we would give them a reasonable sum in return for that. Maybe as, you
know, on the white goods less but like for an abandoned car whatever we
would pay to have it brought in. At least part of it so that we would
encourage people to bring it in rather than penalizing them by making
them pay which makes them dump it on the side of the road and creates
ugliness in our environment and costs us a lot of money to go out and
recover that stuff. I understand the County had a similar program before
and I don't know why we don't have it anymore. I certainly would be
interested in the comments of the senior Members.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, comments? Member Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. If Member Baisa
could provide us something in writing as well as if this is ... has been tried,
if you can get information from the old I guess so-called program that
existed or if there's other municipalities that had something like this, I
think that would help lend more clarity for those of us would consider
something like this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: When we were discussing it I believe our Chair is,
our Budget Chair, is aware of a program that existed in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This wasn't that long ago.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: In the past when the public turned in a vehicle they
were paid like $50.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: But at that time the company that was doing this work
accepted the vehicles. They also accepted the cost to remove the tires, the
liquids, and the batteries. So, we still, if we turn it into a vendor we're still
responsible for that cost. Budget Director, you have any comments?
MR. PABLO: No. I don't have any comments. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros, followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Currently though the way
the abandoned or derelict vehicles are handled is I guess they go to the
vendor that has the contract, right? And he charges the County so much
for that vehicle only to process it. So, it doesn't matter, you know, who
takes it in, we're going to pay the same thing except for the reward part
would be additional. So, I don't think there's that much difference in what
we're doing, but it seem like it would be encouraging people to bring it in
like Member Baisa says instead of dropping it in the cane field or along
side the road. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Chair, when I checked with the
people that were doing this in the, like you said, in, on, on a reward basis
before, the, the charges they were charging were very similar to what
we're being charged right now as Councilmember Medeiros mentioned. I
think that when we had talked about this and I asked the Department why
it was stopped they basically said they ran out of money. And so, if that
was the only reason that it was stopped and then the next Administration
did not want to encourage it, then I think it becomes apparent that instead
of having vehicles dumped on our roadways I'd rather have a reward
program that A, has the consumer bring it back to us; or B, that we have
people that entrepreneurs who want to go out and pick them up and bring
them to us so that they can, like our recycling bottle bill and all that.
We have to either penalize people or reward people. When we penalize
people, they go out and dump 'em in the cane fields, dump 'em on the
road sides. We've seen it all over, right? And that's such an eye sore for
our visitors and for me as a public, as the public in general. I get fed up
when I drive around to our beautiful beaches and see cars and white goods
on the side of the road or by our parks. I think that's very inappropriate.
So, I would like to, you know, like I told Member Baisa, this is something
I'd like to make sure we put in, save three hundred, five hundred thousand
whatever it be to get this pilot program off the ground. Because I think the
people of Maui County deserve that and I think it is a win-win for
everybody. So, I would have no objection if she was to make a motion to,
or whatever we need to do to get this off the ground I would look for the
money somewhere to make it happen if that' s the case. 'Cause I think I've
been told many times if you want to add something, you gotta take
something out. Well there's someplace in this budget that I can find three
hundred or five hundred thousand to do that and help, help our County.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And that is why I
asked how much money are we talking about? That's, that's, you know,
just want to make sure we make a decision, so we know exactly how much
money we're going to invest in this pilot program. So, 'cause you know,
if we add something, I mean, where are we going to delete it from? So I
appreciate the intent, you know, and anything we can do to discourage
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people from dumping and bringing their cars in. So, that's all I want to
know, how much is this going to cost?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The recommendation is $300,000. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair. I'm trying to think of a way that
we can get some, at least some figures that have some basis in, in reality
instead of just picking a number out of the air. So currently we have
contracted with a vendor and we are paying that vendor--and correct me if
I'm wrong--$150?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Two hundred and ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I thought we got it reduced down.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Budget Director, would you know?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thought it was 150. Pardon me?
MR. PABLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, let me just state my thought process
here, and we can find out the figures later. But let's just say that we're
paying the vendor to pick up abandoned cars - $150 per car. And let's just
say that $50 of that fee is for the towing fee. And then the other $100 is to
remove the tires, remove the fluids, and smash the car for shipment. So,
what I would suggest is that, if that's the case that we tie the reward to
whatever the, the fee is for the actual towing. And that way it saves the
car from being put on the road for how many days, saves the vendor from
having to go and tow it, the time and the money, gas, and all that and
leaves him more time to strip the cars down for shipment.
And the only thing I would be cautious about is that we don't want to
undermine this vendor's contract with the County. Because they're,
they've obviously done some kind of calculation to determine how many
cars they can pick up every year at this rate and make a profit. So, I
support the idea and I support putting some money in. But I think maybe
what we need to do is look at the, maybe just the RFP that went out on this
or the actual contract that the County has with the current vendor to get
some more accurate figures. And, you know, many times ... well, I guess if
you're going to abandon a car on the side of the road, you have to have a
way to get it there if it' s not running.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you could just as easily take it to the
vendor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll leave the $300,000 in as a start.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Three hundred thousand?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. And Member Baisa, do you have any idea where
this $300,000 will be coming from?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. Later on.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: As we go along we try to keep the Budget as balanced
as we can. But I have a fairly good inclination where most of you
Members are going to go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. Chair, I, I learned from a
discussion with Public Works that they do about 2,000 cars a year. And, if
we were to do $150 that would be $100,000. And there's a huge, I can't
even remember the number, that white goods involved. It's lots and lots
and lots of white goods that are just hanging all over the place in, in, you
know, every alcove on the highway where people can unload stuff they
just dump it and it looks so unsightly. I heard somebody say the other day
that our environment is our economy and I just think that we've got to do
something about it nor do I also want to hurt any of the contractors that are
in business. Maybe we could let the contractor be a part of this reward
program also - just an idea.
So the reward program would be
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
abandoned vehicles as well as white goods?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. We do have a program in, in regards to Public
Works picking up white goods also. So this is in addition to that? Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. We still have a problem in spite of having a
program.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Can you give us an inclination as far as--' cause we
want to keep this Budget as balanced as we can--the $300,000?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Excuse me, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Where the $300,000 will be coming from?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We, I might be discussing a reduction further on
that will take care of it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Staff.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, if we, if there is consensus to include
$300,000 for abandoned vehicle rewards program, we can insert that
amount into the program and if there is no offsetting entry, then we would
just, I believe, the alternative would be to just track the out-of-balance
situation as we move forward if that's what the Committee wants to do at
this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, I'm afraid we're going to track a lot of out of
balance, you know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman? Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Hokama.

We spending a whole lot of time in here. Member

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say maybe we need more time to, to think of
ways of paying for this, whether we want to increase driver license,
requirements for registration, for testing, whether we want to increase fuel
tax, whether we want to adjust, you know, certain other components of the
Highway Fund. But I don't think we're going to resolve it in this round.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nope. I don't think so either.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, why don't we just move on, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson, followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just want to make two points quickly.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If we put
people $50, that would be 6,000 units.

III

300,000 and we rewarded

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And if they're currently only picking up
2,000 cars a year, maybe that's a little bit too much. But that doesn't take
into consideration-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: White goods.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The white goods.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the white goods.
count on that too.

So, we need to get a

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I'm looking at 6,000 pick ups at $50 a pickup.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
whatever?

For whatever, a refrigerator, a car,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Whatever.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the other thing I wanted to mention is
that if this program goes forward encouraging people to not abandon and
to bring it in that's going to cut down a whole lot of wear and tear and cost
for the County trying to get all the paperwork together. That's what takes
a lot of time is the paperwork and if, and if somebody is, you know,
voluntarily turning in their abandoned vehicle, they're going to provide
the paperwork. Whereas if they're abandoning it, they're going to try to
strip it so no one can find out who did it. So, I think that there's a huge
advantage to this reward program just for that alone.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In the past when we had that dengue problem
and we were removing all the white goods the, I believe at that time, the
Chamber of Commerce had had oversight over this fund that was
collected. And I believe the fund took care of, I guess it was, potential
health problems or other things. And I believe it was tied to either landing
fee or some kind of a charge. And I believe that was where some of the
money was provided for that particular fund. So, I don't know if that fund
is still in existence and if it is, we should get information on it because
that's where we got a lot of our dengue money from before.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on this here?
Okay. We're going to be taking consensus over here. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. So, if we do agree to this
program, which is certainly, you know, motivating for people to bring
things in, the Department is going to figure out what to do? Because as far
as white appliances you got all difference size white appliances and we
going give the same reward?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Basically, yeah, we don't have any criteria as far as-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --white goods.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
out?

So, is the Department going to figure that

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I'm, I'm looking at 6,000 units of whatever kind.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Car or white goods.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Car or white goods.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Coming back to the Council Member's account
in regards to the basic increase. In regards to the Member's accounts will
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the, Ms. Baisa, is this going to come out from the Council Services area or
will it come from the Chair's, the Council Chair's area?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm not sure, sir. What I can tell you is to clarify.
Council Chair Hokama had indicated that for the present time there is
sufficient surplus to handle an increase now. What I'm concerned about is
that it be sustainable in the upcoming year. And you know you don't
always have a good year where you have extra money. And it wouldn't
make sense to increase the guideline and not be able to carry it on the next
year. So, I'm open to, you know, how that needs to be done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back again. Okay, Members. Let's
see, on the abandoned vehicle rewards program, do I have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you paying for this Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If! am paying for this, no, I not. We'll come back to it
to figure out where the funds is going to come from.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Again, Members as I had indicated earlier
whatever cuts that you make, make sure you have something to, whatever
increase that you make that you have something to cut. Okay. Moving on
to the ... consider moving expansion position for a Clerk Typist III from
Diversion. Okay, Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. I would say if you look at that
program on Page 5-35 under Grant Revenue, Environmental Management,
they show listed under Fiscal Year 2008 those two positions, those SR-20s
at ... and I am requesting that we consider, since we're going to kill this
program, that we take care of the expansion, one of the two positions we
use it to allow the expansion position for a Clerk III Typist in, in this
program whereby we would have a savings because the Clerk III, SR-10
would be 25,656 and we would have some net savings in that. 'Cause I
don't see why we need to just keep adding positions, you know. We
eliminating positions in one and they asking for couple in another area.
So, I'm just, you know, actually the Department could ask for one transfer
of the EIP. That would to me be the easiest way or we can do it through
the budget process, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
concerns?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman,--

Thank you.

Members, any questions to that?

Or

And I think that's on my memo to you,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Of yesterday's, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --my recommendations for deletions, reductions,
additions, adjustments.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: You want to delete the appropriation for Recycling
Specialist and moving that Recycling Specialist to what area again?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, regarding those two positions, one I'm just
saying we should delete one, you know, that one position of Recycling
Specialist that they are asking for an expansion. I think they're asking for
that to be placed and that is on Page-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: In Diversion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --5-31, the Recycling Specialist. ... (end of tape
SA) ... then in the Landfill Diversion Program which we're coming up
shortly, Members, they're asking for a Recycling Specialist, SR-20, so
that's where the second position from the terminated program would go,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And that's located where? In the ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be, that would be in Landfill Diversion.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Page?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be on, on your revised schedule it would
be on page, the bottom of Page 2 under 7-28. I know it's hard, Members,
you gotta through, I mean if we laymen you go through these Budgets
enough, through enough years,-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know where to find 'em.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know where to look,--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. We don't know, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --okay, to do the adds and cuts. But again, 5-35
shows the two positions of the SR-20, Recycling Specialist, okay. If you
look at 5-6, they asking for an expansion position of a Clerk III under
Abandoned Vehicle, Scrap Metal, and White Goods Program. So, I'm
saying transfer or put one of those from that two positions we eliminated
in the program. Delete the Recycling Specialist, support the expansion for
the Clerk III, and then allow the SR-20 to go down to the Diversion
Program which are asking for a position and interesting enough that one
goes to 40,524. So again, we would have a net savings of a few thousand
dollars.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Staff, you got that?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, my, my understanding is that basically what
we'd be doing is that under the Abandoned Vehicles, Scrap Metal, and
White Goods Program we would basically leave that there but we would
be deleting an EIP in the Landfill Diversion Program for a Recycling
Specialist?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Right.
MR. TAGUCHI: So, basically, you would have a one position deletion within the
Department.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Right. And moving to-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm saying we should-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --5-6.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --fund that position, Mr. Chairman, at 40 ... at 40,524.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: On page 5-6?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Because they would go from the State
program to a County program.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Question, Chair?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For, Mr. Hokama.
position on 5-6 for the Recycling Administrator?

That's leaving the

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
I'm not touching, the Recycling Administrator
Coordinator is not being touched at all, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
excuse me 5-35.

I'm saying the two we cutting from, Page 5-31,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thirty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thirty-five.
VICE-CHAIRHOKAMA: Yeah. We're going to use, we're going to wipe those
two out. One, I would say, of those warm bodies can go to that
Abandoned Vehicle, Scrap Metal expansion position on 5-6. And then on
5-31 we would eliminate one of the two expansion positions and that
would take care of the two that would we, we would receive from the
deposit beverage container program run by the State.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Clear as mud?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. That's clear now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. On 5-35 we're going to take one of the
Recycling Specialist III and move that particular position to fill the
expansion position on Page 5-6. And the new requirements is 40,424
[sic ].

MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member, Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: The position that is being deleted is on Page 5-31 under the
Landfill Diversion Program in your Detailed Budget.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Five, thirty-one ... five, thirty-one. I would delete one
on 5-31, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One of the expansion positions which would leave
just one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: SR-20 at 40,524, which would be a decrease from the
43,836 they're recommending.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Or ask me if I got this thing wrong, okay. On
5-35 those two positions are now located, well supposedly located in 5-31.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. That's ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And one of those expansion position which came from
5-35 would be moving to fill the expansion position on 5-6.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
Objections? No objections?

Okay.

Do I have consensus on that?

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Moving to EM 7-7. Provided that
disbursement for salaries and premium pay is limited to three equivalent
personnel.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That was the rewards program, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That's the rewards program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's where we wanted to put the money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Members, going back on EM 7-5 that
note in regards to abandoned vehicles rewards program now goes to EM 7.
Any concerns? Any comments?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving forward. EM 7-22. Delete, delete EIP
for Operations Superintendent. Members, questions? Concerns?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Comments? Objections?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Solid Waste Administration, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. I can still support your recommendation for this
one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Scratch that out. EM 7-24, discuss
whether to continue Ka Lima 0 Maui and delete positions for clean-up of
landfills.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just like to bring up a couple things. I think
earlier we had heard from the Division that if you look on Page 5-18 they
had requested three expansion Laborer II positions. And that it was part of
the plan would be if granted these positions, then they would then consider
terminating the Ka Lima 0 Maui contract, which is to assist the landfill in
maintaining a, a clean site that would pass Department of Health
requirements. However, further information from the Division mentioned
that instead of that the site operators were looking at these laborers to take
care cleaning the equipment which is already part of the operators' job.
And so, I, I don't know who, who to believe regarding the request. But I
would share with the Committee that as of this afternoon something we
have, or we're trying to make an impact is, regarding House Bill 1171,
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House Draft One, Senate Draft One, Mr. Chairman, which is part of what
we go back to the Konno Act-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --years ago regarding the use of non-civil service
employees to do government work. Currently, there may be a sunsetting
of the act, Mr. Chairman, whereby the unions are saying that we may not
be able to utilize Ka Lima in the future, and in particular what concerns
our Personnel Department is Section 13 of the bills, of the bill's language
that states that the positions filled by persons with severe disability who
are certified, and I say that word again, certified by the State Vocational
Rehab Office is able to safely perform the duties of the position. My
understanding is that we have either the State or the service provider has
not fulfilled the certification.
Thereby, we may lose, involuntarily on our part, all the Ka Lima workers
for Parks as well as Public Works. And for this County I think it's in
about $1 million contract. And if we need to fill with civil servants,
Laborer lIs with the 60 percent fringes on top of the 20-something
thousand a year per Laborer II, you're going to see a major financial
impact to the two programs as well time to ramp up and fill those
vacancies. So, I just ask the Committee that we may need to work with
the Mayor and Administration and we may need to return in special
session of Budget to take care what mayor may not happen at the
Legislature within the next eight days. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members ... Member Medeiros, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Yeah. Mahalo, Chair. What I'd like to
bring up though on the three laborers, for one thing, in Hana we do not get
Ka Lima 0 Maui workers, so they do not playa part in the Hana Landfill.
The second thing is the Department had mentioned that for Hana they
wanted a Labor II and a Working Supervisor. The reason for that was
Hana has only two, two employees for landfill. One is a Bulldozer
Operator and the other one is an Attendant. Hana is having problems
because with only two people they cannot regulate as people come to the
landfill what they're throwing, where they're throwing, it and so it
becomes a problem and that's why Hana was cited for the vehicles, the
white goods, the propane tanks. They're all being dumped there. The
Department also wanted to use the Labor II to monitor the recycling
containers that will be setup at the Hana Landfill.
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And even though we have a bottle redemption program that will start at
Hasegawa Store soon, as soon as he gets his machines, all the other
recyclables will go to the landfill. And without somebody monitoring that
we may end up with containers down there with things other than
recyclables, meaning batteries and tires, and things like that. The two
employees that now work at the Hana Landfill work six days a week every
week. They have one day off because there's nobody to replace them. If
the Bulldozer Operator is sick or on vacation, the Landfill Attendant
doesn't have the qualifications to operate the bulldozer. And the thing
about any time you do heavy equipment work you don't want one person
there and that's only the Bulldozer Operator because we ran into some
serious problems in Public Works where people got hurt because there
was only Heavy Equipment Operator there.
So I think for Hana may be different from Central Landfill and I don't
know about Molokai and Lanai, but for Hana we certainly need the Labor
II position to work for the, both to monitor the recycling and to also, to
replace the Landfill Attendant when he or she is not there. And then the
Working Supervisor that they had asked for Hana was the person that
would operate the bulldozer when the Bulldozer Operator wasn't there.
And a Working Supervisor is a person that works along with the people,
he doesn't, he or she doesn't just stand around and supervise. So, for
Hana it's important if we can keep at least the Labor II position.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as Hana we, we're not removing any bodies as
far as the expansion goes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. This says landfill-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Central Maui Landfill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
central or ...

--disposal program.

It doesn't mention

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. When you look at your Budget Details.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The expansion positions for Hana you do have a
Laborer II as well as a Working Supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Where is that? Can you ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Details.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
5-18.
And again, Chairman, as a point of
information. I may not have been clear so I can appreciate Mr. Medeiros's
comments regarding the Lanai, the Hana program, excuse me. My
comments that I shared with the Committee earlier, prior to Mr. Medeiros,
is specifically regarding to the Central Maui program-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --as well as how the impact of the State Legislature
will, will also impact Parks and Recreation. Yeah. And so I'm sorry if I
did not make that clear to the Committee.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, any questions to EM 7-24?
We had the discussion on the Ka Lima 0 Maui and delete positions for
clean-up landfill. The Chair is going to recommend that if we need to go
into special session when this contract does come about in regards to when
the bill if passed this Legislature that we need to have a special meeting in
regards to this particular issue. And the Chair's intent is to delete the three
Laborer II, continue on with Ka Lima 0 Maui, and if, and when the bill
passes or not pass, then we'll move forward. Member Hokama, followed
by Member Anderson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
I was going to ask for, what you would be
recommending, Chairman, but you already took care of that, so.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. So, for clarification
you're, you're, you are going to delete, you're asking to delete $61,370 for
the three laborers?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The three laborers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's not included in these figures
already? So, that's an additional deletion?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Staff, I thought it was?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's just discuss whether ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, the three laborers currently exist in the
Mayor's proposed budget. So we would be reducing the appropriation
under the landfill disposal program by $61,370 plus the associated salary
adjustments that was in the Mayor's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. TAGUCHI: So, we ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, it's not included in the 1,550,000 that's
being deleted already?
MR. TAGUCHI: No. That 1,550,000 was because we established a line item
below that for 2.2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Okay. I just want to make sure it
wasn't included. So, we're, we are going to delete 61,370? Did
everybody hear that? There's 61,000 being deleted. So, put it on your list.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Chair, on this one.

I just wanted to make a comment,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, when Mr. Takamine was here,
one of the reasons he wanted these three laborers in lieu of Ka Lima is that
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so he would have direct supervision over them so that when they're done
doing one thing he can direct them to do another. But it's my
understanding that these Ka Lima contracts, at least the Park contracts that
I've looked at are annual contracts. So, you know, he's perfectly within
his purview to change the contract to more specifically prescribe the duties
that he wants Ka Lima to do. So, I think he can take care ofthat-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --concern by doing that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And that would be the Chair's recommendation that the
Department, Mr. Takamine work with Ka Lima 0 Maui in regards to the
supervision and the, you know, monitoring the, the workers of Ka Lima 0
Maui. Thank you. And the Chair. .. if that's the direction that the Solid
Waste Division is going to take, this would give Ka Lima 0 Maui an
opportunity to look at different contracts that can handle the five disabled
citizens that are working for Ka Lima 0 Maui. Thank you. Members, do
I have consensus as far as the Chair's recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Moving down to EM 7-28. Provided that
$250,000 shall be for recycling project on Molokai?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And Lanai.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. You sound surprised.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I am surprised. Member Hokama.
kidding. Just to keep you guys awake.

No, no, I just

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I, would just like to speak about the
Lanai one although I also will support the Molokai proviso and I thank
Mr. Mateo, my colleague from Molokai for, for thinking of this. And,
again, this is something, I believe we heard from the Department and they
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mentioned they wanted to start the programs on Molokai and Lanai within
our County. Mr. Chairman, regarding the Lanai one, you know I've had
contact from our community, as well as potentially the only provider of
equipment would be Castle & Cooke on our island that has the equipment
'cause even the County, our, we do not have the equipment needed to do
this type of program.
But I would ask that the proVISO be considered for Lanai a
recycling/diversion project for Lanai because there is a need for Lanai to
also have the opportunity to have some type of white goods pickup which
currently we don't have because the County doesn't have the equipment.
The service provider that was providing it has some issues with Finance
Department and Public Works. So, we have no service provider on the
island and the only other entity that has equipment that can do the actual
pickup with the loaders, the dumpsters, the dump trucks, the semis is
Castle & Cooke. And they are willing to do it but they ask that we at least
provide some funds for them to recover expenses. They're not trying to
make money, they're just trying to recover expenses. So I would ask that
the Committee consider supporting Lanai by having this as a
recycling/diversion project, please.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, would that be the same for
Molokai?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, absolutely, including the fact that we
too do not have a white goods pickup as well. So, the title change would
be a lot more appropriate as recommended by Chairman Hokama.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department of Finance. Members, before I
go forward the Chair recognizes the time. And the Chair intends to review
as much as we can tonight. We got six more pages. Is the Committee
willing to take an early dinner and come back at 6 o'clock and continue on
to 9 o'clock?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I don't know, Mr. Chair, about
everybody else but we had such a big lunch I'm, I'm still, still okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I can keep going.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can keep going to 6:00 actually, to be
perfectly honest. But I leave it up to the Members, I don't want to speak
for everybody but I'm good to go.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members. Any objections to that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have no objection going to 6:00 as long as
we can maybe take a five or ten minute break.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That's what I was going to do as soon as we come to an
agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Thank you. So, we'll continue up to
6 o'clock and at this time the Chair will take a one minute? .. . (laughter)
... We'll take a 10-minute break, we'll come back at 5:05. This meeting
is in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:54 p.m.
5:13 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Thank you, Members. The Budget and
Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened. We are on Page 3 of 9.
We are into Department of Finance. The first item is the increase to offset
the reduction of golf rate. This is in regards to the supplemental transfer
to the Golf Fund. Let's see. Members, any comments? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I, I just personally would like to, you
know, give the Parks Department an opportunity to see if the rate will
work. I, I know that there may be a provision with junior golf that might
be made. But I just believe that we should try ... it's $100,000 it's not a
huge amount of money. But I just believe that we should not be taking
from the General Fund. And so, I support leaving the rates at what they
are currently.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And we've requested the Department to
give us some numbers--I don't think we got it--so that we can make a
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Informed decision.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --informed decision in regards to the numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, there just seems to be a
reoccurring theme in all of this and I understand that the Departments are
busy but ... and they have a lot of new Department Heads and various
reasons they've come up with. But, I find it sometime very challenging
when you request information--and I don't care which Department--that
we're unable to get that information on a timely basis. Now, I understand
there are times when you cannot and maybe it's not available, but there are
many times when I find it, that request not being unreasonable, that
information should be forthcoming pretty quickly. And yet a week later or
two, three days later we still waiting, which then holds us up on our
process of making decisions.
So, I would just ask the Chair to, ask the Mayor or whomever, and the
Mayor is the leader of our County to ask her Directors and various
Departments to try to assist us by getting us the necessary information.
We want to help them but we're not able to help if we don't have
information.
And finance is so important because this runs your
Department and I think all of the Departments should understand we're
not here to judge, we're not here to criticize, we're here to help. But if
you don't give us the information it makes us difficult, it makes us leery, it
makes us sometimes even a little mistrustful towards them and that makes
it difficult to work. So, I, I just, that's my only comment in this here
because, you know, and maybe Mr. Pablo or somebody can, can put more
light on it. But it's just a reoccurring theme. Every time we ask for
information, we wait, and we wait. Sometimes I understand but many
times I don't see the reason. So, if you can enlighten me, Mr. Pablo or
somebody, I will apologize to anybody that I have offended in this, at this
time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Budget Director.
MR. PABLO: Yes. Mr. Chair. We received the information from the Parks and
Recreation Department during the lunch time. We're doing a transmittal
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letter right now and we hope to get this to the Council Members by
tomorrow morning. We regret any delay but that information had to be
put together by both the Waiehu Golf Course and the staff here at the
Departments. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pablo. And again, Members,
can I ask the Budget Chair, Budget Director to inform the Department
Director, as well as the Golf Superintendent, if they could be here
tomorrow morning when we discuss rates and fees. Members, for your
information, the Chair had recommended that the residential rates as
proposed be decreased to the existing rates and that the non-Maui, Hawaii
resident rate from proposed $25 to $30, be increased to $30, and the
twilight for non-Maui, Hawaii res ... , it be increased from $12 to $15, and
then on the weekday non-resident rate from proposed $45 to $50. So, the
Chair will come back to this area again tomorrow when we have our
discussion with the Parks and Golf Superintendent. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, I would wish to be fair to the
Department also. I would like the Department and the, maybe the
Superintendent to also be able to respond. I would, I am planning to
propose that the Committee consider eliminating twilight rates for
weekends so that we can ... (end of tape 5B) ... program our young people
the opportunity to utilize the public's course for their golf program needs.
Now the County provides the Junior Tennis program with a concession
agreement at Wells Park. But we do not, and we make provisions on
league rates, I believe, for softball, baseball activities that our other
County parks and I believe that it is reasonable for us to give consideration
to the Junior Golf program in a same or on, in a similar manner,
Mr. Chairman. And so I'll be asking that the Committee consider this and
I would appreciate it if for tomorrow the Department may be able to
respond.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments in regards
to that? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
We're waiting for the . . .

Yeah.

I just want clarification, Chair.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The daily rounds per ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For them to tell us what these changes--
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --would end up being in the bottom line.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then the other thing I wanted to
mention or ask. We have two concessions at the golf course.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One is for food and liquor which is $3,000
per month.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the other is for the Pro Shop which is
$27,500 per month.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, do we know, I see the term is five years.
Do we know when the term on either of these . . .
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Budget Director, if you can have the ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. Wait. Wait. Wait. I'm sorry, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The term is in the-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, the more I read it-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the more I see it. So the Pro Shop's
agreement expires August 31 8t of this year. I'm just thinking, you know, if
we're raising rates, maybe we should look at this too, I mean, you know,
what is the basis of this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Pro Shop they do a bidding on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They bid?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: They bid on the concession as well, not only the Pro
Shop, but the restaurant also.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I guess they'd have to know what the
gross sales are in order to bid. And so, I think it would be, you know, just
for information purposes I think it would be good for us to know what,
what both of these concessions are grossing.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think we can get information. Budget Director.
MR. PABLO: Yes. We can get that information. It's approximately $360,000
per year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For both of them?
MR. PABLO: In revenue. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In revenue to them?
MR. PABLO: For the golf, the Waiehu Golf Center, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, both of the concessions gross three
hundred something thousand?
MR. PABLO: It's a combined amount.
roughly 36,000 for the Pro Shop.

It's 330,000 for the concession and

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A year?
MR. PABLO: Ayear.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
paymg ...

Well, that doesn't make sense if they're

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's the opposite way. I think. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It must be the other way around.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thirty-six thousand for the restaurant and three
hundred, somewhat thousand for the Pro Shop.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
would be dead.

That cannot be 20.

At 27,000 the guy

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. PABLO: Twenty-six thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Bad business.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Mr. Chairman. I just, you know, since
you and I are golfers and we, we patronize every now and then our own
course. I believe we shared comments and that's why when we look at the
rates we setting for golf, then you take into account what the Pro Shop in
order to fulfill its needs to pay the County is going to set their golf cart
fees. Then you add that fee to our green fees and you come up with a
number. And I think Mr. Pontanilla and I are concerned is that if we
overpricing ourselves from the private courses, then even if we are trying
to get revenue we're going to lose revenue to the private courses and then
it's going to also impact the concessions revenues base, what they pay the
County which is based on their revenue. So, it's impacting not only the
golf program, it's impacting the Pro Shop concessions and the food and
beverage concession. And so, it would be helpful for us to look at the
whole program, Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'm just wondering, you golfers, if
you can tell us, you know, with the rates that we're looking at right now
how far under Pukalani course we are?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: When you look at the non-residential type, Pukalani is
slightly higher by a few dollars. With this new rate, especially when you
go into the twilight rates, like the Dunes, Maui Lani, they have three
different rates. One at, when you start in the morning, I think it's like $45,
$46, then you have another one at 11 :00 which comes down into the thirty
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somewhat dollars, and when you come to, the two o'clock twilight rate it's
$20 and that includes a cart.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. See, that's why we gotta really look at
this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Enlightening.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Enlightening.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments, Members? Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Yeah. I would support
Chairman Hokama's suggestion for Junior Golf. And I, I wanted to know
because you guys are golfers and I don't golf. When they go to golf, when
the junior golfers go to the golf course at Waiehu to golf after school, are
there slots reserved for them, time slots or do they call in advance that
they're coming? How, how does it work?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think they have slots but I've heard comments like
junior golfers coming in at seven, eight o'clock at night.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Wow.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: You know, that's pretty late for kids to be out there, you
know-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --trying to learn the game.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But as junior golfers do they call in advance
that say we want to golf at four 0' clock and ...
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think they work with the golf course-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh. Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --to get some schedules.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah. So, yeah. I would say, you know,
one suggestion would be to allow slots for them at an appropriate time and
if they don't reserve those slots for some reason, then open it up to the
regular golfers.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. I think that's what they do today.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Yeah, Chairman.
I'll support Member
Hokama's proposal to do away with twilight on the weekend as proposed
by the Parks Department. And I'll still support the increase along with
Member Johnson. But, again I would like to see the impact shifted more
towards the non-residents and if Parks can bring us some type of proposal
that would reflect that I think that would, that would help the Committee
as well, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, in just saying that I agree with my
colleagues, most importantly since Waiehu is our only municipal golf
course in the entire island, in fact I think in the entire County, if I'm not
mistaken, that our junior golfers--and I think Council Chair Hokama will
come up with a proposal--be afforded that opportunity to practice and to
play. Because, you know, for them like any other sport we afford the
other sports fields of play, whether it's soccer, softball, baseball, football,
it doesn't make, or gyms, wherever they may need to play. So, I really
believe this is an opportunity for us to really look at the whole program
and make sure that A, our residents, B, our junior golfers are the first and
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foremost taken care, especially our seniors. Don't want ever forget the
seniors because those guys, if you raise their rates, Honolua will look very
tame. Pardon the expression.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, just for your information to give
you an idea. Maui Lani, they provide times for the junior golf in the
afternoon. So, okay, we'll continue that discussion tomorrow. Next one is
the Supplemental Transfer to the Solid Waste Fund. This is increased to
offset the reduction in residential pickup and tipping fees. Members, any
comments? Questions? Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Moving on. Insurance Program and Self
Insurance. Members, comments? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is one of the areas 'cause I have some
different things that I want to approach that we have not because we
haven't gone into our individual items. This is one of the areas that is a
parking lot for some of our money. So, it is one of the areas that I'm
looking at taking from so I would just prefer that right now we just leave it
and then if people can make the case. Like, this is one area that I would
look at for possibly the 480,000 for the bus transportation or, you know,
the public transit program that Lahaina Bypass Now had advocated for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, we'll come back to that. Thank you.
Transfer to the Open Space, Natural Resources, Cultural Resources, and
Scenic View Preservation Fund. Adjustments to 1 Percent Net Real
Property Tax revenue. A question for Corporation Counsel. If we
increase the percentage, do we need to go to Charter amendment?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, the Council could increase it for this year
without having to amend the Charter.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, comments? Member
Johnson, followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I had looked at bumping that up at least
one additional million dollars because there's so many properties that, you
know, that the community wants to purchase. So, I would be looking at an
increase of $1 million, and I would consider since nobody wants to take
$1 million out of Maui Visitors Bureau, which I have no problem with,
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but, you know, I, I basically would look at insurance programs and then
self insurance taking it from that line, or reducing the amount for our
post-employment. One or the other.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'm making a pitch to
increase this to 2 percent. You know, open space is one of our most
valuable assets and we're losing it, we're losing it in a very rapid way. I
might, I might remind Members that areas designated open space by this
body, this previous body, on our community plan, Mr. Chair, designated
open space have been developed just in the last, let's just say the last term.
In recent memory, parcel of land in Spreckelsville that was designated
open space, it's a wetland area, it's now being developed for high-end
housing by Henry Spencer. We had designated open space lands,
agricultural lands in Waiehu that is now being developed by, well,
potentially being developed by Sterling Kim.
The land that Jesse Spencer developed, that was also designated open
space land. And the purposes of those last two lands and actually the one
in Spreckelsville is to maintain open space between our communities.
And as we infill on this open space we're changing the, the beautiful rural
nature of Maui. And once it's gone you cannot replace it. And, we are
going to be challenged more and more to fill in on our open space land.
Maui Land and Pine is proposing to develop Conservation Ag land that
should stay in open space. It's not designated open space but it's
Conservation and Ag. And if, if those true uses were used, it would be
open space or maintained.
Maui Land and Pine is also developing open space parkland, or trying to
for Pulelehua. Again, an open space area in the middle of Lahaina that
once it's filled in is gone. And, I don't think we want to be urbanizing
Maui like this. We want to have some funds set aside so that when the
opportunity comes up, there's money there for us to take advantage of it.
And I would hope that in the future, I mean look what we're doing,
Members, we're spending millions of dollars just in legal fees trying to get
out of the mess at Baldwin Beach, which was lands designated open space
and park. So, I just feel that we need to have a fund that has enough
money in it so when the opportunity comes up, and the opportunity is
generally once in a lifetime to purchase the land. After that it goes to a
developer and we've lost our opportunity.
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So, you know, I know we have a lot of pressing needs, but none of these
pressing needs are going to amount to much if Maui is totally urbanized.
Because we don't have funds to save our open space lands and, as I said, I
just mentioned a few that are gone forever. And if we don't take some
kind of action to make sure that there's money available. And, you know,
if the money's there, it makes it a lot easier for us to be proactive to go out
and, and solicit some of this land before the idea of developing it even
comes up. There are lands, you know, I just want to mention, some
Members may not know this, but it wasn't until the term before last, so it
would have been three years ago, just three years ago that we finally
adopted an open space zoning ordinance so that we could put some of
these open space designated lands into a zoning category to preserve them
as open space.
Being designated doesn't preserve it, you know. Until it's zoned Open
Space it's always going to be under risk of development. And I'm going
to be proposing a zoning ordinance that would zone all of our open space
lands that are, you know, not really considered developable just so that we
can get them in that zoning category. But if we try to take land that could
be developed by a landowner that's designated open space and try to zone
it open space on our own which we have a right to do, you know that land
owner is going to object and they're going to want compensation. So, I'm
just hoping that the Members see the value in this. That it isn't going to
be any easier to up the ante on this fund in the future. It's going to be
harder.
So, I see this as, you know, the opportunity now that we have to set aside
more money so that we can preserve those lands that we all cherish not
just for this generation but for seven generations to come. Because we
have no control over what the body after us does or what the next
generation does for that matter. But we do have control now and so I'm
hoping the Members could see the value in this and if we did do that, what
we would be doing is doubling the amount that we have right now
ostensibly depending on what our bottom line figures turn out to be. But
that would be an additional 2.1 million, Members, to put in to this fund
and I would suggest, off the top of my head, take it out of the self
insurance fund.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm trying to recall if the $4 million we
appropriated for the Ukumehame purchase was just an outright General
- 187 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

Fund finance or if we even considered the open space fund reimbursing
the bond float. And I say that because I think in my eight years here
we've bought four good-size properties. I believe the first was the old
Waihee Dairy, couple of hundred acres, then we went to Hana, then we
went to Wailea, then we went to Ukumehame. So, I think in the last eight
years the Council can show a record of open space land acquisition
through various parts of the island. We haven't focused only on one area,
Chairman. And, you know, I agree, you know, Ms. Anderson brought up
two, two projects.
But what was the compelling reason that the Council decided to change
the use? One term, Chairman, affordable housing. Okay. So, yeah, it, it's
a tug-of-war, Chairman, yeah. The need for keep space and we all want
the space, we want the ruralness and yet we want all the high end urban
services, the best medical facilities, the best this, which is what the urban
cores provide, and then we have the dire need of our own local people
needing homes. Unfortunately, at times it conflicts each other.
And so, Members, you know, it's, it's a hard tug-of-war but I think from
what we heard from the Mayor and what we hearing from our Budget
Chairman is that this year the focus needs to go back to the infrastructure:
the sewers, the roads, the fire facilities, the police facilities. Because we
have neglected ongoing maintenance, so we, so we, so that we could have
purchased property, so we could do entitlements for certain affordable
projects, keep the economy going. I would say this year I hope we keep
the focus and put the money in the infrastructure. And that's why we have
dedicated funds. Because if really something comes up that needs to be
purchased, the County has the rating and the financial ability to do a bond
consideration, Chairman, if it's that important.
And, so, Members, I would just say keep the eye on the big picture
including the open space but I would support the Chairman and the Mayor
in focusing on upgrading and replacing our core requirements by Charter
which is the infrastructure of our first-line operations. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments in regards
to ... Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And, you know, while people may not
think of infrastructure, you know, they think of it like water and utilities
and sewer and all those other things. We have human infrastructure which
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is our employees here at the County and all of our partners in non-profits,
but we also have the what I call our natural infrastructure and that is the
beauty of the island. We can spend $10 million on marketing to bring
people here, but if we forget that we don't deliver or we spend money and
all of a sudden people don't like the experience that they have because it's
overdeveloped, we will lose.
So, my whole point and one of the arguments that I've always made, Maui
Visitors Bureau, it's wonderful in terms of the type of work that they do
and yes they're great and they're hugely successful bringing people here.
But we're responsible for giving a wonderful experience then to those
people that come to our shores so they keep returning. We have timeshare
industry which frankly in my mind you don't have to resell people. Once
they buy a timeshare that's the whole argument that people in timeshare
industry make. So, why do we keep spending that money and marketing
to those people. So, my argument is always the infrastructure really is the
island and the natural beauty.
So, my philosophy would be spend the money, reinvest the capital in
protecting this jewel of an asset we have. Otherwise, you may, you could
spend whatever amount of money you want on marketing and it's not
going to make one bit of difference if people just stop coming. And
believe me I lived in the Virgin Islands and they stopped coming and we
spent boku [sic] money trying to market and sell but the product wasn't
what the people wanted. And it's certainly lost its edge.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, though I share some of the same
sentiments my fellow colleagues have said I disagree to a point and I take
a different perspective. I believe our greatest asset is our people. And if
we cannot take care of our people, the heck with the beauty, the heck with
all the ocean activities because there are many places in this world that is
just as beautiful as Hawaii. But time in and time in and I've worked in the
hotel industry for over 25 years of my life. And most of the people tell me
the reason they come back is because of the people of Maui County. The
people who have a special aloha, a special spirit and those people are
being taxed, those people are being forced out of the islands, because we
cannot provide the necessary core services, the necessary housing, the
necessary things for them to bring their families and raise them and have
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them develop and have opportunities here. That's the facts, ladies and
gentlemen, that's what Maui's all about. That's what Hawaii is all about.
I challenge anybody to tell me differently in that regard. Not that I
disagree with putting more money in open funds, not that I don't disagree
with putting more things towards our tourist industry or whether we
should or shouldn't. I really have no feeling in that one, but I really
believe that the core services that the Mayor and we're looking at now:
affordable housing, infrastructure improvements, preserving what
environment, the environment we have is very important. It's all one
component but our people, and I repeat, our people are very important.
They are the ones that are working out there everyday. They're the ones
toiling and making those visitors want to come back. And you've read
many articles, you've read many letters from the editor that people love
the experience because of the people.
It's easy to change that. Ifwe lose these people, we lose what true Hawaii
is, what true Maui is, what we were brought up with, the spirit of aloha,
the true spirit of aloha, not the advertised spirit. We will lose that, we lose
it all. So, I really believe we must take a real good look in making sure
that our core services are taken care of, that affordable housing is made
available to the working people. The seniors and all those who have
worked hard, our veterans, they need to be taken care of also. But if we
don't care what I call the unsung heroes the ones that we a lot of times just
forget about because they pay the taxes, they pay the fees, they the ones
that are out there working every day, paying social security and all the
other things. We are the people of Maui County, we need to make sure
that we protect them, we enhance their lives, and we give them
opportunities.
And I think it's a total package, it's just not one piece. It's a total
package. And whether you put in $1 million or 2 percent, another half a
million, whatever. The open space fund I conceptually agree with it, I
think it's a great thing, it's one of the foresights that Maui County and the
Councils before us put forth and I'm very happy to be a part of it. But do
not let ourselves forget that our working people, the people of Maui
County that has made this County what it is today. Ifwe continue to lose
them because they cannot afford to live here, they cannot afford to raise
their families here, we will lose quicker than losing the environment. We
will lose what the essence of Maui County and No Ka Oi will just be a
phrase like aloha and a lot of other phrases that are going out the door real
quickly. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I, of course, share all of the conflicting
emotions that the Members have. I think we have no argument and we all
understand the importance of open space on Maui. And we had a very
emotional week this week listening to some of the testimony on Honolua
Bay. I initially had, you know, as one of my recommendations included at
least $1 million to see if we could jack up the pot in case that opportunity
comes. However, I am a little concerned about making a permanent
guideline in a restricted fund and the reason that I have that in the back of
my mind was I remember that early in this process we were visited by
Paul Brewbaker and he cautioned us about doing that because he said it
would take away our discretion in times of hard times.
So, that's a little bit of the reluctance that I would have to set up, you
know, an additional earmark. But if, you know, things work out and we
could put more, I certainly am not opposed to that. And I certainly
understand your recommendation to deal with infrastructure. Much of it is
very outdated and much of it has to be dealt with. We also have the need
to set money in that post retirement fund which scares me because it could
come due and really cause a lot of problems for us. So it's not a simple
question, but I think in our heart of hearts every single one of us would
love to buy up all the open beach and spaces that we could buy to keep
Maui, Maui.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. First of all, I don't see
this as a competitive issue with anything. It's not going to diminish our
ability to take care of the infrastructure as it's already delineated in the
Budget, which of course I think is long overdue. And I applaud the
Administration for stepping to the plate and dealing with this unglamorous
issue .... (end of tape 6A) ... increasing our open space fund by 1 percent
as in any way inhibiting our abilities this year to take care of infrastructure
as delineated by the Mayor's budget in your proposal. I also don't see
preserving our open space as a visitors issue, although it certainly would
impact the visitors perception. But we are a land of such immense beauty
that when you come here from anyplace else, you don't know, you're not
going to know that, oh, that used to be open space. You're just going to
look at the beautiful green hills, mountains, and the ocean and say how
beautiful.
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The preservation of open space, Mr. Chairman, is for our people, the
people born and raised here who can remember fishing along a shoreline
or driving past an area that was open and pastoral that's now, you know,
bumper-to-bumper houses. And I also don't think that preserving our
open space means that we diminish our opportunity for affordable
housing. Basically if a land, if land is designated open space, it sort of has
a, an extra hill to climb for development which diminishes it ... diminishes
its fair market value, which makes it more susceptible to someone who
wants to build affordable housing because it's cheaper land. But I don't
think that we need to forgo and give up our open space lands in order to
build affordable housing. The two are not inclusive of each other.
The, the 1 percent increase is not something that we'd be tied to forever if
we decide this year to increase it. You know, the Charter amendment says
a minimum 1 percent. So, as long as we do 1 percent we can do whatever
else we want. We can increase it by 1 percent this year, decrease it next
year back to 1 percent. We're not tied to that. And if you don't think
open space is important to our people, remember what, what we saw here
last Friday. And so that's what moved me, Mr. Chairman, and I would
remind the Members that we have not yet discussed or deliberated on real
property taxes. And, you know, my proposal is to increase real property
tax rate for the hotels by 30 cents, 30 cents, three thin dimes. And I think
they can well afford it. Anybody on this, in this County who can well
afford it, it's the hotel industry.
Look at their profit and loss statements over the last two years, over the
last five years for that matter. Look at the profits they're all enjoying by
converting their hotels to timeshares. That's like double dipping profits.
And, and so I see that the money is there, Mr. Chairman, it's just our
decision on who we want to contribute to the revenues that we have here.
I don't think we need to put the burden on the backs of our residents. I
think we need to put the burden on those people who have profited from
the economic boom on Maui. And it certainly is the hotels. So, you
know, if Members are reluctant because they don't think we have the
money or that it's going to come out of infrastructure, I think that's, you
know, that's quite a leap. So, you know, until we see what we end up with
in real property tax, it's hard to say that we don't have the money.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chairman, thank you. Chairman, I'll be
supporting the, the Chairman's recommendation. However, Chairman,
this County is quickly losing the battle, the battle of being able to maintain
and to keep in perpetuity those areas of significant importance to us.
Comments made by Mr. Victorino in terms of the importance of being
able to take care of our people, for us to be able to purchase these lands, to
purchase the lands so that it'll always be in the hands of, of our people. I
think that is our, one of our primary responsibilities and we're losing the
battle, Chairman.
We're losing the battle to, to these million-dollar properties, we're losing
the battle to gated communities, we're losing the battle to, to private
business who want to keep the gem, you know, Maui, you know, for
themselves. And though I support the Chairman's recommendation
because I think infrastructure is another area that this County has
neglected for decades, in the end, Chairman, if there is additional funds
available after we review the real property tax areas and the like, I would
want to revisit this whole area again so we can all consider the opportunity
of doing both, take care of infrastructure and take care of securing the
properties that we depend on. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. You know, I want to add my
comments to this. I agree with Member Anderson and Member Mateo
about open space. You know, having lived in East Maui all my life I've
been fortunate to, you know, enjoy open space. And you don't realize
how fortunate you are in East Maui in Hana until you go away. And,
when you go away, then you realize that, wow, you know, I had
something really special back in Hana.
And so for me, open space is important and I think most of the Members,
the senior Members on this Council were a part of Hana being able to buy
Muolea Point, which is a, not only a beautiful open space, one of the best
fishing we have in Hana. But it's also culturally significant, it was a
summer home of the, the Alii. That's where they went for their summers.
And when the County along with OHA, along with non-profits were able
to secure that land, which is part of a very important ahupuaa in Hana, that
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left a legacy for the people of Hana to enjoy and for seven generations, as
Hawaiians say, it's always to look down the road seven generations.
And so I certainly support open space, I support any way we can add more
money to it, so we can start to purchase more open space and preserve
some of these special areas. And, you know, going down to South Maui,
you know, in the 1950s and 60s there was nothing down there. And yet,
we weren't, we didn't have the foresight to purchase that area. And
people wanted to give away the land down there during that times. But
look at it now, you can't see the ocean when you drive to Kihei now. So,
open space to me is very important, very important for Hawaiian culture
and local people and we need to make provisions so that we preserve these
open space areas. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess we gotta go
down the line and everybody gotta have our say, yeah, on this one. This is
a real, real tough, tough one. It's a difficult balancing act but again to me
it comes down to balance and what we believe in. I, for one, I'm like
Mr. Medeiros, you know, we gotta do everything to protect open space
and especially our view planes. Not all of us are surfers, I'm not a surfer
but I still love a good view of the ocean, you know. But again our
infrastructure is important as well and the needs of our, our citizens, you
know. And, keep in mind this Charter amendment proposal is permanent.
It's at a minimum 1 percent for however long it may last. Whereas you
look at the Charter, the 2 percent Charter amendment for the affordable
housing fund that sunsets in 2011 so that ends, whereas this one at this
point is permanent.
So there will always be money set aside. But there may be times when we
need to secure additional funds whether it be raising the percentage or
quite possibly raising the real property tax rates on certain categories. So,
I would prefer at this point, because we, we, we're dealing with 2 percent
already being set aside for the affordable housing fund, as well as the
1 percent for the open space, maybe we look at some other alternative to
expand the, the amount that's currently in there. So, that might be one
consideration, Mr. Chairman. And I guess it segues into the 2 percent
after we deal with this, so I've got more to say on that. So, if it, if it's the
will of the majority of this body to quite possibly look at raising the rates
of some of our other categories then, then so be it.
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But, you know, it's unfortunate we're having to buy land at such
exorbitant prices, I mean it's just horrendous. I guess in hindsight if
many, many years ago our County forefathers had, were, were able to see
Maui was going to be like this, then maybe back then the thought could
have been purchase lands. But at the decisions they made were what they
believed to be the right decisions at that moment in time. So we cannot
fault them for not doing this. The way the future holds here we're just
going to have to plan better and it all comes down to planning correctly.
And, when we do projects or approve projects they have to be, you know,
have an emphasis on smart growth and those types of principles,
Mr. Chairman. So, thank you for letting me have my say.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Chair has a few
comments to make. No, he had his turn, then we can come back to him.
This is a very difficult decision, you know, as Chair of this Committee I
do support the open space, as well as preserving land for the people of our
County. But you look at the big picture, you know, not only this year but
upcoming years, you know, we still got to deal with unfunded liability,
which we really don't know how much it's going to cost the County. Yes,
we're putting, putting aside $9 million and, and the way I understand it,
you know, we're probably $300 million, you know, as part of our
unfunded liability, $300 million.
So as we move forward, you know, we need to be conscious of the
unfunded liability that we need to take care of for our retired as well as
existing employees of this County. The other thing that we still need to
continue, you know, although we putting in a lot of money in
infrastructure it's just catching up for many, many decades that we haven't
done improvements in that area. So, we're still going to be looking at
more repair and maintenance on park facilities, community centers, roads,
you know, these things will never end.
The other thing that also bothers me is that our human services needs in
this County, what's going to happen in the future? You know, we still
gotta be very, very conscious of providing the type of services that we
provide, that the State should provide but are not. So, we're pretty, pretty
stuck with that as far as trying to serve this people in Maui County.
The other thing that we had talked about this past several weeks is that our
carryover savings next year might not be the same as this year. You
know, as Mr. Hokama has eluded to that we may be looking at $20 million
rather than 37, 38 million, so we need to really be conscious of that. And
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again, real property tax, you know, how much do we tax our people? And,
you know, that's one stuff that we control here in this Council. So, do we
raise taxes some more or we don't? So, Members, I, I, I leave that
comments with you, my perspective as far as what's going to happen in
the future. Mr. Hokama, comments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just one, one short comment. One thing
that we are in a time when we are dealing with a lot of our retirees that are
from the plantation era and we've moved into the visitor industry area.
We're trying to expand economic engines. We hope to have the benefits
of the technology growth that pays what we ... some of us would use the
term living wages. But you know, until the time comes where we make
the full transitions out of certain eras we know what plantation pensions
are all about: the sugar retirement program, the pineapple retirement
program. And, and so for me coming from that era, Chairman, knowing
what a pineapple retiree makes with his social security, again, everything
that has come before us has worth and is worthy of consideration. But like
we asked those people, so does the County must live within its means.
We would like to buy, I mean if we had the opportunity, I think we should
buy all the land we can right now. But it's not within our means. And so
we need to make those hard choices and that's all I would ask is that as we
look through this budget and we build on for next budget and the big
obligations down the road and I do not say this lightly but it's over a
billion in my calculation, a billion dollars. We need to adjust according to
our means and what we can afford, Chairman. It's not that it's not
important, it's not that it's not worthy. But it still needs to be within our
means to pay and that's all I would ask the Members in their consideration
of how we move forward. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I would request, Mr. Chair, that we
leave this for a revisit after we've done real property tax to see exactly
what our means are. Because I certainly wouldn't suggest it if I didn't
think that there would be a way to do it. Because if the, if the
Administration, the resolution that Ms. Johnson brought forward, should it
pass out of this body and go to the Administration, we're going to need
some funding, some seed money. And I daresay if we had 4,000, or
$4 million in the Open Space Fund that would give seed money for a lot of
open space projects. And, and seed money from the County to a group of
- 196 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

citizens who want to put time and effort in preserving a certain piece of
Maui for the future generations will go a long ways if we have that seed
money to give them. So, you know, I don't see this as an extravagance, I
see it as, as necessary as upgrading our sewer system, Mr. Chairman. So,
I would hope that we could leave this until we revisit real property and get
a final bottom line on what our revenues are going to be.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, for your information, you know,
we have some talk about self insurance, and again, self insurance is for
claims of damages on County to County property, repair, replacement of
County assets, as well as pay for legal and defense costs approved by the
Council, and also pay for settlements of legal claims. But I would like to
ask the Budget Director if Mr. Kalbert Young can be present tomorrow so
that we can ask questions in regards to what if we were to take out a
million, what if we were to take out two millions or even three. How
would that affect self insurance? So, Members, I'm going to leave this
item to come back to if there is no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, it's almost 6:10 at this
time. You guys want to continue on or take a dinner break?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Dinner.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. Let's go for a while.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Dinner.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Go for a while.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Dinner.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Dinner.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Dinner. Dinner. Dinner. Okay, we'll take a dinner
break and then we'll come back here at about 7: 15. Seven fifteen okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yep.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. This meeting is in ... any more comments?
This meeting is in recess until 7:15 ... . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

6:08 p.m.
7:33 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. My apologies, Members. I needed to go to
Longs Drugs and get some cold medicine here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No problem.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. When we left off ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that must have taken you forever with
the Dalai Lama traffic.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. .., (laughter). . . Heavy traffic on Kaahumanu at
this time of the night. Okay. We're into Transfer to the Affordable
Housing Fund. Adjustment to 2 percent of the Net Property Tax revenue.
I think Member Molina had a question on that?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. And I guess the
Members know that when you asked all of us for our proposals I'd, I'd
thrown out for consideration a million dollar increase based on revenues
that would be generated by reinstating the hotel and timeshare tax rates to
the '07 levels. But I know your recommendation, Mr. Chair, is 294,000
which, which I can as well support. The wheels have been turning a little
bit and I thought maybe as an, to get additional funding maybe something
to lower my expectations from one million to something lower. So, I'm
just going throw it out as a proposal and, you know, we can come to a
decision tomorrow when we address the real property tax rates.
To add an additional, to add additional revenue to the affordable housing
fund I was considering bumping up your proposed $4.25 rate for the ag
rates to $4.35. So basically adding a dime to the rate which is still a
reduction from the $4.50 for '07. It would generate additional revenue of
on or about 447,000 and adding that to the 294 would be an additional
revenue of the combined, roughly $741,000. So, I'll just throw that out as
a proposal to the body. And the majority of folks that would be affected
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by this would be the A&Bs, the Maui Land and Pine, it's the large
agricultural land owners. So again, that's just a consideration for the
body. So, I'll leave it at that then, and I'll yield the floor for any
comments, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I could support that. Also, if you looked
under mine I did not change agriculture, I left it at the '07 rate. And, so, I
would most heartedly agree to if we could put the rate back to the '07 rates
and find the additional money to put in there. I think if that's one of the
areas that I really believe we need to continue to put money in because
there's a real major component among all the other components that we
have here, open space and everything inclusive that I think that one is
very, very important. So, I would support Member Molina's proposal.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I just want some clarification.
Member Molina said from 4.25 to 4.35 but actually the Mayor's rate, oh,
I'm sorry. Your proposal is for 4.25?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Four thirty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. No. No. The Chair's proposal is-COUNCILMEMBERMOLINA: Okay. Yeah, 4.25.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --4.25?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: A dime.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So he's adding a dime and then you're
adding a dime. Again, Mr. Chair, I don't have any objections to this
because my proposal was to leave it with last year's rate. But again all of
these individual things until we deal with real property tax rates-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --as a whole I think this is all kind of
variable right now. But I do support adding whatever extra revenue we
can, we can get in adjusting the rates to Member Molina's request for the
294,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. I, too, left the rate based
on the 2007 figures. And, I, I think that'll be a benefit to us by, by
retaining the 2007 figures. I would be able to support Mr. Molina's
proposal. At this point in time, any additional support we can provide to
the Affordable Housing Fund would be an advantage for all of the County.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you. If I could just comment.
Again, on the Affordable Housing Fund, I know there was the prior
discussion, you know, we had to balance our concerns between open space
and building additional units. And please keep in mind the, the uses that
are being proposed for the fund is not only just about land purchase and
building new homes. The fund can be used to provide assistance for
planning and design, rental assistance, those are some of the consideration
for the fund, as well as I believe refurbishing existing units as well. So,
it's not only about just land purchase and putting new homes.
So, you know, sort of to just make a, tie this in with the concern for
preserving open space as well. So, again, it's trying to find balance. So,
there's multiple uses and of course the ordinance still hasn't been finished
yet, but these were some of the ideas or the thoughts as to how the fund
could be used. So, I just wanted to add that in there, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, we'll take up this item tomorrow.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only thought was how much longer is it
going to take until the ordinance is, is able to be implemented? Do you
know, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If! could, Mr. Chair? Member Johnson, it, the,
the item is in Member Mateo's Committee, and if maybe, if I could yield
to Member Mateo for comments.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Mateo, if you have any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Molina .
. . . (laughter) . .. Chairman, Chairman, at this particular point in time as
soon as we complete the Budget process. We just need to take a look at
the agenda again and try to schedule it as soon as possible.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
have to be adopted?

Yes.

And, and will Administrative Rules

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and the only reason I say because I'm all
for the increase in this fund too. But because by the time we do the
ordinance, by the time the Administrative Rules, which will take a little
while get implemented, we're going to be in the next Budget cycle already
and that's the only reason why I'm reluctant to park more money that is
not available for other things where there's a reasonable expectation that it
would be better to put it off until the '09 Budget. That's my only
comment because I believe at this time we've got some money in here. I,
you set aside money. I just don't want to tie up more money that we could
be utilizing for other things when in all likelihood this will not be done
until '09. So, personally, myself, I'd rather just leave it the way it is and
then put off, maybe even have an interim if we move rapidly forward, put,
put some kind of I guess directive out that, yes, we would entertain if
there's a Budget amendment on the part of the Administration. But, right
now, I just would rather not, not add more money at this time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments? So, the Member-ah, the Member--the Chair will bring up this item tomorrow when we take
up again real property taxes. Transfer to the First-Time Home Buyers'
Revolving Fund. Comments? Is everybody okay with the Chair's
recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Who asked the question on this, Mr. Chair?
Well, it wouldn't be here if we didn't have someone asking a question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Let me see.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
entered?

Was it Mr. Hokama who's just now

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Did you ask about the Affordable Housing
Fund? The First-Time ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: First-Time Home Buyers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The revolving fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 9.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Page 3 of9.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this No. 8-12?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No. 12. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. My comments was that I was
going to share with the Committee, Mr. Chairman--and again, Members,
thank you for your patience with my attendance--was in the hopes that we
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would be able to access the Affordable Housing Fund to address some of
these concerns that the General Fund has been supporting. But I've been
informed, Mr. Chairman and Members, that until we have some
ordinances enacted and in place in the Maui County Code, no matter how
worthy some of our considerations may be, at this point in time we would
be unable to access those funds. So, Mr. Chairman, I have no objections
to moving this amount forward.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
recommendation?

Thank you.

Any objections to the Chair's

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. You want to revisit the last one that we
had? Okay. Moving forward. Department of Fire and Public Safety.
Delete all expansion positions and salary adjustments.
Questions?
Comments? Objections? No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Delete Operations Administration
equipment. Any objections? Any objections? No? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, my question is we're doing this
because we cannot fill the existing positions. Is that. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Basically, it's the expansion for the three Battalion
Chief as well as-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Right. Now I, now I remember.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --six Fire Fighters.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It didn't say, it didn't say Battalion Chief but
now I recall. Okay. That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. How about the deletion of the Operation
Administration equipment that was tied to this particular expansion
positions? No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS .... (end of tape 6B) ...
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department of Housing and Human Concerns. Grants
for Affordable Rental Program, $400,000. Comments?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait. Wait. Gotta find it, 10-1.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Ten, one.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That's on Page 7 on your master. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is No.2, the grant.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I recall during my tenure as Budget Chairman one of
the reasons we set up this fund was to help offset when we were doing real
property tax adjustments. I think it was in one of my years that we had
increased the, the apartment category and that this fund was to assis ... ,
have the Department of Housing and Human Concerns work with renters
to help offset some of the supposedly increased costs that would be passed
on to them from the apartment owners. This wasn't to be expended out to
a grant to an outside agency. This was to be done by our Department to
address that specific need and it was part of their ten-point strategic plan
that their Department had put together on how to address some of the
housing issues whether it be in the rental program or in the ownership
program. And, so I just share that because we have moved away from the
intent of Council why we had set up this fund. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. That was back in 2003 that
we allocated $100,000 to this particular fund and there were no
distribution as far as 2003 goes. But I understand now it's being
administered by a non-profit organization. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you say fund you mean the program,
the rental housing program?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was kind of under the impression that it
was to extend the assistance that Section 108 gives--
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --because we have so many people on the
waiting list.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That year I think we raised taxes and part of the issue
was how do we handle the-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. That's right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --the rentals-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for people renting apartments.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So who is this grant to?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At present. ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it's a competitive grant, isn't it?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I beg your pardon?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn't this a competitive grant?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It is a competitive grant. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, it hasn't been issued to anybody yet?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No. It has been.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman,--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It has?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --there's, there's two organizations that have
been competing for the grant and has been expending monies and that's
MEO and the other organization is Women Helping Women. And there's
I believe two other organizations who have also submitted requests to the
Department.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Proposals.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
recommendation any objections?

Members,

III

regards to the Chair's

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Objections? No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, could I just ask for clarification, Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are these grantees utilizing this rental
housing program money for the purpose that was intended?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In my opinion it wasn't what we had originally
intended. And I think in the second year because the Department couldn't
show use of the fund, their answer was contract it out so we don't have to
take the heat from the Council. But it was supposed to be a departmental
assignment. Because this was not supposed to be, you know, we have
Section 8 from the Federal Government. This was not supposed to
supplement Section 8. This was about property tax adjustments in that
apartment category. It was specifically about real property taxation and
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how to make sure that the renter got the least impact. Because we were
not convinced-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that if the apartment owner got the, the, the-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Break.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the financial assistance from the program that they
would pass it on to the renter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Our whole intent was that the renter should be getting
the, the assistance from the County in this one pilot project. That was the
main intent, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Objections? No objections?

Members,

any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, well, I'm not, I'm still not clear then,
Mr. Chair, if the grant, grantees are utilizing the money in that manner.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes, too, and that's the process that the Housing and
Human Services now is allocating this funding to an organization to
support those individuals not as what Member Hokama had said.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. So, it's not being used for the intended
purpose?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: As Member Hokama indicated based on 2003 this was
supposed to support those renters in the apartments. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Then can we put in a proviso stipulating how
it is to be used to comply with the purpose and intent for which it was
originally designed?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We could, we could recommend that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. That, that would be, I don't know how
the other Members feel but that would be my preference then because if
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it's a program that's supposed to have a specific goal and objective and
it's not being conducted or not being implemented that way, then that
would be my request just to put in a proviso.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's my understanding, if I remember correctly,
that what is being done with this money--at least by, by MEO, I don't
know about the other entity--is that it, you know, maybe looking at it from
a different perspective is accomplishing the objective. Because the money
is being given to low-income people who need assistance with rentals, and
their rentals probably have gone up as a result of the landlord raising the
rent because he has to pay more in taxes. So that's, the money is going to
low-income renters, it's just in a different way, it's not being handled by
the Department.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And, and I concur with
Member Baisa. However, in order to expedite and we can move on if the
Chair could request that the Director of Housing and Human Concerns be
present just to clarify the use of these funds.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Budget Director, if you could have the
Director of Housing and Human Concerns be here tomorrow. Thank you.
Moving forward. Grants and disbursements for affordable housing and/or
supportive living housing. Comments? Who had comments on this?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
My understanding under the supportive living
housing is, is the concern was the amount of hours that some of our people
are receiving regarding home service. Is that a good, is that an accurate
thing regarding supportive living? I see Ms. Baisa saying no, so if she
would be kind enough to refresh my memory.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa, please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think what you might be referring to, Chair
Hokama, is in-home services. And, I'm not sure that, that's what this is.
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In fact I think, Chair, it might be a really good idea, I'm in doubt myself as
to exactly what this money is being used for.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi, do we have any information regarding
this? I thought in-home services was quite a bit more but I may be wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I think in that, under that same category if
you go to 41.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Forty-one?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. I think Grant to Disabled Services for Frail
and Elderly might be the big amount you're talking about, the 720,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. I'm not sure what this particular thing is.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I thought this was the, the one that, you know, we
provide like three hours of services per week?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right. And those would be the in-home services.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So is this the right category, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The in-home services?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if you would allow, ifMr. Taguchi can ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Mr. Taguchi, please.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, I believe the in-home services was the frail
and elderly addition. That money was supposed to supplement, I believe,
either State or Federal monies I believe for care of elderly in the home.
The conversation was that the, the, the, the requirements by the grants
didn't allow for sufficient hours of service even to take a bath on a regular
basis or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
I'm not too sure what is done with this grants and
MR. TAGUCHI:
disbursements for affordable housing or supportive living housing.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Maybe when Ms. Medeiros comes here tomorrow that
we can ... she can provide us with more information.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I have a ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And if you would be kind enough, or Mr. Pablo, kind
enough to have her prepared. I would like us to have consideration that in
the expanding of the grant funds that we try and take care those that are of
most needy and are unable to pay. I'm concerned about the income levels
and that we, we should try and take care those that cannot help
themselves.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Pablo, if that can be conveyed to Ms. Medeiros?
MR. PABLO: Yes. I will.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we put a proviso in to that effect?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We can revisit this and put in the proviso once she gives
us an explanation when she does come here. But again, we can add that
proviso at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 4, the very first item. Provided, that disbursement
for salaries and premium pay is limited to 57 equivalent personnel and
11.0 Limited Term Appointments. Questions? Comments? Think about
it?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Who had the question? I don't even
have it marked on mine.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Somebody must have asked the question, we should
have put initials over here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, it was Member Medeiros had the question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros, Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hana housing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: About the housing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Tag, you're it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Affordable housing for ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are you going down, Chair, are you going
down number by number or you want me just get into my point?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Number by number.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's what I thought. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We probably will get to yours someplace along the line
here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Item I?

So, there's no issues on the recommendation for that

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Then the next one down is, it says
consensus add half an EIP, half-time Clerk Typist III with a proviso for
feasibility study for senior affordable housing in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's, that's Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Another place we put 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah. So, how does this work? It is ...
because I don't...do I have to say how much or it's just a proviso that it
will be taken for, from the total amount?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: From the total amount looking at this. And I think the
reason why you put it in here was because of professional services-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --that you could utilize to provide this feasible study for
the senior affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, if there's consensus this proviso
is in?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. But, let's check if they have professional services
dollars in the B Account. I want to make sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: For Human Concerns?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I think when I checked, they did not, but we
can check again.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Staff, you can make a quick check on that?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. They get there faster than me. Chair,
would, excuse me, Chair?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Yeah. Would this be under Housing and
Human Concerns Housing Division B Account?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Housing Division.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: If it is,-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --yeah, their professional services under
613 2 is zero. And if you go further down, well, that's all the professional
service under that heading. Subobject Code 6132 in Budget details
Page 8-6. Professional services, '06 there was money but very little and
'07, '08 is zero.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. It seems like there is zero
dollars in professional services in most of their Division.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So what is your suggestion, Chair, that. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on. Grant to Community Work Day
Program, $200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the one we, Mr. Chair, isn't that the
one we wanted to put an additional 10,000 for which we were requested?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. I think Member Baisa wanted to add $10,000 to
that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause that's what I marked over here.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My suggestion would be to take it from the
Kidney Foundation.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members heard that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Hana ...

This is for the work day, Chairman, or for the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Community Work Day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: For the work day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Community Work Day.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Event for the Community Work Day.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, again there's another area where we show
Community Work Day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did you ask for consensus, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Not yet. Okay, Members, you heard the
suggestion. Any comments to the suggestion before the Chair calls for the
consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're gonna remove $10,000 from the Kidney
Foundation and add it on to the Community Work Day program.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED CONSENSUS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Moving on. Grants and disbursements for Hana
Human Services, $20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Was that yours, Bill?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You wanted to put the money in here? I
had written down this is one of the places that we were suggesting, you
know, for that study.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But then we're going to have to bring it from
someplace else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, we can bring it from the Kidney fund .
. . . (laughter). .. Oh. I'm sorry, I'm not supposed to say that. I'm sorry.
I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. When we come down to Kidney Foundation
we'll take positive action on that. But as far as your grants and
disbursements for Hana Human Services, the Chair recommended 20,000.
Somebody else had another idea.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What you needed for your study?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I thought we were going to ... the request
was for additional 50,000 for the senior study in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That was on the above one, the proviso, so
are we trying to do both or?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If I, if I may make a recommendation, please. It's
going to take a lot of work, but we, we eliminated the three expansion
Laborer lIs from the Solid Waste Fund.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say that, that is over, the 60 ... 61,000 you
had, the fringes whatnot-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you can reduce that from the General Fund transfer
and then place 50 from the General Fund into the affordable, senior
affordable-- 215 -
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Housing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --feasibility study as one way to deal with the need of
East Maui.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Staff, got that? Okay. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And we're making that 50 ... 50,000?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Where do you ... at this point my understanding is that we're
going to just put it in there and rely on this, on the reductions that were
made earlier. We can do the adjustments; however, we need to understand
exactly in which appropriation do you want to put this, my understanding
is 50,000?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fifty thousand.
MR. TAGUCHI: So, I mean is it going to be in ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It should be in the Housing Division.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: In the Housing Division.
MR. TAGUCHI: Is it a line item in the Housing Division?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Please. So, that they'll use that money strictly for
the feasibility study.
MR. TAGUCHI: Right. And it will not be a grant to a particular entity. It'll be
for them to go ahead through a procurement.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
MR. TAGUCHI: Am I correct?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
MR. TAGUCHI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the other $10,000 if you can remove
Kidney Foundation and put the other $10,000 that is taken out from the
three expansion position in the Solid Waste into that. You may have a
debate on Kidney Foundation and all of the other non-profit organizations
in regards to their administrative costs. Thank you. Moving forward.
Grants and disbursements for Hana Human Services, $20,000. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Seeing none. Thank you. Grants and disbursements for
Youth Centers, $1,750,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is that yours, Michelle?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And I think this is the area that we were going to add
$65,000 for renovations at the Kihei Youth Center.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It was 120,000, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, 120,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Where you going to get it from?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Member Anderson, as far as the monies for that,
any idea where it's going to come from?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll yield to Chair Hokama .... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What was that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're going to add a proviso $120,000 to the Kihei
Youth Center for repair and we need to find $120,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me wave my wand. .., (laughter) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You da man.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I have no suggestion specifically at this time,
Chairman. I'll be happy to work with the Members to see where we may
be able to make some adjustments.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that.
Kidney Foundation of Hawaii. Member Johnson.

Grant to National

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. And, after reviewing their
budget I, I just have a problem, you know, with the administrative
expenses. I don't, I mean if Members want to keep 10,000 in there that's
one thing. But, I personally think that, you know, they do good work, I'm
not saying that, I just feel that we can't continue year after year. And it
was my understanding this was a one-year grant.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It was a two-year grant-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This was a one time ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --and this is the second year of that two year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Well, I, I didn't remember it that way.
But, anyway I, I basically would like to zero it out. That's my personal
OpInIOn.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Members, this is the Chair's recommendation.
If you guys want to zero it out, let me know.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Support withdraw. Denial.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Support the denial.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Support that withdrawal.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, the Kidney Foundation, I'm not real
familiar with the, the grant that you guys gave two years ago. But the ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Last year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh. Last year. And it's for two years?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Two years.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and your recommendation, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is to continue that second year grant of$50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and they're asking to withdraw
some money from that grant?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Zero out.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Well, they want, well, the four Members that already
voted wanted to zero out.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because I'm trying to do dialysis and
stuff, it would be contradictory for me to not support this. So, I'm going
to support your recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, you mentioned the history was this
is the second year of the grant?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Of a two-year grant.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I don't mind seeing it zeroed out or deny
a request next fiscal year. But I'll support your recommendation for this
year.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I was going to tell Mr. Medeiros that he can, that was
his 40,000 for his Hana dialysis. .., (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can we revisit? .. , (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if I had to make a choice, I would prefer
that the balance of this fund go to something that I know, especially, you
know, with, with my community on Lanai that I would prefer this 40,000
balance go to the Hana dialysis program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would concur with Chairman Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to clarify my position-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --because I don't normally support reductions in
non-profit agency funding. But we have received a budget and it appears
that this program could continue if there were a reduction. Their
administrative cost without details--and we only have lump sums, we
don't have details--appear to be rather high and I think that's been a
concern for those of us that have looked at it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, remove $50,000 is what I'm
hearing? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. Remove 40, because we already took 10.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. The 10, remember we took out three expanded
positions for a total of $61,000. We put in 50,000 for senior affordable
housing in Hana and $10,000 for Community Work Day program.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : You know, after all that discussion and
Member Hokama's suggestion, and, you know, we've been going to him,
you know, for, to figure our funding of things we, we didn't initially want.
But I spoke to him and I spoke to you about trying to get some money for
start-up dialysis center in Hana which most of the Members here support.
If we're going to delete it, that I prefer we use that money for start-up
funds for the Hana dialysis.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, I'm going to call, when Member, well, when
the Department of Human Services Director comes here tomorrow
because we have so many non-profit organizations that are requesting for
funding and if the administration cost is going to be an issue--in this case,
it is--then I would request from her information in regards to salaries and
wages of all non-profit organizations receiving funding from this County
Council. I think Member Anderson requested that information. Yes.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and actually, Mr. Chair, I did do that so
I think they couldn't provide it for this year but they should provide it for
next year.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just for information, kind of a nationally accepted
standard is between 12 and 15 percent.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Twelve and fifteen percent.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. For administration and so when it gets a
little higher than that, there needs to be good justification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Moving on. So that $50,000 now
goes to Hana dialysis. Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you very much, Chair. Appreciate
the support of the Members and of the Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, no objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: We need some little, we need a little direction on the Hana
dialysis.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. TAGUCHI: What is the organization's name that the grant will be going to?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We spoke to the people in Hana about the
dialysis and there was two organizations that it could go to because I
understand it has to be non-profit. And one was the Hana Community
Association, the other one that's kind of going to partner with the Hana
dialysis is the Hui No Ke Ola Pono program. If you want me to further
check on that and let you know, Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Please. Thank you.
MR. TAGUCHI: No. Chair, Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI:
We could make it a grant for, however, it'll be the
Department's responsibility to determine which, and it might not
necessarily be only those two, but they would determine which non-profit
would get it.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Chair, I think we would be satisfied
with that approach.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
MR. TAGUCHI: And, Chair, Chair, the amount is 50 or 40 thousand?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fifty.
MR. TAGUCHI: Fifty. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
I'm confused because I thought the
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
organization was Hui Laulima Ohana? They're the ones that are
requesting that, that's the organization Lehua Cosma is ... (end of tape
7A) ... they're the ones that are requesting the County property for the
Hana dialysis center?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, point of information.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS:
Yeah.
Hui Laulima Ohana is not a
registered non-profit at this point and that's why we didn't suggest their
organization right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. So they're working with Hui No Ke
Ola Pono?
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah. That'll be a partnership.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Great. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We have here a grant for Hana dialysis, so.
Okay. Going, moving on. Grant to Disabled Services for the Frail and
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Elderly. Again, this is the in-home services. Chair recommendation is
$720,000. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask that my consideration for the earlier
supportive living housing program be also considered for this program
also. Which is we are trying to ... 1 would prefer we try to take care those
that need it the most and cannot help themselves due to economic
situations.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Who had requested a possible increase on
this?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I did.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You don't want to pitch it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You don't want to pitch it? Now is your
shot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. He just, we're going to move the, isn't
that what Ijust understood. Chair is going to move the 300,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. I think what Mr. Hokama--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. He wants to proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --told us is that ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama had said that we gotta ensure that
this money goes to the needy in the community that need this particular
servIce.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. And I, I had asked when I had done
mine, I asked for an additional... oh, where is the darn paper? Okay.
Gotta look my ... sorry, ladies and gentlemen, I just get so, like most of
you, I forget what I did so many nights ago.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One hundred and fifty thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, didn't I do 150, something like that,
yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One hundred and fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I'm looking for that, but yeah, I
think I asked for 150,000 more because I was, and even that was such a,
what I considered, a very small, small modest and I could find the money
by, you know, I was deleting certain other, other things that I, I felt was
important or wasn't quite as important. Yeah. So, you know, and so my
feeling is I was really hurt and shocked when I was told that, that part, you
know, we couldn't provide much services because of such little money in
there. And, so, I even feel, felt the $150 [sic] was really not doing much
more than just adding a little bit more hours and more accommodations for
our needy citizens, especially our seniors.
So, I'm sorry, I was like the only person that did that but I really feel that,
that's something that we gotta look at and somehow if I gotta go find
money someplace else, I'll go find it. But, you know, and I'll see
Mr. Chair for help there too. Because he's such a good ... wave your
magic wand again, please .... (laughter) . .. There you go. We'll find the
money. It's just been waved. So, I'd like the support of the, the rest of
our Members to increase that because I really think we need the services
for our frail and elderly. I really believe that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit and you come up with a number
and you find the money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Grant to the Maui Family YM.C.A.
Capital Campaign, I have $500,000. That's the Chair's recommendation.
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I recommend another $500,000 to be
added in to this. I think I spoke earlier about the need for this. I think that
it's important, many of the people that are actually served by the
YM.C.A. program are really in the category of frail and elderly. Income
qualifications are also taken into consideration when people come forward
for those programs. There's many County workers. We have a real need
and Maui County can't do it all. And in the same way that we partner
with like our Maui Arts and Cultural Center, when we support Hale
Mahaolu, or the Binhi At Ani, where we have, you know, a lot of
community activities, all of these organizations and all of the, I guess, the
activities that go on are really important.
But this one in particular because the learn-to-swim programs, all of the
things. And the reason I'm suggesting adding in the additional $500,000
is because we are currently on our skate parks, we are paying $112,000 for
a program that for years YM.C.A. paid and lost money and supplemented
the County, subsidizing that program at a great expense to themselves.
So, for the 30,000 that they were getting reimbursed we now have to pay
112,000. They were taking care of three skate parks and the 112,000 is
only for one skate park. So, you know what, I figure we owe them this
money and where I would get it from would either be from additional
revenues generated, or I would take it out of, if we can again take it out of
the, the Claims and Settlements section, the insurance and self insurance.
That's where I would take it from.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Mr. Kalbert Young is going to be here tomorrow
morning and we'll ask him about, you know, the, what would happen if
we take out monies from this particular self insurance fund. Okay.
Member Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. I guess just because it's
late I can look at this item and food for thought. I, because our own youth
centers are in need of help and assistance and because we run programs
that are County programs that we cannot service, it's hard for me to, you
know, to look at us providing this kind of service to other organizations
when we can't even help ourselves. It's not that I don't think they do
good work. But this is a national organization and I think they have the
ability to, to raise the kind of funds they have using their, their national
affiliations. So, Chairman, food for thought would be to take this
$500,000 and move this to our youth centers. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Baisa, followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I totally understand what Member Mateo is
saying; however, I do want to give the YM.C.A. points for leveraging.
This is a huge project that's costing, I don't know, an excess of 10 mil, if I
understand it correctly. And they are doing a yeoman's job of raising
private capital. And I think that when an organization that serves a large
segment of the community and they serve all kinds of people. It's very
interesting and they have scholarships for those who cannot afford to pay.
They have babysitting services, they have the learn-to-swim program
where people like myself probably would never have learned to swim
without some kind of assistance. And they have fitness programs, they
take care of the youngsters so that the moms can, you know, participate in
programs. They do a lot with after school and, you know, serve a very
So rather than seeing them as
broad section of the community.
competition I see them as partners. So anything we can do to assist them I
would really appreciate that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And, and, because our youth centers
only serve certain age groups, the youth centers don't serve a lot of the
youngsters that are under a certain age or they don't serve the kids that get
into the late teens. The YM.C.A. serves adults, they serve all variety of
age groups, and they do not, you know, have requirements that a lot of our
County facilities do. So, if the Members don't want to put in one million I
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would certainly not take away the 500,000 that's in there. I would be
opposed to that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Question?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
monthly fee--

What

IS

the fee that they charge, the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's based on income.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to be a member?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's based on income.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, if maybe I may be wrong
but it would probably be comparable to what one would pay at a regular
gym, for example, like a Gold's Gym. I happen to be a member at Gold's
Gym and I pay $30 a month, and I believe their fees are a little higher than
that. So, let's conservatively say $40 a month.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, it's my recollection that it's
somewhere in the neighborhood of $60 a month and, and it has to be a
direct deposit from your check ... checking account. You can't just pay it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Cannot call anybody to talk? No?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean that's what it was last time I
checked. If my memory is not good, someone can correct me.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
- 228-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just want to add to that information and
hopefully it's correct. And, when I went to their presentation of the
facility and the programs they offer, one of the things they did say was
that if people came there that were not members but wanted to utilize the
facility for a day and couldn't afford it they would absorb that cost of nonpayment. And that's what I heard and so I just wanted to add that to the
information, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion on this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I'd just like to,-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --no, I'd like to say that I'd like to have this
revisited. I'd like to make sure before we make a decision we get all the
facts and I would like to see specifically what they charge. I remember
the presentation, they do great work, I think they accommodate, they help
a lot of people at all ages, and I was a member for a while and I enjoyed
my, my tenure there. Just don't have the time to go nowadays but that's
another issue. So, I would like to revisit this matter and, and move on if
we may, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any objections to Member Victorino's
suggestion that we come back and visit this tomorrow morning?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Department of Management.
equivalent personnel for unfunded EA positions. Proviso?

Add two

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you asking for a proviso or?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Somebody wanted to put in a proviso of some kind.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: These were the return right employees. I
wanted to put in the CIP Coordinator position.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Before you do that let's talk about-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --the two EAs I think.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think I had brought up my concern.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, for example if you took the third quarter,
a preliminary third quarter assessment of where we stand after three
quarters, the Department of Management currently has available for the
last quarter 40 percent of their funds, which means if they had this two
EPs currently, they could fill it with warm bodies. So, I, you know, I
really don't know how to ... I understand the intent, Chairman and
Members. I'm not too sure if it is timely to add it in at this point in this
budget. Because let's say we all have memory lapses and senior moments.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Which we do sometimes. .., (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because remember now, Members, I believe the last
term if we didn't catch it, the last Administration was going to fill one of
those EIP slots that had return rights to now the current Deputy Director of
Finance and she would have been out. Okay. But we caught it 'cause we
remembered. So, I don't know how, how for us to deal with it to ensure
that what the intent is going to be followed through. Like I mentioned in
the other program our intent was very clear, it did not happen. And so, I
don't know if we should, how we should treat it at this point in time. You
know, again maybe we might need some comments from Personnel,
Chairman, Services on if this is the intent, how would we structure it to
ensure that it is for the two employees that have return rights up to I
believe four years from the appointment. So, I would just ask maybe we
should return to this and get a comment from DPS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Budget Director, if you can have Ms. Krieg
to help us out in regards to this two equivalent personnel, unfunded EA
positions.
MR. PABLO: Yes, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Office of the ... Member Anderson, you had
some comments on Management Office.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Yes.
Ms. Morrison came down this
morning and asked us about the CIP Coordinator and the Administrative
Assistant. Wouldn't that be under this section?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry, Chair, but can anyone remind
me, does anyone have the letter handy? I've lost it in the shuffle. I'm in,
I'm in support of this and I think we need to ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: She requested an Administrative Assistant II for eight
months, $28,096; Countywide CIP Coordinator, eight months, $54,112.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. So, that's an addition of
$82,118 . You know, I think the function of this position is something that
is so important, something that we've been missing for so long, and I want
to give this Administration and this Department a chance to get our CIP
program in line with our community plan implementing actions. And it
hasn't worked without this position all these years so I think we should
give it a shot and see if we can't start fulfilling the implementing
requirements of our community plans, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more comments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not sold on this. I would say I might be open to a
pilot project but I'm not ready to just give civil service positions because
in this Department unlike the Mayor's there's all civil service. And I'm
not ... 1 would like to see how this might work out. So, I would ask that we
return to this and I would be happy to work with any Member on options
for the Committee to consider.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros, followed by Member
Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. I agree with Chairman
Hokama. I think this should be a pilot program or the positions should be
like limited term appointments instead of civil service. And the reason I
say this is, you know, as we discussed earlier a lot of our Departments
have their own CIP Coordinator. The people in those Departments are
specialized for that Department. They know the work in their Department.
And supposedly the CIP Coordinator is going to, you know, coordinate all
these people but these Departments have their priorities. And I think
Ms. Morrison also said that this coordinator will, will not have the
authority to have the CIP Coordinators in different Departments, you
know, conduct themselves and their projects the way the Administration
Coordinator sees it. So I think we need to see how it works and we need
to see how it works on a temporary basis before we commit to civil service
positions. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I don't, I don't have a problem
with putting this, I mean, I guess we could put this underneath the
Mayor's Office so that it's not a civil service position. The function
would be the same, the person could still report to the Managing Director.
You know, Member Medeiros, brought up the fact that each Department
has their own CIP--did you say Coordinator?--and I think that's the
problem, Mr. Chair, is that each Department is only really concerned
about what they want to accomplish within their Department and are not
looking at the overall picture that our community plans paint.
And, so, we're missing the boat and, and, and that's why we need
someone to coordinate with all Departments the policies and objectives in
our community plans. And I see this person, let's just say taking the
community plan of my region and working with the various Departments
and their Coordinators to say, okay, we need to do these various things to
implement the policy objective in the Kihei Community Plan and your
Department can do this part, your Department can do this part and
coordinate it. So, that maybe you might find that the objectives within the
Department can fit the community plan if there's someone there who's got
that top of mind and is pushing that. Right now most of these
Departments don't even read the community plan. It sits on a shelf. So,
you know, we're, we're investing an awful lot of money in our new
General Plan which is going to be new community plans eventually.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
And I'd like to see some of the
implementing actions in the community plans we have already
implemented.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, my suggestion is move it to the Mayor's
Office and make it non-civil service and, you know, let's give it a chance
and see what happens in the next Budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Well, I take the same position that
Councilmember Hokama takes except for the fact that one of the points,
that was brought up and I thought was very important, was that this person
would bring continuity to the Council and to the Administration. In other
words, there would be someone around who could tell us what projects,
where they're at, and what they've been able to accomplish. When you
have Department Heads who change, when you have Administrations that
change, when you have Council Members that change, it makes it
difficult.
Thank God we have Councilmember Hokama, Councilmember Pontanilla,
who has the historical background because someone like me would be
totally lost and that's a fact. So, I believe if you want to start it as a pilot
project, put 'em there for now to see how they work out, that's fine with
me. But I would like at a certain point if it is working and if this really
shows the benefit, then we make it a civil service position so that person
could be the historical perspective, the coordinator to make sure what
monies and what projects we put out get done instead of three years later
we talking about, oh, I think this was supposed to happen but that was the
other Administration, that was the other Director.
I think some kind of uniformity, some kind of consistent manner. In
business we have different types of HRs and stuff. People that get certain
positions that keep perspective on many areas. We need that in Council, I
mean not in Council, but in County Government. So, Mr. Chair, I don't
care where we put it, I'd like to see it started so that we can see what kind
of benefit, but more importantly, eventually, I believe once this gets taken
off and we get a good person in there we want to keep that person there.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think it should be in the Office of the Mayor
and I think that it was something that was requested specifically by the
Mayor. So I have no problem putting it there on a pilot project basis and
we'll find the money.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: My only comment is that it's going to be the
Administration's responsibility to make all Departments come to a
common goal. If you don't have that, this position not going work. So, I
leave it at that. Thank you. And we'll revisit this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moving on. Let's see, Grant to Maui Visitors Bureau.
Office of the Mayor. Revisit? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I had some other areas that I was
looking at for, I guess, utilizing some of the funds. One of the things that,
and I would like to reduce at least by a minimum of 125,000 the grant to
MVB for a specific study. It might be in Council Services or whatever but
I described it basically in my summary. We have no quantified study or
quantified information that tells us what are the impacts on our landfills,
what are the impacts on roadways, sewage, water. I can tell you, I know
some of the impacts because I'm living with them in West Maui. But I
would like some type of a study done and I want that study to come out of
this money because it directly relates to the visitor industry. And, I think
that we need to know this.
So I would advocate at least going down 125,000. I also, under the Office
of the Mayor, was looking at our lao Theatre air conditioning reducing
300,000 and taking that out of MVB, and then also funding the positions
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that we were just speaking about. So, whatever that totals, that was the
amount that I wanted to remove from Maui Visitors Bureau. And, my
rationale for taking it from Maui Visitors Bureau is, and I don't want to
flog a dead horse, but earlier I made my statements about why I think it's
important for us to move in some direction of sustainability. We're, we're
looking at the law of diminishing returns. Eventually ... timeshare industry
has made huge inroads. They're spending money marketing. Why are we
spending money to resell people who we know will return?
And, if we don't provide for these other things, the people will not come
back anyway. There are many impacts that are coming from our visitor
industry and I really want to see that quantified and I really believe that it
is important and for, for, if for no other reason I keep hearing, oh, if you
cut Maui Visitors Bureau, the visitors will stop coming. I don't believe
that and the only way we're ever going to find that out, Mr. Chair, is if we
actually cut from the budget and see if anything happens.
If it doesn't, I mean, just a few years ago they had, you know, I think half
this budget and have we gotten twice as many visitors? I don't, I don't
know. And if we are, they're creating big problems because we can't
manage with all of that and all of the growth that comes along with it. So
I, I just, I really, really believe that we've got to reach a point where we've
got to take a look at this and someway if they have a dedicated source of
funding or some other means within our Budget, that's fine. But, I, those
are the areas that I would cut, but I would specifically ask if, you know,
for no other reason to take 125,000 out and use that at minimum for this
particular study. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I, I have a question. If, and this is kind of
like, not related to that subject but to the subject we just spoke of before.
If we were to take that CIP Coordinator and that secretarial position and
move it to the Mayor's Office, would the Budget items that was in the
Managing Office be able to be moved to the Mayor's Office or we have to
find separate funding?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We still need to find funding for those two positions.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so those positions were not funded in
the original Budget?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments to the
Chair's recommendations? Ifnot ... Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Seem like
everybody waiting, yeah. Okay. I know there's going to be a lot of
discussion on this one, Mr. Chairman. I will support your proposal and
first and foremost, why tamper with success? I, you know this entity has
proven themselves. Remember when 9111 happened? I mean we went
into the tank, like every other community, every other visitor industry in
various states. But MVB somehow, I'm sure they contributed to getting
our visitor industry back on their feet. And, it's a flat request from last
year, but yes, it was increased the prior fiscal year.
And, if I could analogize this with ... for some reason this, this particular
event in history always sticks in my mind, it relates to Swiss watches. For
a long time the Swiss watch industry was dominant but then they became
complacent, and before you know it, the Japanese caught the Swiss up in
terms of watch technology and the Swiss fell way behind. And I've
always looked at this particular event as why tamper with success, or why
try not to better yourselves? You know, if you become too complacent
this is what can happen. And, and a visitor industry is a very, very
competitive industry. You know, when you turn on the TV you see places
that we seldom hear about now becoming maj or forces in the visitor
industry. You know, small little islands, Curacao, I guess the Bahamas
and all these other places. Mexico are making strong inroads with their
visitor industry.
So and, and look at what is generated from the visitor industry in terms of
the return. Many of our, you know, if there was a way to determine how
much of the visitor industry revenue contributes back to our various
County Departments ... (end of tape 7B) ... Mr. Chairman. And my
feeling is give them another opportunity at this funding level. If the rate
of return is less for the next fiscal year, then we'll have to look at a
different number. So, that's my pitch, give them one, another shot at this
funding level and then we'll see what happens.
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So, you know, I hope the Members can remember what's been generated
from the industry. I mean, again, it comes down to the rate of return, the
investment we make into this entity. I don't know how much return other
entities can bring back to Maui, you know, in terms of real, in terms of
revenue that fund our Departments, that fund our Departments and
non-profit entities as a start. So, I mean, just, just imagine if the revenue
went down from our visitor industry, you know. There would be less to
play with, I can tell you that. So, that's enough for me at this point.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I may speak again on it. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more comments to the Chair's proposal?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: This is a hard one for me, Chair. But I'm able to
reconcile, you know, giving this money to the, well, not, I don't know if
we call it giving, but investing in the Maui Visitors Bureau to this level.
Because I tried to look at what this industry brings to Maui and how we all
acknowledge that it's our cash cow. And, you know, we all have our
moments when we grumble about too many visitors and the impacts of
visitors and how visitors get in our way and all of the above. But, the fact
remains that it is the cash cow. And I think there's another issue that's
pending out there, so we can keep that on the table while we reconcile this.
And that is, we haven't decided on what we're going to do in terms of
property taxes for this sector of our community. And so for now I'm okay
with, with your recommendation.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chairman, I'm going to support your
recommendation but I will say I will support it with reservations. There
are, there are some issues or some concerns that I have in terms of the
increase or the projected request of funding for MVB. I think I still need
to have a discussion with MVB in terms of getting clarification of some
expenditures that I think is blatant. But at this point, Chairman, I will
support your recommendation.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Hokama, followed by Member Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would just add to the discussion and I
think every Member has very valid points that they have shared with us,
with one another this evening. I would agree that at least we recognize
that it is very competitive. The visitor industry worldwide is a growing
and now highly competitive for the discretionary spending of individuals.
I would say though, Mr. Chairman, yes, we are providing $3.8 million to
keep Maui foremost in our potential visitors' minds. And, I would say
besides the $22 million projected revenues from TAT, I would also note
that the top ten taxpayers in the County of Maui are visitor properties.
And they also, well, they have the assessed valuation of 24 percent of our
total amount, we currently extract from that component 36 percent of the
total real property tax revenues. So, I would say, Members, yes, we deal
with the negatives of the industry, but the positive is it has allowed us
whereby the visitor, I mean excuse me, our homeowners component, our
single-family component, which has the same valuation, is able for us to
only ask them to pay 8 percent of the total real property tax requirements.
So I would say if something should happen to this industry at this point in
time, there will be a shift of where subsidies go and more than likely our
residential side will have to bear the additional need to increase its
contribution to the total real property tax revenue picture. At this point in
time, I think it's fair what we provide and what we get back, not only in
TAT but in real property taxes. But I would also say the industry is not
unknowing of its impact on its, our communities. And that is why you see
the charity walks, where they go out raise money for non-profits. During
the holidays the visitor industry does a full sit-down dinner with
chinaware and glassware and silverware for our seniors.
I, I think we need to look at the whole picture than just a component of the
picture, Chairman. And I would just ask the Members while I would
recommend us supporting and for some of you, you look at it as a cash
cow, I look at it as a very heavy gorilla on my back. But I need that
money from them to help build up the other economic engines of our
County so that appropriately as we raise up our technology, hopefully, we
can rebuild our agriculture engines. The dependency on this sector can be
reduced in a wise and fiscally sound manner, Chairman. And, I would
hope that we might consider that approach as we look at our taxation and
disbursements for this industry. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, after that there's not much else that
could be said. I think we've covered every base. I think, personally,
being a part of the visitor industry for so many years I've seen the goods
and bads of the industry itself. And I seen a lot of the impact, and I share
many of the concerns. Yet, you know my, I'm very adamant about our
working people, our seniors, the people that most depend on us to make
sure the services they need are available. And this is one of the engines
that really drives our economy. You know, agriculture did it for a long,
long time and Chairman Hokama mentioned that earlier and did a fabulous
job.
But when it came down to the brass tax it could not last forever. But I
hope the industry is listening tonight because all the concerns that have
been shared by many Members here they have to understand that we as a
community appreciates but also at times feel very slated at some of the
things they fail to do for this community. And I won't got into details, let
their hearts be their judge, you know. I'm not going to be putting anybody
on the spot. But they've changed the landscape, they've changed the
demographics of this State and this County. And so it's very important
they understand that, yes, we appreciate your, your contributions, the
charity walks, which I have done, and all the other things you do for our
community, all the employment you give us.
But also sometimes you take our beaches away from us, sometimes we're
not allowed to sit on the cabanas on those beaches because you say that's
your cabana. But the beach still belongs to the people of Maui County,
it's that whoa, who came first the chicken or the egg, yeah? So, I just say
it in this manner, I'll support it. I support it wholeheartedly because I
know a lot of the people who depend on it, the working people. But
industry be known, please, please, don't exploit what is so valuable to you
and to us, the aina. Forget that and we'll lose it forever. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'm not going to address
this issue directly tonight, I'm going to wait when we get to the real
property, make my pitch again, because I think we need to shift some of
the responsibility back on the hotel/resort people. We have one of the
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lowest hotel rates in the State while we enjoy highest occupancy and
highest hotel room rates. So, I'm going to wait for that tomorrow. I do
believe in the mission of the Maui Visitor Bureau. But I think that it's
time to shift some of the responsibility for keeping their marketing
program going. I just want to remind everybody that in our General Plan
since 1990 and I believe the plan previous to that also, one of the major
goals was to limit the growth of the visitor industry and to diversify our
economy.
And so we need to put some eggs in that basket seriously. Because who
knows what's going to happen with future costs of flying jet planes across
the Pacific Ocean, which could have a devastating effect on our economy?
So I'm going to leave that for the real property tax discussion. I support
what you, what you're proposal is, Mr. Chair, but I'd like to see, I'd like to
see the burden of that marketing expense come from the industry who's
benefiting from it. And, you know, we, were told that, Ms. Vend told us
when she came to testify that--and I think it's an interesting statistic worth
repeating--that there are no additional hotel rooms, in fact we're losing
hotel rooms to timeshare, which is another critical issue that we need to
look at.
There may, there may come a day with, with no control over what's
happening that we won't have any hotel rooms left on Maui. They'll all
be interval-owned by specific people. But what Ms. Vend told us was
that the increase in the visitor industry has come from the cruise ships.
They're the ones that are bringing the increased numbers of visitors at
least as far as she knows and we know. Although I think there's an awful
lot of visitors staying in time vacation rentals, too, that aren't necessarily
counted. So, you know, a cruise ship is nothing but a floating hotel and,
so what do we have to do to get them to pay TAT?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: State legislation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, we need to make people
accountable, those who are impacting us, and make no mistake about it,
the cruise ships are impacting us.
They're impacting our harbors, they're impacting our roadways, people
get off the boat and they go. And that's an additional, what is it? On any
given day, it could be an additional 3,000 visitors on island that were
never planned for, Chair. Not in our community plans, not in any of our
plans, did we ever plan for those 3,000 additional visitors like we do when
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we, when we approve a hotel for 3,000 rooms. Those impacts are all
planned and mitigated for, or should be at least. So I think there's, you
know, the whole face of the visitor industry is changing right before our
eyes seemingly out of our control, totally out of our control, totally
controlled by the industry themselves.
So, you know, what used to be the VIsItor industry where free and
independent travelers could come to Maui and stay in any given hotel and
any area of the island that provides that, pretty soon you're going to, you
know, you're going to have to be a property owner to visit Maui if the
trend continues. And, you know, there doesn't seem to be anything
stopping it and it's all about making your profit upfront and move on.
And that doesn't seem to be a fair and equitable way for any industry or
any investor to take advantage and use of our resources. You know, we're
here for the long term. We want them to be here for the long term, too.
So, that's my contribution tonight, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just, you know, if people don't want to cut
the Visitors Bureau budget, then I would ask though in, and I would ask
that in our Council Services budget, because we can do studies within that,
that somehow we should find the money to conduct a study so that we
actually know these impacts. Because frankly if our landfills fill up more
quickly, if our roadways need more repaving, granted, yes, there's a lot of
money coming in, but how much of that money is, is available to bear all
of these costs and they're huge. They are huge! How many police do we
have to have? How many County employees do we need in order to serve
all of these accommodations? Everything comes with a price tag. There
is no free lunch and make no mistake, Mr. Chair, the impacts that we see,
that we are aware of are the tip of the iceberg.
If you ever read the book The Devil's Bargain you will understand what I
am talking about and you will also understand that this is a consumptive
industry, it is not a symbiotic relationship. And it will consume our water,
it will consume our resources, it will alienate many of our people, because
they will eventually reach the point where there will be no aloha. We will
reach a saturation point and unless we wake up to what is going on and
what will happen eventually, we are part of this whole problem. Because
we don't understand we have a tiger by the tail and we don't even know it.
So, I can only tell you I have lived it, I have seen it and it is a coming
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along with the cruise ships and all the other impacts and the Superferry
and all the people that will eventually topple this wonderful, beautiful
island we have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, any more
comments to make? I'm going to wait for Member Anderson, as well as
Member Victorino to come back 'cause I want to take a poll on this one
here. You have a question, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
No.
No.
I was just asking you for
consideration once we complete this topic if I could, we could request a
short recess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe I'll call a short recess right now.
We'll reconvene at 9:10. Recess ... . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:05 p.m.
9:10 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Chair is ... Mr. Taguchi, can you get a hold of
Mr. Victorino? Thank you. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members,
at this time the Chair would go back to Maui Visitors Bureau. I'm going
to ask each Member as far as their objections in regards to the Chair's
proposal. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Will support the Chair's recommendations with
reservations.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I support with reservations.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You all already know my opinion.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
reservations, also.

I'll support your recommendation with

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, the number is $3.850 million. Moving
on. Grants and disbursements for Maui Solar Water Heater Initiatives.
Members, any comments, questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. This was the one where I, I just am
curious about how many more years we're going to continue to do this
particular program because I wanted to find out where we stood in terms
of the revolving fund? I think we started out with $1 million. And then I
know that they want to serve more people but frankly there's State
programs, there's all kinds of programs out there. I'm not saying it's not a
program, but at which point do we just stop? Because supposedly if it's a
revolving fund, it's supposed to be paid back over time and then the
monies would be able to be made available to other people. So, I just need
to know how much longer we're going to be having to fund this?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll yield if anyone wants to speak to this. I
just wanted to speak to something that we passed over real quick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any objections? Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman. I just going say that we should be
able to have Maui Electric Company provide us with a current status
report on the balance in the fund. How many loans have been provided to
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over the course of the life of the program? Because I, I thought, we
recalled either quarterly or, you know, bi-annual report, so. You know, I
would ask that maybe we can get that update.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Budget Director, if we can
have an update from Maui Electric in regards to their solar water heater
initiatives.
MR. PABLO: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and, Mr. Chair, it's not only the update
but how many more years is this going to be continuing on? I mean, with
new housing construction, you know, to me you either invest in it or the
developers be required or something or give an incentive, that way, in
terms of taxes. But I don't know, it just seems like something, when you
create a revolving fund that's why you create a revolving fund so that the
money-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --is reinvested in the fund.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Right. I know with all the new homes coming up, you
know, it good be an issue in regards to how much money they got in the
revolving fund. Because we do have quite a bit of affordable housings
that are under construction at this time, and I think part of the condition is
that they put up this solar water heater. Thank you. Moving on to page,
Members, we're going to complete the Mayor's Office and we'll call it a
night. So, we have four more areas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Before we move on, my notes show that on
Page 13 of your proposal, not the short version we're working on but the
one we last worked on. I show Item 16 under the Mayor's Office, Grant
to Maui Long Term Care Partnership for Caregiver Pilot Project. I show
that somebody wanted to revisit that.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if that triggers anybody's memory. No?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I, only the testimony this morning that was presented to
us in regards to a request of$250,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I can, in fact Member Anderson had asked a
question about was that an appropriate place to put that grant money. And
I said no because that is a program that this will be the final year for that
particular program because it will be sustaining itself. And the other
proposal that I'm going to make has to do with the next item and it would
be, it would have to be a grant to Maui Community College because the
partnership itself is not able to directly receive the funds. In fact the, the
caregiver grant I believe gets distributed to Tony Krieg at Hale Makua.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's fine. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just quickly. I would also agree that this would be, I
believe, more appropriate under the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns than Office of the Mayor and part of, you know, normally we
have in this area economic development type of grants, and housing has
those that deals with human services-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and housing. And I believe this is more of a Human
Services issue.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So again, it won't make any changes except which
Department would be the chief administration that would have the
responsibility.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are we talking about the 20,000?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I specifically requested that it remain with
Economic Development because of the training component and the
workforce-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Development.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --opportunities, yeah. That's why I asked,
and, and we've gone round and round about this. And the Department
agrees that it belongs because of the nature of the program and the
healthcare training that the people-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --are receiving.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Member Anderson, we'll revisit your
concern in regards to the Maui Long Term Care Partnerships.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask the, the Members' indulgence. Grant 26
in this area was the Kauaula Inflow Stream Study, 25,000. And I was just
asking is this in addition to, 'cause in my latest report that I'm reviewing
for the third quarter, the current year does have $25,000 for this in stream
flow study and it has been encumbered.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, yeah?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I'm just wondering if this is a duplication and
does it really need to be again funded since we have currently in the Office
of the Mayor, OED, an encumbered 25,000 for this very same item.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Budget Director.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Chairman.

Ms., Ms. Johnson may have some comments,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And what had ended up happening was
the property owner would not allow the, the--what is it?--the US
Geological Survey onto their property. So what ended up happening was
the Kauaula Stream is one of the streams that they're doing this project. I
think maybe we may have to visit with the Mayor's Office, but it's not
only the Kauaula Stream now, but its been expanded into an analysis that
US Geological Survey is looking at for the whole water system for West
Maui. So, I think this particular 25,000 that's in this year's Budget should
actually be re-described. It began as the Kauaula Instream Flow Study but
now it includes that but it also includes other components. So, I will find
out. I'll send an e-mail and try to get that information for you. But they
did need additional funding. US Geological Survey is assisting, so, and
they're providing some grant money of their own.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. Would ... then I would ask if, with the
Members' indulgence and yours, that we just red flag this grant to be
revisited to assure that we can address it properly whatever the outcome
may be but at least we give it the due consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Taguchi, you got that on Page 14?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, comment?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Boy, I can't let this one slide.
Kauaula Stream is in the Launiupoko Subdivision and when they
subdivided that land they put a open space corridor. I don't think they
called it open space, but there's a park corridor along the streambed and it
was meant for public access up to the valley. And so where do they get
off saying USGS can't go up there and take stream flow studies? I mean
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that is beyond appall. And, you know, while we're on the subject, the
Pioneer Mill used that water from Kauaula Stream, a portion of that water
to irrigate the cane fields that are now planted in-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Homes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --farmers estates.
And we know by, actually, by the 1990 Water Use and Development Plan
and also from various Land Use Commission discussions in regards to
conversion of those lands for AMF AC years before Launiupoko and
Associates were even in existence, that states a loss of irrigation of
pineapple, excuse me, of sugar cane lands on the West side in the
Launiupoko area would under, anything under 5,000 acres of irrigated
land would have a devastating impact on the recharge of the water table
which we use for our resident population. And so whatever it takes to get
in there and get a in stream flow and get a fair use of that water for
everybody has to happen and ... (end of tape 8A) ... are usually a
three-year funding, not just one year. Even though this is only one stream
I'm sure they need at least two years and as Ms. Johnson said it's
expanded. And Members, for those of you who are not aware and since
we're on the subject I think it's important to just state this for the record.
Kauaula Stream is the water source that fed Mokuula, which this County
has, and this body has invested big bucks into to restore that. And, and
that was an island, you can't have an island if you don't have water around
it. So, it's to all of our benefits to get this water underneath the proper
control so that we can fairly distribute it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. And we'll revisit this
thing. Okay, moving on, Page 5, the first item. Grants, Grant for Maui
Community College Sustainability Program, $250,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That was me, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe the Members have a copy of my memo to
you, Chairman, on where I'm funding my proposal of adds and
adjustments. So, for myself, I am proposing that this be deleted from the
Budget. Again, the Mayor has an appointment of a specific Energy
Commissioner and again I'm not, I apologize if that's not the appropriate
title for the position. But I would like to have the County be able to come
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up with energy sustainability plans, as well as work with what is going on
at the Legislature with Senator Kokubun in his Statewide meetings
regarding sustainability. You know, for me, Members, I have a specific
County need on Lanai. And you all know I feel about, you know, more
than supporting, actually subsidizing State programs. And so as you will
see I'm asking that this be a part of a cut to help fund how we would
eventually master plan and entitle the County's land, our land on Lanai so
that we can move forward with our affordable housing programs, as well
as provide the acreage for our public element, our public educational
facility. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My thought was a little different and I can
understand Mr. Hokama's comments of, you know, trying to keep this
balanced but also, you know, for his island. But because I'm looking at
this money where it's situated right now and what the use would be for,
this was the area that I had proposed to swap out the grant to Maui
Community College for the Maui Community Care Core Program which
was described by Rita Barreras today to us. But I would also put in a
proviso in addition that would require a minimum of a one-to-one match
and whether it's private funding or whether it's the grant that was spoken
about today.
This is something that I think can really bring in substantial funding. And
because of the issue and because I'm personally involved with a lot of the
research that's been going on, we're, we're in serious trouble and we, and
as Ms. Trygstad said today we're importing our labor. And that is really
of great, great concern to me. So, what I would be looking at is how this
can actually be put to good use, and I think swapping out would, would be
something I would ask the Members to consider.
The, the other thing which Ms. Trygstad did not talk about is right now we
are importing labor but one of the places we're importing it from is the
Philippines. In five years if the rate at which we are pilfering Philippine
workers in the healthcare field, if it continues, within five years their entire
healthcare delivery system in the Philippines will collapse. This is
serious, that's why I think it's something that we really need to address
and we shouldn't be doing it at the expense of the Philippine Islands.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. And in regards to
Mr. Hokama, deletion of this, I, I think he had some additions that he had
included in his memo to all of us. When the Chair mentioned to all of you
that if you're going to add, you make the appropriate cuts, and
Mr. Hokama has done just that, but not only the cuts but the additions to
some of the programs that he wants to see happen. So, Member Johnson,
we will not redirect this money to the Maui Long Term Care Partnership
at this time. But we'll recognize if Members agree to delete the $250,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Yesterday, we asked
Staff to find out exactly what this Sustainable Program by MCC involved.
Did we find out?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: The Budget Director may be better to answer this question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Budget Director.
MR. PABLO: I do have some, some information of this in my office, I'll be glad
to bring it down tomorrow morning. Several facts is where we saved this
afternoon which contains information about this program and some other
items. We would like to, to separate the information.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, Mr. Budget Director, you were here when
we asked for the information yesterday. We're going to make a decision
in a little bit. I don't think it appropriate for us to have your information
in your office. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. I was one of them who
deleted it in my own proposed submission so I will support the deletion of
this item. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. In, in regards to this one particular item
we'll be revisiting this thing tomorrow morning. This will give the chance
for the Administration to provide us that information. And, Mr. Director,
if we could have any information that had been requested that you bring it
forward to ...
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MR. PABLO: Mr. Chair, if you would like, I could read the portion which
pertains to the program?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Why don't you go ahead and do that.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This information is from Clyde Sakamoto,
the Chancellor from the Maui Community College. The program is to
build upon current sustainable technology program. The background, this
initiative will create, design, and support the development of an alternate
energy technology database test site on campus.
New but
yet-to-be-introduced alternative energy systems will be constructed and
demonstrated at the campus providing community members with an
opportunity to observe the technology and operation. Faculty and students
will also learn to operate the systems, gather data to permit assessments of
comparative energy performance compared with level of investment, and
interact with professionals in the field.
County funds will support additional personnel and provide supplies and
equipment for prototype projects that encourage and use applied research
techniques for alternative energy sources. With the County's assistance
Maui could be the site of alternative energy education in the State. This
initiative will further contribute to solutions that could potentially benefit
all the islands in the world. Deliverable, initiate at least one alternative
energy project that will introduce and use wind, sun, water, waste, or other
energy sources to reduce Maui County's dependency on fossil fuel. The
target date is August 31, 2008. The budget requested is $250,000. Clyde
M. Sakamoto, the Chancellor.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ifwe could get a copy of that tomorrow that
would be ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Ifwe can get a copy ofthat-MR. PABLO: Yes, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to the Members. Thank you. And we'll revisit this
particular item.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
It's my understanding that Maui
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Community College and maybe the prototype of what he's speaking of
will be used at the College to reduce their dependency on fossil fuel.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments, Members? Seeing
none. Next item. Grant to Maui Arts and Cultural Center for Pundy
Yokouchi's Pavilion. Comments? Chair's recommendation is $400,000.
And that there's a proviso that said that the grantee raises matching funds
from the, from non-County sources. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to know what the match was.
One to one? Two to one?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Ten to one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ten to one? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ten to one? What is the total cost of this
pavilion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four million dollars that, for the construction and their
requirements is they'll raise, we'll give them the 10 percent and they'll
raise the rest.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're going to change this proviso to
actually say that?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ten to one match.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ten to one match?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We can do that. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because the way it reads it looks like one to
one.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Shoots.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections to the recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next item. Grant to Maui Economic
Development Board, Inc. for American Ingenuity Alliance. Chair's
recommendation is $100,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, in my memo this is one of my deletions to
help fund my need to come up with about $500,000 for the master plan
and entitlement of the County-owned property in Lanai.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments in regards to this
recommendation as presented by the organization? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't have a problem with the deletion and
again we're going to discuss where any of the cut money would be
reallocated. So again, because I have other programs that I would like to
see funded I would be open to it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to
this? Just a comment from the Chair. The Chair included this $100,000
because of the benefits that it may have in Maui County in regards to
vocational workforce development. And with the oversight of Maui
Economic Development Board on American Ingenuity Alliance I
understand that the, Ms. Skog had already done some of the research in
regards to this particular program and the particular school in mind which
is Maui High School automotive shop. Understanding that Mr. Ishii will
be retiring soon and he would be a very good instructor for this continued
support at Maui High School. So, Members, the Chair is recommending
$100,000 for this particular program. If the Members feel otherwise, I'll
go right down the line to get your comments. Member Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I just want to make
comments on this. You know, as having been a former employee of the
Department of Education and this entity is still at least for me relatively
new and I know they have a national base. But again conspicuously
absent is comments from the local, the district, the Maui district. I don't
know if they've approached our local superintendent about this. I know
they've approached the, couple of teachers and I believe the principle of
Maui High School, but I would like to hear from the higher ups with the
DOE.
'Cause, you know, the program will focus on Maui High School which is
a State responsibility. And also we haven't heard from the Board of
Education or the Department of Education, Mrs. Hamamoto, the State
Superintendent on this. So, I'm just really on the fence on, with this. I'm
sure the intentions are good, but again it's just for me too many unknowns.
And maybe, I don't know if it's something that could be revisited
tomorrow. Or, and I note that Maui Economic Development Board is
involved in this as well. If, if not tonight maybe tomorrow, Ms. Skog
could share with us their involvement or their participation with this as
well. So for right now I'm, I don't know I'm really not, not sure about
this appropriation at 100,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll leave it for tomorrow. Thank you. Grant
to Maui Fest. Members, any comments on this?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I had originally asked that we consider if
this would be coming from different funds. But I believe only, you know,
myself has brought up the concern. And so if there are no other Members
that has a issue with this I am happy to move along.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I would-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
position.

--I would, I would support Mr. Hokama's

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I support your position.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So do I support your position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support your position.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I think I'm like Member Molina, I like to
revisit it after getting more information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're at Maui Fest.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh. Which one we on? Oh. Shucks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It's a long night.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: This is about. ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Maui Fest.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, Maui Fest. Okay. I'll support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina, thank you. Member Hokama, I got
yours. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll support it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, I think I misspoke in regards to
the grants for Maui Arts and Cultural Center. My office has indicated to
me it's a ten to one match but not in one year.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many years do they have?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They're going to match it ten to one, no indication as
far as the length.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's a $4 billion project, Members. They're asking the
County for a $400,000 consideration and their commitment and pledge is
that they will raise the $3.6 million or they will not accept the 400,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But is there any timeframe?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, but this will lapse.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, again, and that is why I would ask, Members,
that you consider a one to one and that when they go for the contractual
agreement to encumber the funds, that the language be that they need to
come up with the remaining 3.2 million before the full expenditure of the
County funding portion.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. We can put that as a proviso, Members, if
there's no objections.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd agree to that but not the one to one.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, that concludes our review
for today. Tomorrow we'll have the Department of Parks and Recreation,
Department of Planning, as well as the Department of Water, Public
Works. So we got about four more pages to complete.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.

- 256-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 24, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: On, on Maui Fest that's supported then right?
That's in?
CHAIR

Yes.
wame~ato

sure.

CHAIR
Okay. And then also we're going to go into rates and
fees along with some
this County. So we'll an do
tomorrow.
you. So, we'll adjourn this meeting at
time and we'll start up again at
9 o'clock tomorrow morning. So, Members, have a good night's sleep.
IS
.. . (gavel) . ..
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further OlS,CUlssum

9:42 p.m.

APPROVED:

Transcribed
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